
DATE March 20, 2020 
TIME 9:00 a.m. 

LOCATION: 

RTC Administrative Building
1st Floor Conference Room 
1105 Terminal Way, Reno 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

I.  The RTC is accessible to individuals with disabilities.  Requests for auxiliary aids to assist individuals with disabilities should be made 

with as much advance notice as possible. For those requiring hearing or speech assistance, contact Relay Nevada at 1-800-326-6868 (TTY, VCO 

or HCO).  Requests for supporting documents and all other requests should be directed to Denise Thompson at 775-348-0400 and you will receive a 

response within five business days. Supporting documents may also be found on the RTC website: www.rtcwashoe.com. 

II. The RTC has a standing item for accepting public input on topics relevant to the jurisdiction of the RTC. Because specific items may 

be taken out of order to accommodate the public and/or the Commission, public input on all items will be received under Item 2.  The RTC Chairman 

may permit public input to be taken at the time a specific agendized item is discussed.  Individuals providing public input will be limited to three 

minutes. Individuals acting as a spokesperson for a group may request additional time.  Individuals will be expected to provide public input in a 

professional and constructive manner. Attempts to present public input in a disruptive manner will not be allowed.  Remarks will be addressed to the 

Board as a whole and not to individual commissioners. 

III.  The Commission may combine two or more agenda items for consideration and/or may remove an item from the agenda or delay 

discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

**ROLL CALL** 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (For Possible Action) 

2. PUBLIC INPUT - Public Input - please read paragraph II near the top of this page 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 
Minutes 

3.1 Approve the minutes of the February 13, 2020, special meeting (For Possible Action) 

Procurement and Contracts 
3.2 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Procurement Activity Report (For Possible Action) 
3.3 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Nichols Consulting Engineers (NCE) to 

provide construction management for the Sun Valley Boulevard Corridor Project in an amount not to 
exceed $598,113, authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director to execute the agreement (For 
Possible Action) 

3.4 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Eastern Sierra Engineering, P.C. (“ESE”) to 
provide design services and optional engineering during construction for the Reno Consolidated 21-
01 Project in an amount not to exceed $487,080, authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director to 
execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.5 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. to provide 
final design, bidding services and design support during construction for the Oddie/Wells Multi-
modal Improvements Project in an amount not to exceed $1,272,305; authorize the RTC Interim 
Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

http://www.rtcwashoe.com/


3.6 Approve a resolution regarding potential sale of five remnant parcels to the Board of Regents of the 
Nevada System of Higher Education on behalf of the University of Nevada, Reno after completion of 
the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project and contingent on approval from the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and 
regulations (For Possible Action) 

3.7 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with CA Group to provide design and optional 
engineering during construction services for the Newport Lane Rehabilitation Project in an amount 
not to exceed $354,823; authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director to execute the agreement 
(For Possible Action) 

3.8 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Lumos and Associates, Inc. to provide 
design and optional engineering during construction services for the Kings Row Rehabilitation 
Project in an amount not to exceed $692,030; authorize the Interim Executive Director to execute 
the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.9 Approve a transfer of right of way from the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) to the 
Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) that was previously relinquished to RTC for a portion 
of Double R Boulevard (For Possible Action) 

3.10 Approve Change Order No. 11 (CO 11) increasing the total contract amount of the agreement with 
Granite Construction, Inc. (Granite) for Construction Work Phase 2 Southeast Connector, between 
Clean Water Way and South Meadows Parkway, by $327,736 for a new total contract amount of 
$158,588,256; authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director to execute CO 11 (For Possible Action) 

3.11 Approve the purchase of one 2019 Ford Transit vehicle utilizing the State of Nevada Fleet Vehicles 
procurement contract in the amount of $69,531 for Neighbor Network of Northern Nevada (N4) (For 
Possible Action) 

~END OF CONSENT AGENDA~ 

4. ENGINEERING 
4.1 Approve the proposed FY 2021 Program of Projects (POP) (For Possible Action) 

5. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 
5.1 Discussion and possible action to approve, reject or modify the Executive Director Employment 

Agreement for William Thomas (For Possible Action) 
5.2 Legal Issues - Report, discussion and possible action and/or direction to legal counsel and staff following receipt of information 

on legal issues. The RTC may, consistent with Chapter 241 of NRS, decide to interrupt the public meeting at 
any time to conduct a closed session to confer with legal counsel and possibly deliberate on legal issues. Any 
action on pending legal matters will be made when the public meeting is reconvened. (For Possible Action) 

6. PUBLIC INPUT - please read paragraph II near the top of this page 

7. DIRECTOR ITEMS 

8. MEMBER ITEMS 

9. ADJOURNMENT(For Possible Action) 

SEE NEXT PAGE for the BOARD WORKSHOP 
to begin at the conclusion of the regular Board meeting 

Posting locations: Washoe Co. Admin. Bldg., 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV; RTC, 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV; 4th STREET STATION, 200 E. 4th 
St., Reno, NV; CENTENNIAL PLAZA, Victorian Square, Sparks, NV; Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV; Reno City Hall, 1 E. First St., 
Reno, NV; Incline Village General Imp.Dist., 893 Southwood Blvd., Incline Village, NV; area press & media via fax; RTC website: 
www.rtcwashoe.com, State website: https://notice.nv.gov/ 

http://www.rtcwashoe.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY 

BOARD / SENIOR STAFF 

WORKSHOP – CANCELLED 
WILL BE RESCHEDULED 

A G E N D A 

FRIDAY, March 20, 2020 
Time Certain: 9:15 a.m. 

I. The Sure Stay Plus Hotel is accessible to individuals with disabilities.  Requests for auxiliary aids to assist individuals with disabilities 
should be made with as much advance notice as possible. For those requiring hearing or speech assistance, contact Relay Nevada at 1-800-326-
6868 (TTY, VCO or HCO).  Requests for supporting documents and all other requests should be directed to Denise Thompson at 775-348-0400. 
Supporting documents may also be found on the RTC website: www.rtcwashoe.com. 

II. The RTC has a standing item for accepting public input on topics relevant to the jurisdiction of the RTC. Because specific items may 
be taken out of order to accommodate the public and/or the Commission, public input on all items will be received under Items 2 and 8. The RTC 
Chairman may permit public input to be taken at the time a specific agendized item is discussed. Individuals providing public input will be limited to 
three minutes. Individuals acting as a spokesperson for a group may request additional time. Individuals will be expected to provide public 
input in a professional and constructive manner. Attempts to present public input in a disruptive manner will not be allowed.  Remarks will be 
addressed to the Board as a whole and not to individual commissioners. 

III.  The Commission may combine two or more agenda items for consideration and/or may remove an item from the agenda or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN AT THIS WORKSHOP 
EXCEPT TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AND TO ADJOURN 

ITEM 1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA (For Possible Action) 
THE RTC CHAIR MAY RE-ORDER THE AGENDA IN ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE THE PUBLIC OR COMMISSION 

ITEM 2 PUBLIC INPUT - please read paragraph II near the top of this page 

ITEM 3 DISCUSSION OF RTC STREET AND HIGHWAY PROGRAM, INCLUDING THE 
FOLLOWING: 
 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE FORECAST 
 2020 CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
 OTHER MAJOR PROJECTS IN DEVELOPMENT 
 2050 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

o SCHEDULE AND OUTREACH 
o PROJECT EVALUATION CRITERIA AND PROCESS 
o PAVEMENT PRESERVATION PROGRAM 

ITEM 4 PUBLIC INPUT - please read paragraph II near the top of this page 

ITEM 5 ADJOURNMENT (For Possible Action) 

Posting locations: Washoe Co. Admin. Bldg., 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV; RTC, 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV; 4th STREET STATION, 200 E. 4th 
St., Reno, NV; CENTENNIAL PLAZA, Victorian Square, Sparks, NV; Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV; Reno City Hall, 1 E. First St., 
Reno, NV; Incline Village General Imp.Dist., 893 Southwood Blvd., Incline Village, NV; area press & media via fax; RTC website: 
www.rtcwashoe.com, State website: https://notice.nv.gov/ 

http://www.rtcwashoe.com/
http://www.rtcwashoe.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 2 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: 
Amy Cummings, A , LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Public Input 

This agenda item allows the public the opportunity to provide information on topics within 
the jurisdiction of the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC). Any person wishing to 
wait to provide public comment on a specific agenda item should indicate that item number 
on the "comment" card. The R TC Chair reserves the right to take all public comment during 
Public Input. Individuals addressing the Board during the Public Input portion of the 
meeting will be limited to three minutes total. However, an individual acting as a 
spokesperson for a group of individuals may request additional time. Individuals are 
expected to provide public input in a professional and constructive manner. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

FRIDAY 9:01 A.M. February 13, 2020 

PRESENT: 
Bob Lucey, Washoe County Commissioner, Chairman 
Neoma Jardon, Reno City Council Member, Vice Chair 
Vaughn Hartung, Washoe County Commissioner 
Oscar Delgado, Reno City Council Member 
Ron Smith, Sparks City Council Member 

Amy Cummings, RTC Interim Executive Director 
Zev Kaplan, Special Counsel 
Dale Ferguson, Legal Counsel 

PRESENT: 
Kristina Swallow, Director of NDOT 

The special meeting, held in the Chambers of the Washoe County Commission, 1001 E. 9th Street, 
Reno, Nevada, was called to order by Chairman Lucey. Following the roll call and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag of our country, the Board conducted the following business: 

Item 1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Mayor Smith, which motion unanimously 
carried, Chairman Lucey ordered that the agenda for this meeting be approved. 

Chairman Lucey acknowledged the passing of the former mayor of Reno, Bob Cashell, and held a 
moment of silence in honor of him. 

Item 2 PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) that are not included in the 
current agenda. 

Mr. John Locke, RTC RIDE driver, suggested that Interim Executive Director Amy Cummings has 
the best qualifications for the Executive Director position.  He did not believe Mr. Abul Hassan 
was qualified. 

Mr. Morgan Trieger, representing the Truckee Meadows Bicycle Alliance, spoke on the 
qualifications that he felt were the most important for the next RTC Executive Director position as 
follow: One who will implement policies and procedures to implement a plan for a safer, 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 1 



environmentally friendly and equitable transportation system.  Some of these goals include zero 
fatalities, reducing greenhouse gas emissions from transportation and increasing alternative mode 
share.  He would like to see a significant increase in bicycle ridership. 

Ms. Joanna Trieger, representing the Truckee Meadows Bicycle Alliance, would like facilities 
built to encourage bicycling as a viable means of transportation by installing vertical or horizontal 
separation from vehicles to make riders feel safer. 

There being no one else wishing to speak, the Chair closed public input. 

Item 3 RTC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INTERVIEWS 

Discussion and possible action to consider and interview the following applicants for the 
RTC Executive Director position: Cummings, Amy; Flansberg, John; Hassan, Abul; Hasty, 
Carl; and Thomas, William; select an Executive Director and provide direction as 
appropriate on negotiation of an employment agreement (For Possible Action) 

Chairman Lucey said that he would walk everyone through the process that has been worked on 
for approximately two months.  It is the process used by Chairman Lucey and Commissioner 
Hartung during the search and subsequent selection of the Washoe County Manager.  He said there 
are five applicants for the position and those five applicants will all have equal time before the 
Board to interview in a public process.  The candidate order was selected at a random order that 
the Chairman was given immediately prior to the start of the meeting. 

The Chairman then requested voluntary sequestration of the candidates until it was their turn to 
interview.  Following each interview, the candidates were welcome to stay for the remainder of the 
interviews. He then introduced Ms. Angela Reich, RTC Director of Administrative Services, who 
walked everyone through the process. 

Ms. Reich said each candidate will be given a maximum of ten minutes to provide an introduction 
including background, capabilities and why they are interested in the position. Then each 
commissioner will ask questions and the candidates will be given a total of 15 minutes for 
response time.  Ms. Denise Thompson, Board Clerk, will be watching the clock and stopping it any 
time a commissioner is speaking.  Lastly, each candidate will be given a maximum of five minutes 
for closing comments, for a total of 30 minutes per candidate.  Following the interviews, the Board 
will proceed to a nomination process. 

Chairman Lucey then explained the nomination process, explaining that following all candidate 
interviews, the Board will have the opportunity to deliberate and then go through a voting process. 
Each commissioner was provided with a list of names  on a ballot.  Each commissioner will vote 
for two candidates, without prioritizing them, on the ballot, then sign the ballot.  The clerk will 
then collect the ballots and read the names and the results of the voting process. If there is a clear 
winner, the commissioners will move forward with a motion to accept that individual.  If there is 
not a clear winner and there is a tie, the commissioners will go to a second round of voting, 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 2 



choosing one person between the two tied candidates.  Chairman Lucey then asked by a nod of the 
head if the process was acceptable to the candidates.  They all agreed. 

The first candidate called was John Flansberg and the remaining candidates were taken to another 
room to wait their turn. 

Candidate Flansberg was given ten minutes for his introduction and began with his history of 
graduating from Oregon State University in civil engineering then worked for Granite 
Construction as a project engineer, project manager and estimator. In that position, he worked for 
NDOT, the cities and other public agencies on million dollar projects and multi-million dollar 

consultant who helped them to set up the MPO.  

At the same time, Mr. Flansberg helped to implement their first transit system called Jump Around 
Carson (JAC), which is still in place today. 

been for ten years, developing many relationships. 

projects, such as work on major freeways, work on the runway for the Top Gun program at the 
Naval Air Station in Fallon, and a large regional park in Gardnerville, amongst others.  He then 
began working for Carson City in 1997, which was the year of major flooding in the region, so his 
first responsibility there was to report on the different areas of flooding he saw. This gave him a 
unique insight to the frailties of the public infrastructure in our area. 

While at Carson City, Mr. Flansberg was the street superintendent and received his Professional 
Engineering certificate during that time.  He also had the opportunity to be in front of the Regional 
Transportation Commission of Carson City and eventually became the lead staff person overseeing 
capital projects in the city in addition to his prior responsibilities. He also took over the operation 
of the Carson City landfill at that time. Mr. Flansberg stressed that he mentions this to show that 
he has extensive experience in both operations and construction. 

During the 2000 Census, Carson City was determined to hold Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPO) status and Mr. Flansberg was tasked as the lead on that, working with Jerry Hall as a 

This was a unique experience because Mr. 
Flansberg began working with federal highways and federal transit on their plan during this time. 

Following that position, Mr. Flansberg was hired by the City of Reno as the Deputy Public Works 
Director and worked in that position for four years before being promoted to Director where he has 

Mr. Flansberg explained how his thought process has changed over his career, stating that he used 
to focus solely on efficiencies of the operations, which evolved into a focus on the quality of 
projects, then wondering how good can we get with the work that we do, and finally, how do we 
develop the people.  He then briefly discussed the work done on the Truckee River Bridge project. 
His thinking has now moved on to how to best collaborate with others, such as with the work done 
in the North Valleys with regard to the 2017 floods. 

He then mentioned the changes in the RTC since he first came to Reno.  It began with pavement 
preservation, which was what the voters asked for, and now the focus is on complete streets with 
an ADA focus.  He concluded, saying he would like to see the RTC now move into more of a 
customer focus. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 3 



did was to sell that stock and move it into a 401k.  He didn’t want it to look bad if he was awarding 
contracts and Granite was the low bidder. 

He added that his son graduated as a civil engineer and because his dad is the director of public 
works, there would be a conflict for him to work for the City of Reno.  So his son is working in 
Salt Lake City instead.  Additionally, he provided reference names on his collaborative abilities if 
there is any concern about his being Reno-centric in his thinking. 

Commissioner Delgado thanked Mr. Flansberg for his great presentation and resume, then asked 
how Mr. Flansberg would see the infrastructure changing according to his “health lens” to have 
better impacts on the overall health of our community. 

Mr. Flansberg responded that he is proud of the plans for the Oddie/Wells corridor, which include 
a raised cycle track separated from a walking path and to have the lighting added for safety.  
Projects such as that one provide the opportunity to be more mobile and healthier.  He would like 
to see more projects like that. 

Commissioner Hartung thanked Mr. Flansberg for applying, then asked that given the growing 
needs of the region and the shrinking of fuel tax, even with indexing, how will he lead the 
organization to secure additional funding that will be required. 

Mr. Flansberg said that the RTC of Washoe County is the envy of the nation because of the 
indexing that was done here.  However, because more people are using electric vehicles who are 
also users of the roads, there needs to be a method to make sure they are paying their fair share as 
well. He would like to see the entire state, and even the entire nation, work together to come up 
with a solution. 

Chairman Lucey thanked Mr. Flansberg and explained that each commissioner would now have 
the opportunity to ask a question and he would have a total of 15 minutes for response time, not 
inclusive of when a commissioner is speaking. 

Mayor Smith said Mr. Flansberg had a nice resume and application and gave a nice presentation. 
He then asked if there is anything in the RTC’s future or currently happening with the RTC that 
would create a conflict of interest. 

Mr. Flansberg responded, saying that when he was with Granite Construction, there was an 
opportunity for employee stock ownership, so when he moved on to Carson City, the first thing he 

Vice Chair Jardon said for the record that it has been an honor to work with Mr. Flansberg over 
the years, saying he is always professional, always ethical and she has always appreciated his even 
approach to matters.  She then explained that input from the community was solicited to find out 
what they would like to see in their next RTC Executive Director and the responses were very 
diverse.  She asked Mr. Flansberg for an example of a time when he brought together diverse 
individuals, entities, politicians, and funding to bring a project to fruition and be specific about 
each. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 4 



Mr. Flansberg said that the Virginia Street Bridge came to mind and that many people loved that 
bridge, so it was a challenge to replace the bridge so that it would be effective, do the job required 
and be something the residents would like and be proud of.  This involved adjacent property 
owners, federal highways and the Army Corps of Engineers, and was the first time he had worked 
with multiple interests to collaborate on a project.  

Mr. Flansberg also mentioned the Carson City freeway which provided an opportunity to have a 
freeway with a storm water “backbone” underneath it to mitigate flooding in the valley.  He was 
the chief liaison, coordinating with the state and seeing it to almost completion as it was finished 
one year after he left Carson City. 

Chairman Lucey said he has had the opportunity to serve with Mr. Lee Gibson, the prior 
executive director, who taught him about the federal and state challenges on various projects and 
in daily business.  He then asked if Mr. Flansberg were to become the executive director, how 
would he deal with the federal challenges as it pertains to funding, securing grants and working on 
legislation with both the federal and state governments. 

Mr. Flansberg said that today, his role has been to see what the federal legislation comes out with 
and to tie the needs of the community and projects to whichever funding type they may fit into.  
He believes it’s important to be creative in finding those funds and how to make them work for the 
existing needs.  He added that the challenge is to communicate the needs to those who are making 
policies, and working with our delegation for projects today and for future projects. Additionally, 
it’s important to see what the federal government is looking for in the nation and match them up. 

Vice Chair Jardon said the RTC struggles to marry limited funds with ever growing transit needs 
because fuel tax may not be spent on transit. She then asked, from a financing and a technology 
standpoint, how Mr. Flansberg would help the RTC move forward to meet those growing needs. 

Mr. Flansberg said he really likes the microtransit program and has looked into that a bit. 
However, it can be difficult to find where the most need is for microtransit, so bringing it into the 
larger hubs as quickly as possible is important.  He added that with regular transit, it’s important to 
look at speed and passenger convenience, frequency, and potentially adjusting coach size 
according to need.  He said more support is also needed from the voters to add transit revenue, and 
potentially adding some type of boutique service provided at a higher cost that could offset other 
expenses. 

Commissioner Delgado asked what immediate steps Mr. Flansberg would take to improve 
pedestrian safety. 

Mr. Flansberg said better lighting and crosswalks are needed, more education is needed and more 
flashers for crosswalks to make vehicle drivers more alert.  He believes some of the improvements 
currently being done are good, but street design is also important, such as adding speed humps in 
school zones, etc. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 5 



Chairman Lucey said that the question and answer period had concluded and Mr. Flansberg then 
had five minutes for final comments. 

Mr. Flansberg said if you want to know how something works, follow the money.  The RTC 
budget has three programs and the street and highway portion of the budget is 62% and public 
transportation is 36%.  Planning is only 2% of the budget but it is extremely important. 

He has experience in both the construction side and the owners side of projects, and what can be 
done to make them better.  On the transit side of things he has operations experience and had set 
up the transit system in Carson City while collaborating with Jacob Snow in Las Vegas and Greg 

who does business with the RTC, or in relation to any conversations within the RTC. 

Mr. Hassan began his career in Maryland and put himself through college by driving buses.  
then began working for the DMV as a statistical analyst, running state stats.  That job then turned 

Maryland at the same time, then became a director with the state.  

Krause here at RTC Washoe, as well as other transit providers in the region.  He has experience in 
planning of projects and project development, so he is not intimidated by that process.  He added 
that he is regionally minded and will collaborate with all regional entities. 

Lastly, the customer experience is extremely important while planning transit routes or congestion 
mitigation plans.  It’s important to have them say what they want for our region as well.  He 
would like to have a collaboration with the regional entities to come together and make project 
decisions and improvements. 

Chairman Lucey then concluded Mr. Flansberg’s interview and said candidate Abul Hassan, would 
be brought in next. 

Candidate Hassan was given ten minutes for his introduction and he first disclosed that any 
opinions or feelings that he shares during this interview are his own with no affiliation to Keolis, 

He 

into a project manager position. He implemented a capital infrastructure for the state, one was the 
vehicle emissions inspection program and the other was a queuing system which allowed an 
individual to perform multiple transactions at the DMV.  He worked a second job for the State of 

His goal is continuous 
improvement for the core base who is reliant on the use of any specific design.  

Next, Mr. Hassan moved to Alaska for a position and within one year, was promoted to run the 
transit agency.  The population is 300,000 and Anchorage is the MPO.  During a recession in 
funding, Mr. Hassan and his team were able to increase transit by changing the system to a gridline 
system. 

Mr. Hassan then moved to Hawaii and became the head of the DMV. 

Chairman Lucey thanked Mr. Hassan and explained that each commissioner would now have the 
opportunity to ask a question and he would have a total of 15 minutes for response time, not 
inclusive of when a commissioner is speaking. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 6 



Commissioner Delgado thanked Mr. Hassan for his presentation and asked how would he see the 
infrastructure changing according to his “health lens” to have better impacts on the overall health 
of our community. 

Mr. Hassan responded that the decisions that are made for every project, and how a city is built, 
will determine the effect on our children and their children.  His focus in this position would be on 
building livable communities.  He also said everyone should ask themselves how much value they 
bring to a community. 

Commissioner Hartung thanked Mr. Hassan for his presentation, then asked that given the 
growing needs of the region and the shrinking of fuel tax, even with indexing, how will he lead the 
organization to secure additional funding that will be required.  He then listed several areas of the 
community who currently have no transit service. 

Mr. Hassan said that when he looked into the history of the RTC he noticed that the agency had 
taken the position to not chase the sprawl from a development cycle standpoint. Because many 
people cannot afford to live in the city core where they work, they are forced out to the urban areas 
and then pay to drive back to their work location.  He continued, asking where we would get the 
most bang for the buck while providing a needed service. He believes there is a “right size” plan 
for every community.  He also believes that VMTs must be looked at as an additional funding 
source as well as partnering with private businesses. 

Vice Chair Jardon welcomed Mr. Hassan to the community and explained that input from the 
community was solicited to find out what they would like to see in their next RTC Executive 
Director, and the responses were very diverse.  She asked Mr. Hassan for an example of a time 
when he led the effort to bring together diverse individuals, entities, jurisdictions, federal 

Mayor Smith asked if Mr. Hassan was in his Hawaii job less than a year. 

Mr. Hassan said yes and said he’s taken many risks in his career, always to better himself, and he 
left Hawaii because the position had opened up with Keolis here at the RTC. 

Mayor Smith then asked if there is anything in the RTC’s future or currently happening with the 
RTC that would trigger a conflict of interest. 

Mr. Hassan said there are none that he is aware of. 

representatives, and funding to bring a project to fruition and be specific about each. 

Mr. Hasson replied that in Anchorage it is an oil based community and were in a state of recession 
while he was running the transit system, so he had to be creative while at the same time being in 
competition with EMS and Fire for funding, and transportation always fell to the bottom. His 
innovation was bringing businesses into the fold with discussion of equitability, funding 
distribution and service related to their clientele.  Additionally, he reached out to the FTA to find 
out how to utilize the federal assets (capital) that they had.  In this case it was infrastructure to talk 
about leasing a portion of and putting the revenue to better use. What happened was that the mall 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 7 



property they had partnered with was unable to use the federal funding, so it was diverted to the 
transit system and they were able to build a transit center on the mall property.  Another example 
he gave was to partner with the university in Anchorage and provide service to them instead of 
them funding their own separate service. 

Chairman Lucey asked how, in the executive director role, Mr. Hassan would bring a level of 
understanding of federal grants, policy issues, labor matters, CMAQ funds, and working with 
NDOT. 

Mr. Hassan said to follow the money and find out where it’s going in the state and region, and the 
job of the executive director is to continue to facilitate those conversations with the Board.  He 
would utilize the knowledge base at his disposal and utilize what he’s learned at other locations. 

Chairman Lucey said that the question and answer period had concluded and Mr. Hassan then had 
five minutes for final comments. 

Mr. Hassan said he appreciates the opportunity to be interviewed and realizes that his resume is 
different from the other applicants and hopes that his multiple job and location changes are more a 
reflection of his age rather than his experience.  He believes Lee Gibson hired the correct people 
around him to make the agency successful and is very impressed with the pool of talent available. 
He would continue to utilize the existing talent and facilitate their unique talents.  His philosophy 
is that being poor, having a disability or being a senior is not a crime and they are the silent 
majority to be listened to. Anything that can be done to lift them up to a better position than they 
may currently be in should be done. He then mentioned several of the challenges in our area. 

Chairman Lucey then concluded Mr. Hassan’s interview and said candidate Amy Cummings 
would be brought in next. 

Ms. Cummings was given ten minutes for her introduction and she began by saying what a great 
honor it has been working with the board members. She then reviewed accomplishments made in 
the previous two months since Lee Gibson retired, such as the evacuation of the Villanova 
maintenance facility due to a hazardous materials spill, leading the workshop on transit and 
pedestrian safety, working on the budget process, and working with Chairman Lucey on preparing 
agendas.  There have also been multiple outreach events, so things have been kept on track and 
moving along. 

Ms. Cummings has been with the RTC for over nine years and believes her experience makes her 
uniquely qualified as she is very familiar with the financial and legal capacity and projects and 
services offered, so would be able to step in and do the job on day one.  As the MPO, transit 
agency and street and highway builder, the RTC is a unique organization and she has experience in 
all of those aspects.  She became the deputy executive director in 2018 and has been involved in all 
aspects of budgeting, administrative services and project delivery and planning. Her priority has 
been to focus on relationships with partner agencies and to strengthen them. Community outreach 
has also been a priority in everything done at the RTC.  

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 8 



country, such as I-69, major transit and light-rail projects in Houston and Memphis, as well as 
several projects for RTC of Southern Nevada.  Upon completing graduate school, Ms. Cummings 
worked for the Metro Nashville Davidson County planning department, working on long-range 
land use planning, sub-area plans, corridor plans, and the redistricting of their 30 council districts 
after the 2000 Census. She has an undergraduate degree from Florida State University, a Master’s 
degree in community planning from University of Maryland, College Park, and a Master of Arts 
and History from UNR, Reno, with a focus on transportation history. 

She discussed her experience and knowledge of the RTC, including the regulatory framework, the 
FAST Act, state provisions, and the requirements for performance based planning programs, as 
well as the required documents.  She is also very knowledgeable about the FTA process and and 
partners at Region 9, along with USDOT headquarters. 

Lastly, Ms. Cummings mentioned her familiarity with upcoming studies and areas of interest for 
the RTC and her creative and collaborative approach to problem solving.  She wants to serve as the 
executive director because she has a great love for the RTC as an organization, for the mission and 
the staff, and she has been inspired by how many staff who have wished her well.  There is an 
excitement for the work done at the RTC and the mission ahead. 

Chairman Lucey thanked Ms. Cummings and explained that each commissioner would now have 
the opportunity to ask a question and she would have a total of 15 minutes for response time, not 
inclusive of when a commissioner is speaking. 

Mayor Smith thanked Ms. Cummings for her presentation and all the hard work she’s put in at the 
RTC.  He then asked if there is anything in the RTC’s future or currently happening with the RTC 
that would trigger a conflict of interest. 

Under Ms. Cummings leadership, awards have been received for the Sustainability Plan, the 
Complete Streets Master Plan, and the USDOT award was received for the 4th/Prater project and 
the Regional Transportation Plan. The MPO certification review by the FHWA and FTA just 
occurred and eight commendations were received.  Ms. Cummings lead the efforts to obtain over 
$60 million in competitive discretionary grant funds, which includes the 4th St/Prater Way, 
Virginia Street and the Sutro complete street projects. 

Ms. Cummings continued, saying that prior to the RTC, she worked in the private sector for 
Parsons Brinkerhoff, most recently as the planning manager. When she started, she was focused 
on GIS, technical planning and environmental analysis.  She worked on many projects across the 

Ms. Cummings said she would not anticipate any type of conflict arising. 

Commissioner Delgado asked how Ms. Cummings would see the infrastructure changing 
according to her “healthcare lens” to have better impacts on the overall health of our community. 

Ms. Cummings said the RTC has been working with the Washoe County Health district for the 
nine years she’s been here to integrate the community outreach and messaging of transportation 
infrastructure and the benefits to public health. One of the RTC’s guiding principles is to provide 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 9 



safe and healthy communities, which are directly connected. She then expounded on some of the 
ways the RTC integrates those multimodal options, such as on the 4th/Prater and Oddie/Wells 
projects, amongst others. 

Commissioner Hartung thanked Ms. Cummings for her presentation, then asked that given the 
growing needs of the region and the shrinking of fuel tax, how will she lead the organization to 
secure additional funding sources and then prioritize them throughout the region for a balanced 
level of growth. 

Ms. Cummings said that staff is in the process of updating the Regional Transportation Plan and 

example of a

worked on when she began working for the RTC.  

Reno and Sparks, and transit customers. Many of the businesses and residents were interviewed to 

the station designs.  
continued during the environmental phase.  

will be using a performance based process for prioritization, such as crashes by corridor, traffic 
congestion, pavement condition, etc.  The metrics will be shared with the Board to help them 
understand what the priorities are. The RTC also leverages its fuel tax to enhance the transit 
system in any way that is allowed, such as for accessible sidewalks and bus stop improvements. 
The RTC is also part of the Interim Legislative Committee (SCR3) which is looking at increases in 
electric vehicles who do not pay user fees for the roadway system.  So options are being looked at 
to add some type of fee for electric vehicles which will rise as the fuel tax falls.  The RTC will 
most likely be participating at the national level as well. 

Vice Chair Jardon thanked Ms. Cummings for all of her efforts and hard work at the RTC. She 
asked Ms. Cummings for an time when she led the charge to bring diverse 
individuals, entities, jurisdictions, and politicians together, and acquired funding to bring a project 
to fruition. 

Ms. Cummings responded that the 4th Street/Prater Way corridor was the first project that she 
She helped to facilitate the process for a 

corridor study and made sure staff was working with businesses and residents, the cities of both 

capture their stories for the history of the corridor which was made available to the public through 
Those entities were brought together through the planning process that 

Ms. Cummings was the lead writer for the TIGER 
Grant funding for $16 million to fund the project in addition to the Small Starts grant funding for 
the additional $6.4 million needed to complete the funding package. 

The corridor is open and working efficiently, so accomplished what staff set out to achieve. 

Chairman Lucey thanked Ms. Cummings for participating in this process and acknowledged that 
she has served the RTC for many years in a fashion above most.  He then asked, as the new face of 
the organization, how she would deal with developing relationships with both the federal 
government and the state, addressing policy needs that will impact the Washoe RTC for years to 
come. 

Ms. Cummings said there is a very exciting opportunity right now due to the governor’s priority 
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions, so NDOT is speaking more openly and forcefully about 
supporting transit.  So as part of this interim legislative committee, one of the topics is how do we 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 10 



offset the loss in fuel tax because of electric vehicles, and that doesn’t hurt transit needs statewide. 
The upcoming legislative session should be very interesting and RTC wants to be engaged there. 
At the federal level, staff continues to work with the delegation as needed for projects, such as the 
Virginia Street grant.  The Shared Federal Framework is working to meet with the delegation and 
others at the federal level, working with The Porter Group and Cardinal Infrastructure.  Staff 
continues to reach out to partners at NDOT, at FHWA, and at Region 9 of the FTA, who are 
absolutely with us.  They also continue to reach out to the DOT for grant applications. 

Commissioner Hartung asked how Ms. Cummings will address transit and multi-modal 
opportunities to reduce VMTs in places such as Spanish Springs, where nearly 1/3 of Sparks has 

the culture within the RTC in a positive manner and help provide for new innovations. 

being done pertaining to a respectful workplace, continue the diversity training that has begun, and 

the RTC does, so that will continue to grow. 

had five minutes for final comments. 

no public transit, and other areas such as the North Valleys, Verdi, Southwest Reno who are also in 
need of transit. 

Ms. Cummings said that the opportunity is available today because of the growth in our sales tax 
revenues.  The RTC has been able to replenish transit reserves and there will be an upcoming item 
to move forward with a service change which includes a microtransit demonstration in the North 
Valleys and Spanish Springs.  The Sparks microtransit demonstration has been a great success and 
passengers who have never used transit before are utilizing the system. There is an incremental 
plan to install microtransit in the Somerset/Verdi area and a long-range vision plan to extend the 
RAPID on S. Virginia Street down to the Summit Mall.  A funding package will be needed to 
accomplish that one. 

Chairman Lucey asked Ms. Cummings how, as executive director, would she change and nurture 

Ms. Cummings said the culture at the RTC is already a great one and her predecessor set the bar 
high in terms of a collaborative workspace.  She would like to build on that and continue the work 

professional development of staff.  The public outreach component is the centerpiece of everything 

Chairman Lucey said that the question and answer period had concluded and Ms. Cummings then 

Ms. Cummings expressed how grateful she is to be amongst the great group of candidates who 
have the opportunity to interview with the Board.  She is very excited for what is in store for the 
RTC and wants to continue to lead the RTC as they embark on this period of change to implement 
the many important and needed projects that are on the horizon, such as transit service to Spanish 
Springs and the North Valleys, in a way that has never been possible to provide before.  She 
mentioned several other transformative projects under way or in the works and added that the RTC 
is also involved in looking at new ways public transit can help combat human trafficking in our 
region. 

She believes her knowledge and experience with the organization, the regulatory framework that 
the RTC operates within, and the programs and services, should position her well to implement the 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 11 



was the deputy in Tahoe and was addressing their MPO authority in the early 2000s.  

the similarities with regard to federal and state partnerships. 

getting them done. 

inclusive of when a commissioner is speaking. 

He said he 
was envious and in awe of the ballot initiatives entered at the legislature at the beginning of the 
Great Recession, how the public responded and how it helped the RTC get through such a 
tumultuous time.  

He went on to say that in Tahoe, they are experiencing the challenges of growth of the region but 
in a different manner than Reno.  They are the “back yard” for many of the residents here and on 
the California side.  Visitation is heavy, they are the marketing for this area and are a big asset for 
this area.  He said the RTC has been a good organization, they have a rich history and he would 
like to be a part of it, which is his interest in the job. 

He has a lot of experience in working with federal partners, state DOTs, etc., because their 
complexities may be a little more than down here.  They are a bi-state district with a board of 11, 
six local governments, three private sector slots and two state DOTs who are ex officio.  They will 
soon go to a board of 15 with two governor appointees and one appointee from TMRPA to address 
what needs to be done at Tahoe.  He explained the differences between Tahoe and the RTC as well 
as  Mr. Hasty also provided 
information on some of the large projects he has been involved with and the complexities of 

Lastly, Mr. Hasty thanked the Board for the opportunity to interview and wished them luck in their 
decision. 

Chairman Lucey thanked Mr. Hasty and explained that each commissioner would now have the 
opportunity to ask a question and he would have a total of 15 minutes for response time, not 

vision of the Board as we move forward.  She looks forward to continuing to work with the Board, 
no matter the capacity, and appreciates the opportunity to interview. 

Chairman Lucey then concluded Ms. Cummings’ interview and said candidate Carl Hasty would 
be brought in next. 

Candidate Hasty was given ten minutes for his introduction and started by saying that out of the 
five candidates, he is the only one who does not currently work in valley, although he is a long-
term resident of Washoe County and has been interactive with the RTC over the years when he 

Mayor Smith said he is impressed that Mr. Hasty has stuck with the Tahoe area for 11 years. He 
then asked if there is anything in the RTC’s future or currently happening with the RTC that would 
trigger a conflict of interest. 

Mr. Hasty responded that there is no reason he can see that would trigger a conflict of interest. 

Commissioner Delgado thanked Mr. Hasty for applying and interviewing for the position, then he 
asked how would he see the infrastructure changing according to his “healthcare lens” to have 
better impacts on the overall health of our community. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 12 



Mr. Hasty said that transit provides so much to our quality of life by providing access to services, 
jobs, recreation, and health that’s needed. It also contributes to the economic vitality of the 
community and if done well, can serve all of these needs.  He believes the RTC has an obligation 
to follow a multi-modal approach to offer people choices about where they are going and how they 
will get there.  He believes transit and multi-modal infrastructure is the future of our region and the 
challenge is the public and political support to finance these options. 

Commissioner Hartung thanked Mr. Hasty and agrees with Mayor Smith about staying in Tahoe 
and getting things done.  He then asked that given the growing needs of the region and the 
shrinking of fuel tax, how will he lead the organization to secure additional funding sources and 
then prioritize them throughout the region for a balanced level of growth. 

Mr. Hasty said this is the difficulty for every community.  At the federal level, with a shrinking 
federal expenditure, it falls into the hands of the community to generate the revenue gap to fulfill 
the RTP.  The state level of funding needs to be looked at as well as local funding and federal 
support.  These things all preserve existing funding but other options need to be found by 
educating the public and getting their input and suggestions. 

Vice Chair Jardon thanked Mr. Hasty and said that he is the only candidate that she had never 
met. She told Mr. Hasty that she’s been asking each candidate for an example of a time when she 
led the charge to bring diverse individuals, entities, jurisdictions, and politicians together, and 
acquired funding to bring a project to fruition, but does not feel the need to do that with him. 
Instead, she asked if she spoke with any individuals who work for Mr. Hasty now or in the past, 
what would those individuals say about him. 

Mr. Hasty responded that they would, hopefully, say he is not a micromanager and likes a team 
who is competent, confident, willing to stretch themselves and grow, and are engaged in how they 
provide value in what they do for the community.  He added that their success is the demeanor 
with which they conduct their business. He supports growth in his staff and appreciates them as a 
team because people can thrive if it is the right team. 

Vice Chair Jardon asked Mr. Hasty why he wants to leave Tahoe. 

Mr. Hasty said he struggled with making the decision to apply, but the challenges here are 
extremely attractive and this is his home.  He understands the inter-regional aspect of the work and 
the importance of those working relationships. 

Chairman Lucey thanked Mr. Hasty then asked, as the new face of the organization, how he 
would propose to develop relationships with both the federal government and the state, addressing 
policy needs that will impact the Washoe RTC for years to come. 

Mr. Hasty said it is critical for the RTC to be competitive and cognizant of the fact that this area is 
not particularly large as compared to other communities around the country. It’s important to 
work with the Governor’s office and working collaboratively with the other MPOs in the state.  It’s 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 13 



public does not always hear the message in the same way, so it must be customized for all to 
understand. 

Commissioner Hartung said that the transit scenario in Tahoe is very different in that it is very 
tourist oriented with much less commuter traffic.  With that said, he asked how Mr. Hasty would 
address the transit needs in this area with the understanding that places like Spanish Springs, the 
North Valleys, Verdi, and Southwest Reno do not currently have any transit at all.  Also, would 
rail be a solution for consideration. 

Mr. Hasty said rail would not immediately be considered because it has limits and can be very 
expensive, but is worth looking at for future options.  However, no stone should be left unturned, 
so everything must be on the table for consideration.  He added that Tahoe does inter-regional 
transit to/from Minden and Gardnerville, so there is more commuter traffic than one would think. 
They are looking at passenger ferries as a transit option to get around the lake instead of using the 
highway.  Creative solutions and informed decision making must be involved. 

Chairman Lucey said that the question and answer period had concluded and Mr. Hasty then had 
five minutes for final comments. 

Mr. Hasty hoped that he showed what he has to offer, adding that he has a track record of building 
and keeping critical relationships that are critical to the achievement of goals, a reputation of 
integrity and vision, and a reputation for building and keeping a great and competent team who are 
motivated by doing the greater community good. He has also been accused of being creative, 
persistent and is practiced at understanding and communicating with many of the public that the 
RTC must engage with, and understands the leadership role required to keep the RTC competitive. 
He thanked the Board for their time and consideration. 

also important to work with the elected officials both here and at the legislature, especially with the 
recent initiative to reduce greenhouse gases because transit is the answer, and continuing to work 
with the federal delegation and lobbying groups in DC for a bipartisan solution. 

Chairman Lucey said that the current administration at the state is very different from the 
administration in the federal government and the legislatures. He then asked what skills and traits 
does Mr. Hasty have to balance those different positions. 

Mr. Hasty said that in his current position, it is his job to keep an eye on the bigger picture and the 
outcome.  He added that the political arena is absolutely critical, as is the public arena, because the 

Chairman Lucey then concluded Mr. Hasty’s interview and said candidate Bill Thomas would be 
brought in next. 

Candidate Thomas was given ten minutes for his introduction and started off saying that he is very 
honored and humbled by the opportunity to interview for what he considers one of the most 
important executive leadership positions in our region.  He has worked with each of the 
commissioners in different ways over the years so wanted to take this opportunity to explain who 
he is as a person and provide the breadth of his experience.  He started, explaining that his first job 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 14 



that role, he developed the City’s more than $300 million budget and led the City through the 
winter flood of 2017, as well as a major social conflict that occurred under the arch around 
Columbus Day. 

As assistant city manager, Mr. Thomas is responsible for all the functions that the City of Reno 
does that would be parallel to this executive director position for RTC. He is responsible for 
executive leadership and accountable for the public works department, which does all of the 
roadway planning, construction and maintenance, design, traffic engineering and traffic 
management for the City of Reno. He is also responsible for the planning functions of the City, 
including the development of the Master Plan, the City’s involvement in the Truckee Meadows 
Regional Plan and the City’s role in the development of the Regional Transportation Plan. 
Additionally, he is responsible for the Neighborhood Services department, which provides all 
communications and media interactions for the City of Reno, and the Information Technology 
department which provides the platform and hardware management for the City’s technology. 
Lastly, the property manager is one of his direct reports. 

Mr. Thomas continued, saying that prior to working for the City, he was employed as a vice 
president of a civil engineering firm in our community. During that time, Mr. Thomas lead multi-
disciplinary teams that were made up of planners, engineers, surveyors and other design 
professionals, and most projects had a transportation component to them. He lead the team who 
wrote the City’s first traffic impact fee and as a part of that project, he lobbied the legislators to 
implement legislation for impact fees. 

Mr. Thomas also ran his own business for four years which taught him self-reliance. He believes 
that any great leader has to get past fear and uncertainty and the only way to do that is with self-
reliance and self-comfort. 

out of college was for local government as a planning technician and that he learned the most 
important attribute of being a good public servant from that job was to be responsive to the public. 
This has become a fundamental way he does business and one that he believes has made him 
successful in his career. 

Mr. Thomas continued, saying that for the past eight years, he has served as the assistant city 
manager for the City of Reno, then explained that he was asked by the council and the mayor to 
step in as the acting city manager for approximately ten months when the city was going through a 
leadership crisis. His task was to bring back some normalcy and a sense of trust back to leadership. 
He learned much about himself and it gave him the opportunity to help some of the employees.  In 

Most recently, Mr. Thomas was responsible for the development of a new $33 million safety 
center; funding and construction of a $4 million police station, creation of a $250,000 Clean and 
Safe team to help with health issues in encampments, and led the group that transformed the 
Transitional Governing Board on Homeless into the Community Homeless Advisory Board. Mr. 
Thomas named several other public programs and projects that he has either led or been a part of, 
including the University Gateway project.  In addition to public work, Mr. Thomas worked with 
two private individuals to conceive the Village on Sage Street project.  Lastly, Mr. Thomas led the 
team that developed the City’s first Master Plan in 20 years, called the Reimagine Reno Project. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 15 



Mayor Smith 

As part of his compensation for that effort, he was offered an 

Mr. Thomas said that for over eight years he has 

Commissioner Delgado thanked Mr. Thomas for his presentation and for considering the position 
at the RTC.  He then asked how Mr. Thomas would see the infrastructure changing according to 

RTC’s initiatives and projects. 

thanked Mr. Thomas for his presentation and asked if there is anything in the RTC’s 
future or currently happening with the RTC that could trigger a conflict of interest. 

Mr. Thomas responded that he doesn’t believe so, but does know that there has been some concern 
expressed publicly.  He explained that he worked for four years helping to develop a piece of 
property called Evans Ranch.  
opportunity for a percentage of the profits if that property developed, which is not uncommon.  He 
was never given any ownership or right to the property.  He added that when he was hired at the 
City, he spoke with the City Manager and disclosed this fact to him.  The City Manager said it was 
not an issue or a concern on his part.  The City Attorney also said that there was no conflict of 
interest and issued a letter stating as such. 
publicly disclosed the fact that he had the relationship with regard to this property.  Additionally, 
he has excused himself from all conversations relating to Evans Ranch.  He feels very comfortable 
that there is no conflict and offered, should he be hired, to sit down with RTC’s attorney to 
disclose all facts related to that partnership and present the agreement if needed.  He also said he 
would give it up if he’s told it was necessary; however, he believes it is something that he earned 
and that his family has a right to. 

his “healthcare lens” to have better impacts on the overall health of our community in terms of the 

Mr. Thomas said he would start with the direct connection of the transportation system for those 
who don’t have a choice or another alternative to get to medical care.  Access is a necessity for 
those services and a taxi may not always be affordable.  Secondarily, he would try to create an 
environment where people would either walk or ride more because it helps long-term.  Lastly, the 
pedestrian safety issue cannot be ignored because the injuries and deaths for pedestrians has been 

In closing, Mr. Thomas said he is very passionate about this community and this is his home.  He 
believes this position is one of the most important leadership positions in developing our 
community.  His career and experiences put him in a unique position to be able to help the RTC be 
successful and that is why he is a candidate for this position. 

Chairman Lucey thanked Mr. Thomas and explained that each commissioner would now have the 
opportunity to ask a question and he would have a total of 15 minutes for response time, not 
inclusive of when a commissioner is speaking. 

going up.  He added that the RTC should meet with the healthcare providers to see to what degree 
the RTC can help people get the critical services they need. 

Commissioner Hartung thanked Mr. Thomas and said his background speaks for itself. Then he 
asked that given the growing needs of the region and the shrinking of indexed fuel tax, how will he 
lead the organization to secure additional funding sources and then prioritize them throughout the 
region for a balanced level of growth. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 16 



Mr. Thomas responded that this is the biggest issue the region is facing, so we should look at how 
we are doing things because over time, any organization can develop inefficiencies and processes 
that made sense at one point but no longer do.  He said he would also look at the local 
governments to see if there is an overlap where multiple entities are all spending staff time to 
accomplish the same goal. There may be efficiencies in one of the other entities could be helpful. 
Funding the operation and maintenance of transit is the big issue, so maybe it would be a good 
time to step back and tell the community the story of what the benefit of transit is.  The value of 
transit needs to be explained, such as how it benefits the citizen who needs healthcare or needs to 
get to their job and has no other way to get there.  It doesn’t matter whether the money is federal, 
state or local money because it is still the people paying for it.  He added that it can be a challenge 
because of the gas tax and the shrinking revenues as more electric vehicles are used. 

Vice Chair Jardon thanked Mr. Thomas and said she appreciated Mayor Smith’s question 
pertaining to the alleged conflict of interest and the response given because it has never been 
hidden and should not have needed to be a subject of discussion for today. She then asked Mr. 
Thomas for an example of a time when he has led the effort to bring diverse individuals, entities, 
jurisdictions, and politicians together, and acquired funding to bring a project to fruition. 

Mr. Thomas said that downtown Reno needed to have something done about the continuing blight 
and degradation, so he got the initial authorization from the City Council to explore changing what 
was an assessment district for many years into a new tool called the Business Improvement 
District.  He led a group of staff to get that done on time and led a very diverse group of people to 
sell a “self-tax” to deal with some of the blight in the area.  It was made up of the stakeholders and 
residents of the downtown area, but also included the City Council, County Commission and a 
pretty broad group of people to address what was needed.  Ultimately, Reno beat Las Vegas who 
started the same initiative before Reno.  This led to the Reno Downtown Partnership and 
ultimately, the ambassador program. 

Secondly, the City of Reno got a grant from IBM which was given to only seven places in the 
world.  It could have been only a City of Reno matter, but Mr. Thomas and some others decided 
this would only have value if it was done regionally. This project ended up involving the three 
entities, the University and the school district, who decided that the region needed a new theme. 
Eventually, it was agreed that the region needed to be a knowledge-based economy. 

Chairman Lucey said that the RTC is a very self-reliant organization; however, often has to work 
with the state and federal government, such as FTA, DOT, FHWA, and many organizations and 
their leadership administrations. He then asked Mr. Thomas how he sees himself being an 
advocate of the RTC in those arenas and maintaining the balance when there is a multitude of 
different opinions, and making sure that the focus and the goals and mission of the RTC are 
realized. 

Mr. Thomas said he would start by saying with all of his professional experience and as a person, 
he feels like he has a talent for working with people to gain their trust and respect. He believes 
that is the most important thing in his experience when dealing with anyone. The initial 
conversation and  contact and developing of a relationship is really what’s meaningful.  Graphs 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 17 



 

 

and technical speak won’t cut it if you do not make a connection with the person you are speaking 
with.  It is important to show how whatever the item is that you are lobbying for or trying to get 
approved benefits the people of our area.  At the end of the day, they know they are representing 
the same people that we are, so it’s important for them to believe that we will perform based on 
what we tell them is most critical.  At the state level, it’s basically the same thing but more focused 
because there is the need for competing for resources with other regions.  

At the local level, there should be a formula and a method everyone agrees on and figure out what 
the level of interest or consequence is if we don’t help our partners. 

Chairman Lucey said that the question and answer period had concluded and Mr. Thomas then had 
about four minutes for final comments because he had run over on Q&A. 

Mr. Thomas said he really is excited about this opportunity and this is a peak time for our 
community with many people interested in investing.  The question is what do we do with that, and 
Mr. Thomas believes it is the regions shining moment to shape the future.  Transportation makes 
up 80% of our infrastructure, so how we build it, where we build it and how we use it is important. 
He realizes that the needs far exceed our resources, so it is mandatory to work together with our 
delegation, regionally with the state legislature, and with the neighboring counties to come up with 
solving very complex problems.  Because he has worked with pretty much every board and 
commission in our region, he believes the RTC Board of Commissioners are the group who has 
demonstrated the greatest ability to cooperate and coordinate, which is critical and requires 
leadership, so he wants to be a part of that and thanked the commissioners for the opportunity. 

At this point, Chairman Lucey asked if there were any public comments signed in for this item and 
the clerk confirmed there were none. He then opened the process to a brief deliberation and then 
will move on to the voting process. 

Vice Chair Jardon thanked everyone who has participated in this entire process to get some great 
candidates in for interviews.  She added that no matter who is chosen, we as a community will 
have a part in shaping where we live.  She explained that she personally uses a four-pronged 
approach in her decision process.  She considers education, experience, how the interview went 
and her gut feeling.  Then she weighs those topics and ranks, which she had done. 

Commissioner Hartung said the following comments are in the order the candidates were 
interviewed: 

• Mr. Flansberg has a robust transportation background and he liked several of the positions 
that he takes.  

• Mr. Hassan has a diverse background as a driver and a capital projects manager in Hawaii 
and Alaska, and now works for the RTC at Keolis.  He also had mentioned that he is a 
facilitator, not a planner or engineer, which the commissioner found interesting. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 18 



 

 

 

• Ms. Cummings has a wealth of knowledge in the organization that is unsurpassed and he 
appreciates what she brings to the table; it is very impressive. 

• Mr. Hasty has experience working with multiple agencies and organizations and 
understands how to fill revenue gaps.  He would bring a lot to the table. 

• Mr. Thomas has good leadership skills and understands what challenges are going to be 
faced in the future with regard to funding needs and resources.  He has a good grasp of 
understanding and leadership skills on par with anyone in the region. 

Commissioner Delgado thanked all the candidates and said it’s interesting that everyone is local 
even though a national search was done.  He believes that we will be in good hands no matter who 
is chosen.  He takes the same matters into consideration as the Vice Chair and thanked everyone 
for going through the process and applying. 

Mayor Smith thanked the candidates for their individual responses and ideas, as it proves they 
think regionally.  This is a regional entity so it’s important to think regionally.  He added that 
every candidate deserves to be the executive director but they can only pick one. 

Chairman Lucey shared the same sentiments and believes it’s been a wonderful process. He 
added that the amount of professionalism demonstrated through this arduous process has been 
tremendous.  He then thanked the candidates for taking the time out of their busy days to go 
through this process and it’s impressive to see the wealth of knowledge in this room.  For him, the 
best leader is all about the person, not the job.  He then thanked everyone for participating. 

Next, he asked all commissioners to choose two candidates on the ballot in front of them and then 
sign the bottom of the sheet. RTC’s special legal counsel for this recruitment will then collect the 
ballots and deliver them to the clerk who will tally the ballots and place them on the screed to be 
read off. 

Board Clerk Denise Thompson tallied the votes as follow: 

Commissioner Hartung: John Flansberg and Bill Thomas 
Vice Chair Jardon:  Amy Cummings and Bill Thomas 
Mayor Smith:  Amy Cummings and Bill Thomas 
Commissioner Delgado: Bill Thomas and John Flansberg 
Chairman Lucey: Carl Hasty and Bill Thomas 

While the clerk entered the votes onto a spreadsheet to display on the screen, the Chairman said 
that by his count, there was a clear nominee for the position which is Mr. Bill Thomas.  He then 
made the following motion: 

Enter into negotiations with Mr. Bill Thomas as the next executive director of the Regional 
Transportation Commission of Washoe County, and the Chairman and Special Counsel Zev 
Kaplan will negotiate the terms of the contract to be ratified at the next Board meeting of the RTC. 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 19 



The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hartung and upon the vote, passed unanimously. 

Mr. Thomas thanked his peers for being there and for participating in the interview process. 

Item 4 PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) that are not included in the 
current agenda.   

There being no one wishing to speak, the Chair closed public input. 

Before adjournment, everyone sang happy birthday to the Chairman. 

Item 5 ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 12:34 p.m. 

______________________________ 
BOB LUCEY, Chairman 
Regional Transportation Commission 

February 13, 2020 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 20 



asty, Carl: 

·---=--=-=-Z-.71===:::::::::::::.__--.L __ _J_ ____ _ 

........... -.., 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

RTC Executive Director Appointment Check-in Sheet 
February 13, 2020 (Alphabetical Order) 

~ Cummings, Amy: ,,.....,::==~

-==----------

____:=---- -----

~ lansberg, John: -+--¥-,:--L.~ 

0 Hassan, Abul: __ ---L.,~ ...........,.___,,.~:::.L.- ::::::::::::::~=== 

~ 

~ omas, 81 -.-

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

• 
rJ 
• 
• 
E@ 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

RTC Executive Director Appointment Ballot 
Commissioner Vaughn Hartung 

February 13, 2020 - Nomination Round 1 

Amy Cummings 

John Flansberg 

Abul Hassan 

Carl Hasty 

Bill Thomas 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtC"Yashoe.com 

http:rtC"Yashoe.com


,,, 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

R TC Executive Director Appointment Ballot 
Vice Chair Neoma Jardon 

February 13, 2020-Nomination Round I 

~ Amy Cummings 

• John Flansberg 

• Abul Hassan 

• Carl Hasty 

[] Bill Thomas 

Signature: RTC Vice Chair Neoma Jardon--,,~~~~~::::::......,..,,;;::::::::=---::::=?"~===========--
/ ~ 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

RTC Executive Director Appointment Ballot 
Commissioner Ron Smith 

February 13, 2020 - Nomination Round 1 

~ yCummings 

D John Flansberg 

D Abul Hassan 

D Carl Hasty 

~ ill Thomas 

~'-----------Signature: RTC Commissioner Ron Smith - ~---=---1

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 • 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


( 
Signature: RTC Chairman Bob Luce 

' • ---

'----.._ _.f"".,.. 
1111111111 

• 
• 
• 
~ 

~ 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

R TC Executive Director Appointment Ballot 
Chairman Bob Lucey 

February 13, 2020 -Nomination Round 1 

Amy Cummings 

John Flansberg 

Abul Hassan 

Carl Hasty 

Bill Thomas 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


~ REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION I ;i (al Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

~ 

1g 

m 
~ 

Bl 

~ 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

R TC Executive Director Appointment Ballot 
Commissioner Oscar Delgado 

February 13, 2020 - Nomination Round 1 

Amy Cummings 

John Flansber 

Abul Hassan 

Carl Hasty 

Bill Thoma 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


RTC Commissioners 
Selection of Executive Director 

Round One Nominations 
February 13, 2020 

Commissioners 

Bob Lucey 

Chairman 

Neoma Jardon 

Vice Chair 

Vaughn 

Hartung 
Oscar Delgado Ron Smith TOTAL 

Candidates 

(Alpha Order) 

Amy Cummings X X 2 

John Flansberg X X 2 

Abul Hassan 

Carl Hasty X 1 

Bill Thomas X X X X X 5 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 3.2 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Stephanie Haddock, CGFM 
Director of Finance/CFO Amy Cummings, AICP 

Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: RTC Procurement Activity Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Procurement Activity Report. 

PROJECTS CURRENTLY ADVERTISED 

Invitations for Bids (IFB} 

Project Due Date 

PWP-W A-2020-186 - East Prater Way Rehab Project March 18, 2020 

Reguest for Pro~osals (RFP} 

Project Due Date 

RTC20-14 - Coordinated Human 
Transportation Plan 

Services Public March 9, 2020 

REPORT ON BID AW ARDS 

Per NRS 332, NRS 338 and RTC's Management Policy P-13 "Purchasing, " the Executive Director has authority to 
negotiate and execute a contract with the lowest responsive and responsible bidder on an Invitation for Bid (IFB) without 
Commission approval. 

Project Contractor Award Date Contract Amount 

PWP-WA-2020-135 
Bus Stop ICP 

Spanish Springs Construction February 28, 2020 $333,444 

CHANGE ORDERS AND AMENDMENTS WITHIN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S AUTHORITY 

Project Contractor Approval Date 
Change 
Order 

Number 

Change 
Order 

Amount 

Revised Total 
Contract 
Amount 

Bus Stop Shelters 
Brasco 

International 
February 28, 2020 No.2 $39,002 $557,461 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 3.3 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Maria D. Paz Fernandez, P.E. 
Engineer II Am~~ A, , LEED AP 

Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Construction Management 
of the Sun Valley Boulevard Corridor Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Nichols Consulting Engineers (NCE) to 
provide construction management for the Sun Valley Boulevard Corridor Project in an amount not 
to exceed $598,113, authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement (see Attachment A) with NCE is for construction management on the Sun Valley 
Boulevard Corridor Project in the amount of $598,113. The Project includes addition of bicycle 
lanes, sidewalk, crosswalks, and intersection improvements from 7th A venue to Highland Ranch 
Parkway in Washoe County. 

NCE was selected from the Civil Engineering Design and Construction Management Services List 
as a qualified firm to perform the construction management. Negotiation of the scope, schedule 
and budget indicated the amount for design services is within the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Appropriations were included in the FY 2020 Budget and FY 2020 Program of Projects and are 
included in the RTC FY 2020 Board approved budget. There is no additional cost in connection 
with this agenda item. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

January 17, 2020 Approved the selection of Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. and a 
Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Final Design of the 
Sun Valley Blvd Corridor Project 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 
PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Sun Valley Blvd Corridor Project PSA 
RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page 2 

June 15, 2018 Approved the selection of Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. and a 
Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Preliminary 
Engineering Design of the Sun Valley Blvd Corridor Project 

January 18, 2018 Approved the Request For Proposals (RFP) for the Preliminary 
Design of the Sun Valley Blvd Corridor Project 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of March 20, 2020, by and between 
the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Nichols Consultants 
Engineers, CHTD ("CONSUL TANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC selected CONSUL TANT from its qualified list for Civil Engineering Design 
and Construction Management Services to perform construction management of the Sun Valley 
Boulevard Project from 7th Avenue to Highland Ranch Parkway in Washoe County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in considerati,o of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follow : 

ARTICLE 1 - TERM AND ENGAGEMENT 

1.1. The term of this Agreement shall be from the.date rr.st W,ritfen above through December 
31, 2022, unless terminated at an earlier ~ate or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 

1.2. 

provisions herein. 

1.3. CONSULTANT will prnm tly diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applica l pro.fl ssipnal standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any. ggyerm ent, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSUL;TAN 

1 .4. CONSUL TANT shall 0t proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSULT ANT. If CONSULT ANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSULT ANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order, CONSUL TANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 



ARTICLE 2-SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

2.2. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3. CONTINGENCY 

Contingency line items identified in the scope of services are for miscellaneous increases 
within the scope of work. Prior to the use of any contin ency amou.nts CONSUL TANT 
shall provide a letter to RTC's Project Manager detailing the need scope, and not-to
exceed budget for the proposed work. Work to be paid for- out of contingency shall proceed 
only with the RTC Project Manager's written al)Qroval. 

2.4. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the right to exercise ·ts o , tion s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exhibit A. CONSUL 'f. T will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific opti , nal serv1qes requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. RTC · evie an approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULT ANT shall i:le1:take na work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the perfor ·ance 0 said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another indiv'dual 0r firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.5 . ADDITlO 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services when agreed to in writing by RTC and 
CONSUL TANT. 

2.6. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSULT ANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSUL TANT shall have the 



responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

Any sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULT ANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform fiel and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of this Agreement. All test rep shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license numbe . 

2.7. ERRORS A D OMISSION 

CONSULT ANT shall, without additional c0mpeJJsati0n correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONStJI;TA T in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSUL TANT also agrees that if any e or. or omission is found, CONSULTANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary co -ction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not ONSlJ_L TANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CO Sl:JL TA'. T may be compensated for such additional work. 

3.1. CONSULTANT shall be pai€1 for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B-2. l,lTC shall n~t be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as 
provided in Exhib,i B-1. 

3.2. The maximum amo®t payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B-1. CONSUL TANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULTANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Services (Tasks 2.1.A to 2.1.D) $568,113.10 
Construction Contingency (2.E) $30,000.00 
Total Not-to-Exceed Amount $598,113.10 

3.3. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 

http:598,113.10
http:30,000.00
http:568,113.10


, 
. 

and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSUL TANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than 105% of the amounts billed to CONSUL TANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of R TC, except: (1) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSULT ANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTrCLE 4 - IN VOICING 

4.1. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format pecified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com. RTG's payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be pai , at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by R FG- that are not paid within thirty (30) days 
ofreceipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSUL TANT of any dj agreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30} clays receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RT@

4.3. CONSULTANT shall maintain eomp1ete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. lJP.on request, CONSULT ANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall ha e the right to inspect and copy such records. 

ARTLCLE 5 - ACC ~ss TO INFORMATION A D PROPERTY 

5.1. Upon request and with'out cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all pertinent 
information that is- re.asonably available to RTC including surveys, reports and any other 
data relative to design and construction. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSUL TANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSULT ANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSUL TANT prior to the Agreement is excluded from this requirement. 

mailto:accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com


CONSULT ANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSUL TANT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSUL TANT under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. CONSULTANT represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

6.3. CONSULTANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or mcesses used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agree ent. 

6.4. CONSULTANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or pre ares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as c0nfidential mat-e.r;"al and shaU not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of R'Ie· provided h0wever, that CONSUL TANT may 
refer to this scope of work in conne tion ~th i s promotional literature in a professional 
and commercially reasonable manner :I:he pr0visions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that co es ·nto be public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrsiet O LJL NT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to pro ·cte i formation or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agene:y or oth:e entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSUL TA - to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

7.1. CONTRACTTERMINA.-TION FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSULT ANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULT ANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULT ANT is in 
default. CONSUL TANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULTANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULTANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSUL TANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 



7.2. CO TRACT TERM1NATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSULTANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSULTANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSUL TANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSUL TANT. If CONSUL TANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE 

8.1. CONSULTANT shall not commence any work or pei:mit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. 

10.1. During the performance o this Agreement, CONSUL TANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any e , plo)".ee oi; applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSULT ANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

I 0.2. CONSULT ANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 

http:plo)".ee


10.3. CONS ULT ANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 11 - RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

I I. I. NEGOTIATED RESOLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

11.2. MEDIATION 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writirrg 0f tlie dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute 0r c aim bei submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other 12ar,ty s receipt 0r eeemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree tB~D a mutua lly acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree up,0 a mediator within ten (10) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each p rty, s a I select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. A m:ediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualiticat~o11 e forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the · ules Go\lerning Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Cour n, e otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall have comRlete disc etion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty, (31)) dars bllowing appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unle-ss otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 



11.4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12-PROJECT MANAGERS 

12.1. RTC's Project Manager is Maria Paz Fernandez or such other person as is later designated 
in writing by RTC. RTC's Project Manager has authority to act as RTC's representative 
with respect to the performance of this Agreement. 

12.2. CONSULT ANT' Project Manager is Angela Hueftle or such other person as is later 
designated in writing by CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT's Project Manager has 
authority to act as CONSULTANT's representative with 1:espect to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

13.1. 

Maria Paz Fernande~ 
R TC Projeet Ma ager 
Regional Trnnsp@rtation Commission 
I I 0$ J.:erm i'nal Way 
Reno e~ada 89502 

Notices required under this Agreement ·sh 

RTC: AmyCummi gs 
Interim Executi e Director 

(77 ~ 35-] 861 

~ gela Hueftle 
Pril'lcipal Engineer 
NCE 
1885 S. Arlington Ave, Suite 111 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775) 329-4955 

ARTICLE 14 - DELAYS lN P RFORMANCE 

14.1 . TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 



14.2. UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSUL TANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSULTANT's performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSULTANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSULT ANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. NOTIFICATION OF DELAYS 

CONSULT ANT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSULT A ;r has knowledge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise becomes aware that CONSUl,TANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (10) working day.s thereafter, CONSUL TANT shall 
provide such notice to RTC, in writing, furnishing as much detail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REQUEST FOR EXTENSION 

Any request by CONSULTANT for an exten ien of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writing to R C. CONSULTANT shall supply to RTC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the adsiitiona.l time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. T s all provide CONSUL TANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable ';me after receipt of a request. 

AR'RICLE 15 - GENERAL PROVISIO S 

15.1. 

RTC and CONSULTA T bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the suooe sors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither RTC nor 
CONSUL TANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than RTC and 
CONSULTANT. 

15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSULTANT's professional services, and CONSULTANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 



15.3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATIO SHIP OF PARTlES 

CONSUL TANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSUL TANT is not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits RTC provides to its employees. CONSUL TANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for othe ,s, while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in d)tect conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being provided by CONSULTA 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or breach of a provision in this greement hall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provision in this Agreement and no aive11 i valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An extension of th._e ti , e for.performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an extension of time for, the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of a is b · n i.ag upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, success0rs ~d assign 

15.6. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

A. CONSUL:fANT ,shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government la,ws regulations and ordinances. CONSULT ANT shall be 
respon jbJe for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under tliis Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSUL TANT shall 
furnish RTC eert1ficates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSUL TANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULT ANT does engage in such public work, CONSUL TANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 

to RTG: . 

. 



the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CO TINULNG OBLIGATION 

CONSUL TANT agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONS ULT ANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSUL TANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render complete perfonnance. However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement if it considers the deat or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to &ffect G : SULTANT's ability to 

15.10. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 

satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed ancl eonstrued in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nevada. The exclusrve venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit o he j rlsdiction of that District Court. 

I 5.11. ATTORNEYS FEES 

In the event of ad ispute l;,etwee . tile parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction the pr.evailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable att@rneys' fees. 

CONSULTANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSULT ANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: _____________ _ 

Adam Spear 
RTC Director of Legal Services 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

Amy Cummings, Interim Executive Director 



EXHIBIT A-1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTIONCONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
SUN VALLEY BOULEVARD PROJECT NO. 0512014 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICE 

2.1.A - EE Construction Services - Based on the Sun Valley Boulevard Transportation 
Improvement Project 75% design plans and specifications prepared by Jacobs dated December 
2019, CONSULT ANT will provide the following: 

2.1.AA. Contract Administration 

I. Provide contract administration services as follows; 

• Review and· p t,vide recommendations on contractor's construction 
schedule and work progress 

• Review aonstruction for acceptance and/or mitigation 
• P-rovide verification and approval of contractor's monthly pay request 
• Super.vise the inspection, surveying and material testing activities 
• Provide recommendations to the RTC for any necessary construction 

changes due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 
• Facilitate weekly construction meetings 
• Track and distribute requests for infonnation to the Design Engineer 
• Prepare letter of substantial completion 

2.1.BB. Construction Surveying 

Provide construction staking as follows: 

• One set of stakes for the roadway improvements consisting of offset and, 
when required, line stakes for the proposed vertical and horizontal roadway 
centerline alignments, edge of pavement, retaining walls, guardrail, and 

1 



NDOT barrier rail. Construction stakes will be set at angle points, grade 
breaks, radius points, begin and end of horizontal and vertical curves, high 
and low points of vertical curves, and points on line not to exceed 100 
station increments on tangent runs and 50' increments along curves. 

• One set of stakes for the curb and gutter and related improvements 
consisting of offset and, when required, line stakes for the proposed valley 
gutter, curb and gutter, median curbs, sidewalk, driveway approaches, and 
pedestrian ramp improvements. Stakes will be set at angle points, grade 
breaks, radius points, pedestrian ramp ¼ points around curb returns, 
centerline pedestrian ramps, begin and end of driveways, begin and end of 
curves, and points on-line not to exceed 50' station increments. 

• One set of offset stakes for storm drains including proposed manholes, 
connection points, pipe ends, drop inlets, catch basins, and headwall 
comers. 

• Painted marks for the proposed striping consisting of paint marks at the 
beginning of striping, 50' intervals on tangent tuns angle points, end of 
striping, begin of curves, 25' intervals al0ng curv~s, end of curves, and 
radius points. 

• Location of proposed signage consi ting of a stake set at the actual location 
of the proposed sign based, upon -stat~ . o ana offset. Stakes will delineate 
the type of sign proposecl or eaoh location and will correspond to the sign 
schedule referenced on the' P.Jan>'Set. 

• Location of existing tirties o be raised upon completion of paving, 
including water. and g s alve risers utility vaults, and sewer and storm 
drain manholes w.i1 be stakea to facilitate raising to finish grade. 

• Two roa way survey manuments will be referenced in four directions and 
reset upo:n e0mpJetion of paving improvements. 

2.1.CC. 

1. Frr0vrae I .spector. Provide one full time inspector during all construction 
activities: IO 10-hour work days and a 117 working day contract period are 
anticipated. This inspector will: 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Monitor the work performed by the Contractor and verify that the 

work is in accordance with the plans and specifications 
• Assist in problem resolution with the RTC, contractor personnel, 

utility agencies, the public and others 
• Prepare daily inspection reports, submitted weekly to RTC and 

CC'd to the appropriate govemmentjurisdiction(s). 
• Provide quantity reports and assist in contractor's monthly progress 

payments 
• Provide verification of the distribution of public relation notices 

required to be delivered by the contractor 

2 



• Assist in preparation of the Punch List 
• Maintain a field blueline set of drawings to incorporate contractor 

record drawing mark-ups 

2. Provide Additional Inspector During Paving Operations. Provide additional 
inspector during mainline paving days to monitor plantmix bituminous 
pavement placement and in-place density tests. 100 hours of field inspection 
and sampling and 100 hours of Nuclear Gauge time are anticipated. 

2.1.DD. Materials Testing 

I. Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(Orange Book) testing requirements. Mate 'als to be tested will include 
plantmix bituminous pavement, aggregate · ase, ative subgrade material, 
structural fill material and Portland Cement Concrete. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSUL TANT s recommendation regarding 
acceptance/mitigation of material shall be submitted promptly to the R TC 
and CC'd to appropriate governmental jurisdict1on(s). 

2. 

3. Provide Asphalt ~ ernen Testing. Sampling and testing of asphalt cement 
binder t aterial shall be in accordance with Section LOIA ASPHALT 
CEMEN"G oft e TC Special Technical Specifications. For each paving 
da}I the CO UL TANT s designated representative shall coordinate with 
and recejve asphalt cement binder samples from the designated plant 
re~resenl tive. The CONSULTANT's designated representative shall be 
present during all sampling operations. Each sample will be properly 
labele and signed off by both representatives. A sample shall be taken 
during the production of each "lot" (500 ton) of plantmix bituminous 
pavement using container no larger than a quart in size. CONSUL TANT to 
submit all asphalt cement binder samples to the Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT), Material Laboratory, for testing. All samples 
should accompany with a NDOT form titled "Transmittal for Asphalt 
Samples" to be provided by the RTC. 

4. Provide On-site Nuclear Gauge Testing & Sampling during the placement 
of aggregate base and fill materials, on-site thin-lift Nuclear Gauge testing 
& sampling for plantmix bituminous pavement placement, and on-site PCC 
testing & sampling. 640 hours of field testing are anticipated, and laboratory 
tests will include moisture density curves, Atterberg limits, and sieve 
analysis. Test frequency shall comply with the latest edition of the Orange 
Book. 

3 



5. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement Testing. Provide plantmix 
bituminous pavement tests per each "lot" (500 tons) placed. Laboratory test 
shall include extraction, aggregate gradation, specific gravity, flow & 
stability and Marshall unit weight. Reports will also include voids in total 
mix and voids filled. 

6. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement Coring and Lab Testing. Lab test 
shall include core unit weight. Test reports will include percent compaction. 

7. Provide Top Lift Longitudinal Joint Testing and Coring. Nuclear density 
testing will be performed on each side of all longitudinal joints at 200 foot 
intervals per every 1,000 foot segment. A core will be taken in every 1,000 
foot segment near the point of one of the density tests on the side of the joint 
with the lowest mean joint density. The 0'res will be tested for specific 
gravity (air voids and compaction). T ,·e est r(Wort will include a Paving 
Plan and a Data/Calculation Sheet. 

2.1.E Construction Contingency 

4 



EXHIBIT A-2 

KEY PERSONNEL 

Key personnel assigned to this project include: 

• Anna Henke, PG - Senior/Project Manager @ $185/hr 
• Angie Hueftle, PE - Principal Engineer, QA/QC @ $265/hr 
• Anna Henke, PG - Construction Manager @ $140/hr 
• Anna Henke, Dick Minto - Construction Inspection @ $125/hr 
• Erik Lee, PE & Grant Alexander, PLS (BBV) - Construction Staking 
• CME - Laboratory Services and Materials Testing 



, 

EXHIBIT A-3 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

SUN VALLEY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
Milestone Be1dn End Duration 

RTC Board Approval 03/20/2020 
NTP 03/27/2020 

Preconstruction Meetin2 05/21/2020 1 day 
Construction Notice to Proceed 06/01/2020 1 day 
Construction & Construction 

Services 
06/01/2020 11/06/2020 

~ ~ 

23 weeks 

Pro_ject Closeout 11/06/2020 11/2012020... 10 days 
/ 



E-hlbltB•1 
Coit PropoHI for Con1tructlon M1n1gem11nt Sel'Vlc•• 

sun Val lay Boull!Vlrd Projacl No D612014 
(7th Avenue tD Highland Ranch P•rkM.~ in W11hoe County) 

I I 

t,••1--· 

,_.___c:..-.~-- ,,,.-.) .... ,_ _______ ~~···-~-· ---· 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

JNRS 338 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL] 
2019-11-11 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONTACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0400. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to save and hold harmless and full)r indemnify RTC, Washoe County, City 
of Reno and City of Sparks including their electea officials officers employees, and agents 
(hereafter, "lndemnitees") from and against any, and all claims, roceedings, actions, liability and 
damages, including reasonable attorneys' ees aQd defense costs incurred in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arising 0ut of the: 

B. Violation of law or any confractuaJ provisions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, francp.ises, pate ts @r other means of protecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from tlie use b the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliverable {incf uding software) supplied by CONSUL TANT under or as a result 
of this Agreement, but excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSUL TANT. 

CONSUL TANT further agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the 
Indemnitees from and against any and all Damages arising out the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULT ANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSUL TANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 



property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 
If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULTANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSULT ANT is legally responsible, CONSULT ANT shall reimburse the Indemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the Indemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSUL TANT' S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall either (1) secure for the lndemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by proct (mg a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-infringing. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are separate and severao e and it is the intent of the Parties hereto 
that in the event any provision of this Agreement sh0u c!I be tletermined by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, voidable or too restri · · e fa any reason whatsoever, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain va id a a b · aing upon said Parties. It is also understood 
and agreed that in the event any provisio , ou Q e considered, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, to be void because it impose a ·eater obligation on CONSUL TANT than is 
permitted by law, such court may re , Jl_Ce ancl efo m such provisions to limitations which are 
deemed reasonable and enforceable by saia ~ lit. 

RTC project, CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types-and limits,as Glescribed below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which ay arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULT A.NJ: its subconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSUL TANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSUL TANT shall furnish RTC with a certificate(s) of insurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 



notice of cancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSULT ANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to R TC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten (10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSUL TANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS&SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSUL TANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsu tants (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause uos e1 . Joyed by CONSUL TANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limits 0f the ty~es specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits each sh 11 ii elude the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additiona 'nsureds under its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements statea erein, without requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional in ureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability m{lint-ained oy Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for a Y. applieable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is @ A TB · . If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the @p actor Con actor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contractor. hen requested by RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates of insurance evidencing coverage for each subconsultant. 
CONSULTANT need not requi~e its n0n.-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability insurance. 

-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-i sar.ed retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 



8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULT ANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
ofNevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSUL TANT fails to furnish the required certificate er fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right 6ut not t e obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. 

such insurance, or as a waive. 
date. 

D. By requiring insurance herein does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to pr:0tect CONSULTANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation ,n CONSULTANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
R TC in this contract. 

E. If CONSULTAN~ liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit ofnot less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 



products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07 /04 or CG 20 33 07 /04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to RTC or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSULTANT's insurer shall e11dorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necess·ary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1 00-0,000 ac accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including ©Wned hired, d non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01 CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability covera e for all 0wnecl leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept uto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULT A Ttl@es ot own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSUL TANT waives all rights aga · st RTC, its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent tl1ese d ages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtainea by CONSUL TANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKE · 'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSULTANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSULTANT, and any subconsultants, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State ofNevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 



CONSULT ANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSULTANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSUL TANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSUL TANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain professional liability insuranee appl:i g to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of the scope o' CQN UL TANT' S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not les than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULTANT shall maintain professj0nal liability insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a claims maae' or. 'claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extendeasrep0:titing period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of March 20, 2020, by and between 
the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Nichols Consultants 
Engineers, CHTD ("CONSULT ANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC selected CONSUL TANT from its qualified list for Civil Engineering Design 
and Construction Management Services to perform construction management of the Sun Valley 
Boulevard Project from 7th Avenue to Highland Ranch Parkway in Washoe County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 - TERM AND E GAGEMENT 

1.1. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through December 
31, 2022, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

1.2. CONSULT ANT will perform the work using the project team identified in Exhibit A. Any 
changes to the project team must oe approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

1.3. CONSULTANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act ofany government, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control ofCONSULTANT. 

1 .4. CONSULT ANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSUL TANT. If CONSUL TANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSUL TANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order, CONS ULT ANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 



ARTlCLE 2 - SERVlCES OF CO SUL TANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF ERVICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

2.2. SCH EDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3. CO . TINGEN CY 

Contingency line items identified in the scope of services are for miscellaneous increases 
within the scope of work. Prior to the use of any contingency amounts, CONSUL TANT 
shall provide a letter to RTC's Project Manager detailing the need, scope, and not-to
exceed budget for the proposed work. Work to be paid for out of contingency shall proceed 
only with the RTC Project Manager's written approval. 

2.4. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the right to exercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exhibit A. CONSULT ANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. RTC win review and. approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSULTANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSUL TANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or· firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.5. ADDITIONAL SERVICE 

CONSULTANT will provide additional services when agreed to in writing by RTC and 
CONSULTANT. 

2.6. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSUL TANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 



responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

Any sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULTANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of this Agreement. All test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number. 

2.7. ERRORS A D OMlSSIO S 

CONSULT ANT shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULT ANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSUL TANT also agrees that if any error or omission is found, CONSUL TANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correption~ at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSULTANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULTANTmay be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 - COMPENSATION 

3 .1. CONSUL TANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B-2. RTC shaH ilot be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as 
provided in Exhibit B-1. 

3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B-1. CONSUL TANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSUL TANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Services (Tasks 2.1.A to 2.1.D) $568,113.10 
Construction Contingency (2.E) $30.000.00 
Total Not-to-Exceed Amount $598,113.10 

3.3 . For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 

http:598,113.10
http:30.000.00
http:568,113.10


and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSULT ANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than 105% of the amounts billed to CONSUL TANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, except: (1) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSUL TANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULT ANT' s indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTICLE 4 - INVOICI G 

4.1. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com. R.TG's paxmentterms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be pa· d a t e rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are not·paid within thirty (30) days 
ofreceipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of an¥, d"sagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (36, days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RT . 

4.3. CONSULTANT shall maintain complete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Opon request, CO SUL TANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall have the righ_t to inspect and copy such records. 

5.1. Upon request and wit out cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all pertinent 
information that is :reasonably available to RTC including surveys, reports and any other 
data relative to design and construction. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSUL TANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSUL TANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULT ANT prior to the Agreement is excluded from this requirement. 

mailto:accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com


CONSUL TANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULTANT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. CONSULTANT represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

6.3. CONSUL TANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or pl'© esses used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSULTANT agrees that all reports, communications el@etronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or pr a.res in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential mate ial and sh ,) not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of R ; provided however, that CONSULT ANT may 
refer to this scope of work in connection , ith its promotional literature in a professional 
and commercially reasonable manner. The rovisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that co es into }le public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not rest ,•ct CONShJL · ANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to pro¥i,de i armation or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative age ey or other en ity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSUL 'A tQ defend itself from any suit or claim. 

7.1. CO TRACTTERM1N.AiTION FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSUL TANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULT ANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULT ANT is in 
default. CONSULT ANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULTANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULT ANT, R TC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSULT ANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 



7.2. CO TRACT TERMINATION FOR CONVE IENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSUL TANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSUL TANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSUL TANT. If CONSUL TANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULT ANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE 

8.1. CONSULTANT shall not commence any work or pe -mit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/war re,qurred by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSULT ANT shall obtain all types and amounfs of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisjon set ·0rth ti erein. 

9 .1. CONSULT ANT' s obligation under his provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend o ani)' lia ' it af RTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RT€ roperty. 

ARTICLE 10 - EQlJALE MPLOYME T OPPORTUNITY 

10.1. During the performance o this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any emplo){:ee t>J:: ap licant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSULT ANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSUL TANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

10.2. CONSUL TANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULT ANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 



10.3. CONSULT ANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 11 - RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

11.1. EGOTJA TED RESOLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

11.2. MEDIATION 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiat~d resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing 0f tne dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the p ,ies may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dis • ute er elaim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other patcy s receipt or cleemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agre' <:f a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree up • a me · ator within ten ( I 0) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party, sha 1 select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the I ed' ator. .t,. ediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification e forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the 'Ru es Go · em ing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Cou . U~ss otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall l@\{e com~ ete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to b>' the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty, ~~J)) days ollowing appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, un]es otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 



11.4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12 - PROJECT MANAGERS 

12.1. RTC's Project Manager is Maria Paz Fernandez or such other person as is later designated 
in writing by RTC. RTC's Project Manager has authority to act as RTC's representative 
with respect to the performance of this Agreement. 

12.2. CONSULTANT' Project Manager is Angela Hueftle or such other person as is later 
designated in writing by CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT' s Project Manager has 
authority to act as CONSULT ANT' s representative with ·espect to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

13.1. 

RTC: 

ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

Amy Cummings 
Interim Exec tive Director 

~ gela Hueftle 
Prmcipal Engineer 

CE 
1885 S. Arlington Ave, Suite 111 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775) 329-4955 

CONSUL TANT: 

ARTICLE 14 - DELAYS IN PERFORMANCE 

14.1 . TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by R TC' s Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 



14.2. UNA VOfDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSUL TANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSULTANT's performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSUL TANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSULTANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. OTIFICATION OF DELAYS 

CONSULTANT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSUL TANT has knowledge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise becomes aware that CONSU ~ A T will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (10) working day. thereafter, CONSUL TANT shall 
provide such notice to RTC, in writing, furnishing as m eh cfetail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REQUEST FOR EXTENSION 

Any request by CONSULTANT for an eKtens10 of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writing: to , C. CONSULTANT shall supply to RTC 
documentation to substantiate andjus · th.e aa,cJ.itional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised sch . e. T '~all provide CONSULTANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable ·. ne a e eceipt of a request. 

15.1. 

party and to the sue.oessors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither RTC nor 
CONSUL TANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than R TC and 
CONSUL TANT. 

15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONS ULT ANT' s professional services, and CONSULT ANT' s 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 



15.3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATIO SHIP OF PARTI ES 

CONSULTANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSUL TANT is not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits R TC provides to its employees. CONSULT ANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for othe,r,s while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in direct conflict as determined by 
RTC, with services being provided by CONSUL TA ro RT , . 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

15.6. 

A. with all applicable federal , state and local 
government laws egulations and ordinances. CONSULTANT shall be 
responsible fer obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under t ·s Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish RT certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSUL TANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULT ANT does engage in such public work, CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 



the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CONTINUING OBLJGA TJON 

CONSULT ANT agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONSUL TANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSUL TANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render complete performance. However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement ifit considers the dea or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to affect 00 SUL TANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreement 

15.10. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 

The provisions of this Agreement shall b govemed an • construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nevada. The exclusive ven\le and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Jud10ia:l District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submitto he j risdiction of that District Court. 

15.11. ATTORNEYS FEES 

RED BY NEVADA SENATE BILL 27 (2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSULT ANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: ___ ____ ____ ____ _ 
Adam Spear 
RTC Director of Legal Services 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 



Contract Administration 

EXHIBIT A-1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTIONCONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
SUN VALLEY BOULEVARD PROJECT NO. 0512014 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICE 

2.1.A - EE Construction Services - Based on the Sun Valley Boulevard Transportation 
Improvement Project 75% design plans and specifications prepared by Jacobs dated December 
2019, CONSULTANT will provide the following: 

2.1.AA. 

• Review 6 pr._0:vide recommendations on contractor's construction 
sehedu e and work progress 

• Review onstruction for acceptance and/or mitigation 
Provide verification and approval of contractor's monthly pay request 

• Supe.r;vise the inspection, surveying and material testing activities 
• Provide recommendations to the RTC for any necessary construction 

changes due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 
• Facilitate weekly construction meetings 
• Track and distribute requests for information to the Design Engineer 
• Prepare letter of substantial completion 

2.1.BB. Construction Surveying 

Provide construction staking as follows: 

• One set of stakes for the roadway improvements consisting of offset and, 
when required, line stakes for the proposed vertical and horizontal roadway 
centerline alignments, edge of pavement, retaining walls, guardrail, and 

I 



NDOT barrier rail. Construction stakes will be set at angle points, grade 
breaks, radius points, begin and end of horizontal and vertical curves, high 
and low points of vertical curves, and points on line not to exceed 100' 
station increments on tangent runs and 50' increments along curves. 

• One set of stakes for the curb and gutter and related improvements 
consisting of offset and, when required, line stakes for the proposed valley 
gutter, curb and gutter, median curbs, sidewalk, driveway approaches, and 
pedestrian ramp improvements. Stakes will be set at angle points, grade 
breaks, radius points, pedestrian ramp ¼ points around curb returns, 
centerline pedestrian ramps, begin and end of driveways, begin and end of 
curves, and points on-line not to exceed 50' station increments. 

• One set of offset stakes for storm drains including proposed manholes, 
connection points, pipe ends, drop inlets, catch basins, and headwall 
comers. 

• Painted marks for the proposed stripin e.onsisting of paint marks at the 
beginning of striping, 50' intervals on tangent runs, angle points, end of 
striping, begin of curves, 25' intervals aleng cur es end of curves, and 
radius points. 

• Location of proposed signage consisting of a stake set at the actual location 
of the proposed sign base upoR station ai1a offset. Stakes will delineate 
the type of sign proposed for eac loca fa and will correspond to the sign 
schedule referenced on the pl et. 

• Location of existing u~ll"tie to be raised upon completion of paving, 
including wate and gas valve risers, utility vaults, and sewer and storm 
drain manholes wil: be stakea o facilitate raising to finish grade. 

• Two roadway su ey monuments will be referenced in four directions and 
reset upon eoropletion of paving improvements. 

2.1.CC. lnsp~ction 

1. Provide Inspector. Provide one full time inspector during all construction 
activitie~. IO 10-hour work days and a 117 working day contract period are 
anticipated. This inspector will: 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Monitor the work performed by the Contractor and verify that the 

work is in accordance with the plans and specifications 
• Assist in problem resolution with the RTC, contractor personnel, 

utility agencies, the public and others 
• Prepare daily inspection reports, submitted weekly to RTC and 

CC'd to the appropriate governmentjurisdiction(s). 
• Provide quantity reports and assist in contractor's monthly progress 

payments 
• Provide verification of the distribution of public relation notices 

required to be delivered by the contractor 

2 



• Assist in preparation of the Punch List 
• Maintain a field blueline set of drawings to incorporate contractor 

record drawing mark-ups 

2. Provide Additional Inspector During Paving Operations. Provide additional 
inspector during mainline paving days to monitor plantmix bituminous 
pavement placement and in-place density tests. J 00 hours of field inspection 
and sampling and J 00 hours of Nuclear Gauge time are anticipated. 

2.1.DD. Materials Testing 

I. Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(Orange Book) testing requirements. Mate •i Is to be tested will include 
plantmix bituminous pavement, aggregate base native subgrade material, 
structural fill material and Portland C::emeq Concrete. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSULT A T ' ecommendation regarding 
acceptance/mitigation of materials shall be SU,_bmi ed promptly to the RTC 
and CC'd to appropriate governmental jurisdicti n(s). 

2. 

3. Provide Asphalt -ement esting. Sampling and testing of asphalt cement 
binder . a erial shall be in accordance with Section 1.0 I A ASPHALT 
CEMEN'E oft e R'FC s Special Technical Specifications. For each paving 
day the C© SULTANT's designated representative shall coordinate with 
and receive asphalt cement binder samples from the designated plant 
Fepresentative. The CONSULTANT's designated representative shall be 
present during all sampling operations. Each sample will be properly 
labele and signed off by both representatives. A sample shall be taken 
during the production of each "lot" (500 ton) of plantmix bituminous 
pavement using container no larger than a quart in size. CONSUL TANT to 
submit all asphalt cement binder samples to the Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT), Material Laboratory, for testing. All samples 
should accompany with a NDOT form titled "Transmittal for Asphalt 
Samples" to be provided by the RTC. 

4. Provide On-site Nuclear Gauge Testing & Sampling during the placement 
of aggregate base and fill materials, on-site thin-lift Nuclear Gauge testing 
& sampling for plantmix bituminous pavement placement, and on-site PCC 
testing & sampling. 640 hours of field testing are anticipated, and laboratory 
tests will include moisture density curves, Atterberg limits, and sieve 
analysis. Test frequency shall comply with the latest edition of the Orange 
Book. 

3 



5. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement Testing. Provide plantmix 
bituminous pavement tests per each "lot" (500 tons) placed. Laboratory test 
shall include extraction, aggregate gradation, specific gravity, flow & 
stability and Marshall unit weight. Reports will also include voids in total 
mix and voids filled. 

6. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement Coring and Lab Testing. Lab test 
shall include core unit weight. Test reports will include percent compaction. 

7. Provide Top Lift Longitudinal Joint Testing and Coring. Nuclear density 
testing will be performed on each side of all longitudinal joints at 200 foot 
intervals per every 1,000 foot segment. A core will be taken in every 1,000 
foot segment near the point of one of the dens'ty tests on the side of the joint 
with the lowest mean joint density. The cares will be tested for specific 
gravity (air voids and compaction). The test ep·ort will include a Paving 
Plan and a Data/Calculation Sheet. 

2.1.E Construction Contingency 

This is a contingency for misce aneous ·ncreases within the scope of this contract 
in the performance of services un er T~ks 2.1.AA. to 2.1.DD. If CONSUL TANT 
determines that it is necess~ to pe1iform work to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSULTANT shall provid a letter etailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any proposed :work. Work under this task shall proceed only with the 
RTC Project Manager's prio Written approval. 

4 



EXHIBIT A-2 

KEY PERSONNEL 

Key personnel assigned to this project include: 

• Anna Henke, PG- Senior/Project Manager@ $185/hr 
• Angie Hueftle, PE - Principal Engineer, QA/QC @ $265/hr 
• Anna Henke, PG -Construction Manager@ $140/hr 
• Anna Henke, Dick Minto - Construction Inspection @ $125/hr 
• Erik Lee, PE & Grant Alexander, PLS (BBV) - Construction Staking 
• CME- Laboratory Services and Materials Testing 



EXHIBIT A-3 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

SUN VALLEY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
Milestone Bee:in End Duration 

RTC Board Aooroval 03/20/2020 
NTP 03/27/2020 

Preconstruction Meetine: 05/21/2020 1 day 
Construction Notice to Proceed 06/01/2020 1 day 
Construction & Construction 

Services 
06/01/2020 11/06/2020 

~ 

23 weeks 

Pro.iect Closeout 11/06/2020 1 l l20/2020.. 10 days 
<, 



ElthlbltB-1 
Cost P~pa-•1 far Canstruc:Uan Mana11em11nt S1!1'Vlc:11 

Sun Valley Baull!Vard P~J.ctNa 0612014 
(7th Awnu• to Highland Ranc:h PIrkway In Wa•ha• County) 

I . 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

[NRS 338 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL] 
2019-11-11 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONT ACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0400. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to save and hold harmless and fu lly indemni fy RTC, Washoe County, City 
of Reno and City of Sparks including their electea offic'als o . cers, employees, and agents 
(hereafter, " Indemnitees") from and against any and a ll ~laims proceedings, actions, liability and 
damages, including reasonable attorneys' ee and defense costs incurred in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arisin o:ut o toe: 

or intentional misconduct of CONSUL TANT 

B. Violation of law or anY, co. itJ·actual provisions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, franchises pate •ts 0r other means of protecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from -e use by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliverable (in'CI ud ing software) supplied by CONSULT ANT under or as a result 
of this Agreement, but excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSULTANT. 

CONSULTANT further agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the 
Indemnitees from and against any and all Damages arising out the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULT ANT or CONSUL TANT' s agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSUL TANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSUL TANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 



property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 
If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULTANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSUL TANT is legally responsible, CONSUL TANT shall reimburse the Indemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the lndemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSUL TANT, at its sole expense, shall either (I) secure for the lndemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by proc ring a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become on-infringing. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

Prior to the start of any work on a RTC project, CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types,and Jim its as described below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property w 1ich may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULT · J: its subconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSULTANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSULT ANT shall furnish R TC with a certificate(s) of insurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 



notice of cancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSULT ANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten (10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSUL TANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSUL TANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsul ts referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause Subs em- toyed by CONSUL TANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limit 0.f ffie tY,pes specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each shall inGfode the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insureds un er its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stated er in, witheut requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional i 1sureds a d any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained 1:5y Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for a )( app icable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is @REA T R" If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the 0ntracto , Contractor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contrsacfor-. hen requested by RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates 0f insurance evidencing coverage for each subconsultant. 
CONSULT ANT need not require its non-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability insurance. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 



8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
ofNevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSUL TANT fails to furnish the required certificate 0r fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right 1;,ut n t the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSUL TANT's expense. 

C. 

such insurance, or as a waiveF 
date. 

D. By requiring insurance herein RT does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to pre ect CONSULTANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as limitation ,n CONSULTANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
R TC in this conti:ae.,t. 

E. If CONSULTANT- S liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (COL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit ofnot less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such COL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

COL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 0 I 04 13 ( or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 



products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07104 or CG 20 33 07 /04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to RTC or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSULTANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the P. , !icy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULT ANT shall maintain automobile liability a d 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $) 000,p0 each · cident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including 0 ned hire , 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form C CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for a 1 0wn , leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept auto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSUL TA q' doe not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSULTANT waives all rights.aga· stRTC, its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability ins ranee obtainecl by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORK.ER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSULT ANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSULTANT, and any subconsultants, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State of Nevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 



CONSULT ANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSULT ANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSUL TANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSUL TANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain professional liability insuran e; apply" g to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of tbe scope of CONSULTANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not less ban $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULTANT shall maintain professjonal liab"lity insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a c aims made' o 'claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extendeo eeortrng period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agree e t. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 3.4 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Dale Keller, P.E. 
Engineer II AmyCummings, ICP, LEED A 

Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Reno Consolidated 21-01 
Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Eastern Sierra Engineering, P.C. ("ESE") 
to provide design services and optional engineering during construction for the Reno Consolidated 
21-01 Project in an amount not to exceed $487,080, authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director 
to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement (see Attachment A) with ESE is for professional design services for the Reno 
Consolidated 21-01 Project in the amount of$250,065, and optional engineering during construction 
services (EDC) in the amount of $237,015. The Project includes rehabilitation and/or reconstruction 
of the following streets: Lund Lane from Wedekind Road to Northetowne Lane; Armstrong Lane 
from Susileen Drive to Yuma Lane; and Yuma Lane from Armstrong Lane to Hunter Lake Drive. 

ESE was selected from the Civil Engineering Design and Construction Management Services List 
as a qualified firm to perform engineering, construction management and quality assurance. 
Negotiation ofESE's scope, schedule and budget indicated the amount for design services is within 
the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2021 Roadway Reconstruction Project appropriations will be included in the FY 2021 Budget 
and Program of Projects as part of the Annual Pavement Preservation Program. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Reno Consolidated 21-01 Project PSA 
RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page2 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

June 20, 2019 Approved the Qualified Consultant List for Engineering Design and 
Construction Management Services 

ADVISORY COMMlTTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of March 20, 2020, by and between 
the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Eastern Sierra 
Engineering, P.C. ("CONSULTANT"). 

WTTNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC delivers various rehabilitation/reconstruction projects as part of its Annual 
Pavement Preservation Program; and 

WHEREAS, as part of that program, RTC will rehabilitate and/or re~onstruct the following streets: 
Lund Lane from Wedekind Road to Northetowne Lane; Armstrong Lane from Susileen Drive to 
Yuma Lane; and Yuma Lane from Armstrong Lane to Hunter Lake Drive (collectively, the 
"Project"); and · 

WHEREAS, the Project will include roadway recol'.ls.truction, sidewalk, curb and gutter 
replacement as necessary, correction of localized drainage deficiencies, reconstruction of existing 
handicapped ramps, reconstruction of driveways, preparation of easement documentation, and 
other incidentals necessary for the rehabilitation of the streets within the Project Limits; and 

WHEREAS, RTC has selected CONSULTANT to perform certain engineering, design, 
construction management, and quality assu.rance services in connection with the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, d.o hereby agree as follows: 

ART1CLE 1-TERM AND ENGAGEMENT 

1.1. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through March 31, 
2022, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

1.2. CONSULT ANT will perform the work using the project team identified in the Proposal. 
Any changes to the project team must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

I .3. CONSUL TANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any government, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSULTANT. 

I .4. CONSULTANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSULT ANT. If CONSULT ANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSUL TANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 

-1-



payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order, CONSULT ANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

ARTICLE2 - SERVICE OF CONSULTA T 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit 

2.2. 

2.3. CONTINGENCY 

2.4. OPTIONS 

RTC shall hav.e the r:ighl' to exercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identifiecl in Exhi it A. CONSULT ANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. RTC will review and approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULT ANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services when agreed to in writing by R TC and 
CONSULTANT. 

-2-



2.6. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSULT ANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSUL TANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

Any sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized aecrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or mater· s testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. · roof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. lfcertification ex ires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shal ~otify RTC'immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot he agre d upan by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULT ANT shall provide 01dY, Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified persbnneJ to J,?erform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of th is A:gr.eement. II test reports shall be signed by a licensed 

2.7. 

NAQTC tester and notated witn histhe license number. 

CONSULT A NT sh al I witl 0ut additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or om·ssion caused by CONSULTANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSUL TANT a so a0 ~es that if any error or omission is found, CONSULT ANT will 
expeditiously make tlie- necessary correction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by R TC, and not by CONSULT ANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULT ANT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 - COMPEN A TJON 

3. I. CONSULT ANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULT ANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 

-3-



must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULTANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Design Services (Tasks 2.1.A to 2.1.D.3) $230,065.00 
Contingency - Design Services {Task 2.1.D.4) $20,000.00 
Optional Construction Services (Task 2.1.E to 2.1.I) $217,015.00 
Contingency- Construction ervices (Task 2.1.J) $20,000.00 
Total Not-to-Exceed Amount $487,080.00 

3.3. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSULT ANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSULTANT, will be billed at a mutua11y agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than 105% of the amounts billed to €ONSUL TANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for. preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, except· '(1) if Och l"tlgation costs are incurred by 
CONSULT ANT in defending its work o.i: services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSUL A~T s indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by R C hall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

4.1. CONSULTANT shall s brnit onthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to acco 1tspaya le@rtcwashoe.com . RTC's payment terms are 30 days 
after the recei t oft 1e inv@ice. Simple interest will be paid at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month 0 all in:voices approved byRTC that are not paid within thirty (30) days 
ofreceipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by R TC. 

4.3. CONSULTANT shall maintain complete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon request, CONSULT ANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall have the right to inspect and copy such records. 

ARTICLE 5 - ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND PROPERTY 

5.1. Upon request and without cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all pertinent 
information that is reasonably available to RTC including surveys, reports and any other 
data relative to design and construction. 

-4-

mailto:le@rtcwashoe.com
http:487,080.00
http:20,000.00
http:217,015.00
http:20,000.00
http:230,065.00


5.2. 

6.1. 

6.2. 

6.3. 

6.4. 

RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULTANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6-OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULT ANT prior to the Agreement is excluded from this requirement. 
CONSUL TANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual prope t¥ rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreeme . t and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULT ANT in accordance th t e, tenns of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall upon reques aJs0 be provided to RTC. 

CONSUL TANT represents that it has secured all neces.sar~ l'lcenses consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectu propeljy, in ucling computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agre _ne t, t a it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that i as th right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

:i ing from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked erials equipment, devices, or processes used on or incorporated 
in the services and mate · als gr,odu ed under this Agreement. 

CONSULT ANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, a, d iuf©,rtnaf on that it obtains or prepares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall 15e treatecl as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior writfen consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSULTANT may 
refer to this scope of work in connection with its promotional literature in a professional 
and commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULT ANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULT ANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

-5-



ARTICLE 7 - TERMINATION 

7. I. CONTRACT TERM INA TJON FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSULT ANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULT ANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULT ANT is in 
default. CONSULTANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULTANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not th,e fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSUL TANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSULTANT to continue work, or treat the term in t" en as a termination for 

CONSULT ANT when it is in R TC' s best interest. CONSULT ANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, ancl p o.fit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall p omptly s.ubmit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULTANT. If CONSbJL TA T has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will accoun :er the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 

7.2. 

convenience. 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in iWhole in pa t any time by written notice to 

directs. 

8.1. CONSUL TA not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any ,vork until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements hav • een met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/work required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSULT ANT shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions set forth therein. 

ARTICLE 9 - HOLD HARMLES 

9.1. CONSULTANT's obligation under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend to any liability ofRTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property. 

-6-



ARTICLE IO - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

10.1. During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSUL TANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSULT ANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

10.2. CONSULTANT will, in all solicitations or advertiseme ts for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULT ANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age., disab "J,i,tl_y, or national origin. 

10.3. CONSULT ANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so,~lla such p,rovis"0ns will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

11.1. EGOTIATED RESOLUTI0N 

11.2. MEDIA TJON 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute or claim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other party's receipt or deemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upon a mediator within ten (10) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification set forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 

-7-



mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

11.4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parti shall g11oceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claims all net constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

12.1. RTC's Project Manager is Dale Kelle, . ~. e such other person as is later designated in 
writing by RTC. RTC's Project Mana er has au'thority to act as RTC's representative with 
respect to the performance o~ his Agreeme t. 

12.2. CONSULTANT' Projee anage 1s Shawn Jenkins, P.E. or such other person as is later 
designated in writing ~Y. CO SU TANT. CONSULTANT's Project Manager has 
authority to act as GONS{fili f,.:.\NT's representative with respect to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

13.1 . Notices required under this Agreement shall be given as follows : 

RTC: Amy Cummings 
Interim Executive Director 
Dale Keller 
RTC Project Manager 
Regional Transportation Commission 
1105 Terminal Way 
Reno, Nevada 89502 
(775)335-1827 

-8-



CONSUL TANT: Shawn Jenkins, P .E. 
Principal Engineer 
Eastern Sierra Engineering, P.C. 
4515 Towne Drive 
Reno, Nevada 89521 
(775) 828-7220 

ARTICLE 14- DELAYS IN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be vali unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under his Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this greement for not less than the 
number of days CONSULTANT was ex:cusabl dela ed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably exRec ed t0 occur in connection with or during 
CONSULT ANT' s performance, is no. Gause · directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CON . 'IAN is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSULTANT to miss spec: 1ed com}'.?lef · n dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 

14.3. 

against by contractual or legal mean . 

CONSULT ANT shall notiey TC as soon as CONSULT ANT has knowledge that an event 
has occurred 0t otlierwise becomes aware that CONSUL TANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work Within ten (10) working days thereafter, CONSULT ANT shall 
provide such notice o RTC in writing, furnishing as much detail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REQUEST FOR EXTENSIO 

Any request by CONSULTANT for an extension of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writing to R TC. CONSULT ANT shall supply to R TC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the additional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. R TC shall provide CONSULT ANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable time after receipt of a request. 

-9-



ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

15.1. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

RTC and CONSULT ANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither R TC nor 
CONSULT ANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than R TC and 
CONSULT ANT. 

15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSULTANT's professional serviees and CONSULTANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned w1tliout the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15.3. SEVERABILITY 

15.4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

CONSUL TAN is an inde(1?endent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSULT A i not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance p ans or other benefits RTC provides to its employees. CONSULT ANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for others while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
R TC, with services being provided by CONSULT ANT to R TC. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or breach of a provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provision in this Agreement and no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An extension of the time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an extension of time for the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

-10-



15.6. REGULATORYCOMPLIANCE 

A. CONSUL TANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSUL TANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSULT ANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSUL TANT does engage in such public work, CONSUL TANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representat ions or nder. randings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations d undertakings are set forth herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement consti'fi1tes the'entireunderstanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

15.9. 

CONSULTAN agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for an,, prilrc· pal or employee of CONSULTANT to render the services 
required under tnis Agr ment, neither CONSULT ANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any oh>Hgation to render complete performance. However, in such event, 
R TC may terminate this Agreement if it considers the death or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to affect CONSULTANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreement. 

15.10. APPLICABLE LAW AND VE UE 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nevada. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

-11-



15.11. ATTORNEYS' FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

15.12. CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY NEVADA SE ATE BI LL 27 (2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSULT ANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and e~ cute 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

Adam Spear 
RTC Director of Legal Services 

REGI0NAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
0}: W A:SHOE COUNTY 

Amy Cummings, Interim Executive Director 

EASTERN SIERRA ENGINEERING, P.C. 

By: ____ _____ ____ _ 

Shawn Jenkins, P.E. Principal Engineer 

-12-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

RENO CONSOLIDATED 21-01 
(YUMA LANE, ARMSTRONG LANE, LUND LANE) 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This will generally consist of the following tasks: 

2.1.A. Investigation of Existing Conditions 

1. Condition Survey. 

a. CONSULT ANT will visually evaluate and document the condition 
of the existing pavement to include '(ijt°gue cracking, potholes, 
rutting, transverse crackin and ravelin~ A subjective measure of 
ride quality will als 15€ abtained. 

b. 

C. 

2. Traffic Da a. Traffic data is not anticipated to be needed for this project and 
is no included with this scope of services. 

3. Right-of-Way Mapping and Engineering Services 

a. CONSULT ANT will obtain record right-of-way based upon 
Washoe County GIS information. The record right-of-way 
information will be shown on the project plans. No further 
resolution of the roadway right-of-way is included in this task. 

Deliverables - Record right-of-way in CAD format 

b. It is estimated approximately five (5) parcels will require permanent 
and/or temporary easements to construct the planned improvements. 



CONSULT ANT will perform boundary surveying including 
preparation of full Metes and Bounds descriptions of 5 individual 
parcels. This will include property record research, drafting of 
property boundaries from record descriptions, calculations of search 
coordinates for filed boundary survey, field boundary survey on 
each affected parcel, post processing and reduction of field data, 
boundary resolution based upon field findings, preparation of legal 
descriptions and exhibit maps of individual affected parcels. 
CONSULT ANT shall pull preliminary Title Reports and updates as 
necessary for each affected parcel. All R TC comments shall be 
addressed prior to recordation. 

c. It is estimated approximately fifteen (15) parcels will require 
Permission to Construct to construct the planned improvements. 
CONSULT ANT will provide an e eroachment exhibit and vesting 
deeds for each parcel for use in T ' s ciiscussion with property 
owners to acquire Permission to Ctmstruct. 

4. Test it Loca ion I entification. Information from condition surveys will 
be reviewea and locations for pavement test pits will be identified by 
CONSl.JbTA: T and reviewed and approved by the RTC. It is anticipated 
that appro imately and Five (5) test pits will be required. The primary 
objective of the test pit program will be to establish pavement, base, and 
sub grade layer thickness and material types. 

5. Geotechnical Investigation. Representative samples of the soils encountered 
will be used for testing to aid in classification and moisture content 
determination. The results of the geotechnical investigation and associated 
laboratory testing will be summarized in a written report. 

6. Backcalculation Analysis - (Not Applicable) 

7. Develop Feasible Rehabilitation/Reconstruction. CONSULT ANT will 
identify feasible pavement rehabilitation and/or reconstruction alternatives 
for the project. Among the alternatives that will be considered are: 

• Roadbed modification (reconstruction) 

2 



• Complete removal and reconstruction 

Upon completion of the geotechnical investigation, CONSUL TANT will 
meet with RTC to present feasible rehabilitation alternatives. 
CONSULT ANT will then apply the design procedures contained in the 
latest (1993) AASHTO Guide for Design of Pavement Structures to 
generate the design layer thickness associated with each pavement 
alternative. 

8. Conduct Life-Cycle Cost Analysis. (Not Applicable) 

9. Identify Optimum Rehabilitation/Reconstruction Alternative. Based upon 
practical construction considerations, CONSULT ANT will prepare the 
recommended rehabilitation or reconstructio alternative(s) for the project. 
It should be noted that because of varying onditions along the length of the 
project, there may be more than one reco 

I 0. Utility Investigation/Depiction 

a. 

b. Subsurface ti lities: CONSUL TANT will investigate and locate 
suBsw-face · iti es within the roadway right-of-way, and areas 
reason~bly,: effected in accordance with the American Society of 
Ci Jl Engineers Standard guideline for the Collection and Depiction 
S)f Ex.i~ting Subsurface Utility Data, Quality Level C. Additionally, 
CONSULT ANT will coordinate with Utility Owners to remove lids 
o surface features and document depth of utility device, or invert of 
pipe within such surface features. Deliverables will include: 
Depiction of subsurface utilities on plan sheets developed under 
Section 2.1.B, Preliminary Design. An inventory of subsurface 
utility surface features by Owner, type, location, and depth of 
feature or pipe invert. 

C. Utility coordination: Based on field investigation, CONSULT ANT 
will provide RTC a list of utility company whose utilities are likely 
to be within the project limits or reasonably affected by the project. 
R TC will issue the initial notification to the utility agencies on the 
list and CONSULT ANT will coordinate with the utility agencies for 
upcoming work, facility relocation and new installation, and to 
insure utilities likely affected by the project are drawn on the plan 
and profile, evaluate potential conflicts through field investigation, 
investigate conflict resolution strategies. 

3 



11. Geotechnical Investigation and Pavement Design Report 

Report. The findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT for all tasks 
identified in Section 2.1.A shall be submitted by report with backup 
documentation. The Geotechnical Report and pavement design shall also 
be submitted to the Local Entity if the recommended pavement section 
varies from the Entities standards. 

2.1.B. Preliminary Design 

1. Supplemental Topography. Obtain cross-sections at critical locations 
within the length of project. 

2. Mapping. Provide field topo survey o 
format for plan view at a scale of I "=20' 
the curbs along the length of the project to p ov,jde for consideration of 
improvements and grade contin ity behind the curb. As an option, 
topography at I-foot conto can b added. · inteJwal 

3. Project Coordination. Attend 1:neetings, review reports, and provide project 

4. 

coordination. 

Plans and 

5. Public Information Meeting. A presentation will be made by 
CONSULTANT and RTC to properties adjacent to the project work zone 
to discuss project limits, scope, tentative schedule, traffic controls, 
driveway access, public notification requirements, and concerns of adjacent 
properties before the plans and specifications are finalized. It is also 
assumed five (5) one-on-one meeting with local businesses/property owners 
will be required. 

6. Traffic Signal Modification Design. (Not Applicable) 

7. Drainage Design. It is the intent of the project to add curb and gutter on 
Armstrong Lane and Yuma Lane. Consultant will evaluate existing 
drainage conditions on Armstrong Lane and Yuma Lane and will size 
surface and subsurface drainage features to connect to existing subsurface 

4 



drainage infrastructure (if possible). Off-site drainage infrastructure will not 
be analyzed. 

2.1.C. Final Design 

1. Prepare Final Plans and Specifications 

a. Prepare Final Construction Plans, Contract Documents and 
Technical Specifications suitable for construction bid advertisement 
for the approved alignment in accordance with R TC standards and 
requirements. RTC will provide the boilerplate on disk in MS Word 
format. The RTC, Local Entity and Quality Control review 
comments will be incorporated into the final Plans and 
Specifications. 

Depths of existing sanitary sewer and storm drain utilities will be 
cliecked and noted on the plans if there is any reason to expect 
conflict due to vertical clearances. All located, existing 
underground utilities will be shown on the Plan Sheets accompanied 
with the following "Note: Subsurface utilities are depicted by their 
Quality Levels in accordance American Society of Civil Engineers 
Standard Guidelines for the Collection and Depiction of Existing 
Subsurface Utility Data (CI/ASCE 38-02). All utility information 
shown hereon is depicted to Quality Level "C", unless otherwise 
noted." 

The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications will 
reference the latest edition of Standard Specifications for Public 
Works Construction (Orange Book) for standard construction items. 
Technical provisions will be prepared for approved deviations from 
the Orange Book and unique construction items not adequately 
covered in the Orange Book. The final plans and specifications will 

5 



be signed and sealed by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil 
Engineer in responsible charge of preparation. Plans and 
specifications will be submitted to the RTC, Local Entity, utility 
agencies and other affected parties for review at the 50%, 90%, 
I 00%, and final stages of completion per the following: 

• 50% & 90% Plans - One 22"x34" set each to RTC and Local 
Entity, two 1 I "x I 7" sets to R TC, six 11 "x 1 7" sets to Local 
Entity, and one 11 "x 17" set each to utility agencies and other 
affected parties. 

• 90% Specifications - One set each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• I 00% Plans - One 11 "x I 7" each to R TC and Local Entity. 
• I 00% Specifications - One set each to R TC and Local Entity. 
• Final Working Plan Set - One 22 ':),i:34" set to RTC, one 11 "x 17" 

set each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• Final Working Specification Docvment - One set each to RTC 

and Local Entity, one copy in MS ord ormat of the Contract 
Documents and Tech ·cal Specific tiQ s to RTC. 

b. 

C. 

,d. CoRstructability Review. (Note Applicable) 

2. Final Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Costs and Time. 
Provide a final Engineer's opinion of probable construction costs for the 
project based on the final design and any alternatives or options. The cost 
opinion will be in the same format as the bid proposal form included in the 
contract documents. A quality control review of the cost opinion will be 
performed by the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT will also estimate 
the number of working or calendar days, as appropriate, for the construction 
of the projects. 

2.1.D. Bidding Services 

1. Plan Set and Specification Distribution. CONSULT ANT will provide R TC 
with final plans and specifications, including addenda, in Portable 
Document Format (PDF), for use in the Ebid system. 

6 



2. Pre-bid Meeting. CONSULT ANT will be available during the bidding 
process to answer technical questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. All 
questions and responses will be documented and provided to RTC. 
CONSULT ANT will prepare and provide PDF addenda, if required. All 
questions regarding legal aspects of the contract documents will be referred 
directly to RTC. CONSUL TANT will prepare and provide a PDF summary 
of the pre-bid meeting, as directed by the RTC. 

3. Bid Opening. CONSULTANT will attend the bid opening and review the 
bids received for irregularities and provide a recommendation for award. 
CONSULTANT will tabulate bid results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and 
check multiplication and addition of bid items. 

4. Design Contingency. This is a contingenc for miscellaneous increases 
within the scope of this contract in the perfo ance of services under Tasks 
2.1.A. to 2.1.D. If CONSULT ANT eter ines that it is necessary to 
perform work to be paid out of contingen0-~. CON U[ffANT shall provide 
a letter detailing the need, scope, d not-to-e ceed budget for any proposed 
work. Work under this task shalJ proceed only with the RTC Project 

2.1.E - I Construction Services (Optional - The RTC and CONSULTANT shall review 
Optional Construction Servic@s f~Jlow1 ·gt e completion of final design to determine their 
appropriateness to the project. 

2.1.E. 

• Attena the preconstruction conference 
• el'form construction coordination 
• Review and provide recommendations on contractor's traffic control 

plans 
• Review and stamp contractor's submittal for conformance to the 

contract documents, including plantmix bituminous pavement and 
Portland Cement concrete mix designs 

• Review and provide recommendations on test results 
• Review and provide recommendations on contractor's construction 

schedule and work progress 
• Review construction for acceptance and/or mitigation 
• Provide verification and approval of contractor's monthly pay request 
• Supervise the inspection, surveying and material testing activities 
• Provide recommendations to the RTC for any necessary construction 

changes due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 

7 



2.1 .F. Construction Surveying (Optional) 

Provide construction staking as follows: 

• One set of preliminary grading stakes at 50' stations denoting offsets and 
cut or fill to finish grade. This set of stakes will also delineate clearing and 
grubbing limits. 

• One set ofred tops at 50 feet centers for subgrade preparation. 
• One set of final curb and gutter stakes at 50 foot stations and 25 foot stations 

at returns. 
• One set of offset stakes for storm drains, head walls, traffic signals, and 

utility pull boxes and vaults. 
• Roadway monuments, referenced in four directions. 

2.1.G. Inspection (Optional) 

1. 

• Attend the precenstruct,ton conference 
• Monitor the work Qerformed by the Contractor and verify that the 

work is la accor ance with the plans and specifications 
• Assist in pr-0 Jem resolution with the RTC, contractor personnel, 

utili:tY agenc·es, th public and others 
• Pt:epar.e dai I · . spection reports, submitted weekly to R TC and 

C<s'd t tne-appropriate govemmentjurisdiction(s). 
• Provide quantity reports and assist in contractor's monthly progress 

pa;>:ments 
• Pr@\lide verification of the distribution of public relation notices 

required to be delivered by the contractor 
• Assist in preparation of the Punch List 
• Maintain a field blueline set of drawings to incorporate contractor 

record drawing mark-ups 

2. Provide Additional Inspector During Paving Operations. Provide additional 
inspector during mainline paving days to monitor plantmix bituminous 
pavement placement and in-place density tests. I 00 hours of field inspection 
and sampling and J 00 hours of Nuclear Gauge time are anticipated. 

2.1.H. Materials Testing (Optional) 

1. Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(Orange Book) testing requirements. Materials to be tested will include 
plantmix bituminous pavement, aggregate base, native subgrade material, 

8 



structural fill material and Portland Cement Concrete. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSULTANT's recommendation regarding 
acceptance/mitigation of materials, shall be submitted promptly to the RTC 
and CC'd to appropriate governmental jurisdiction(s). 

2. Provide AC Plant Inspection and Testing. Provide plantmix bituminous 
pavement plant inspection and laboratory aggregate testing. 20 hours for 
plant visits and sampling are anticipated. Laboratory tests will consist of 
sieve analysis, percent of wear, fractured faces and plasticity index. 

3. Provide Asphalt Cement Testing. Sampling and testing of asphalt cement 
binder material shall be in accordance with Section l.OIA ASPHALT 
CEMENT of the RTC's Special Technical Specifications. For each paving 
day, the CONSULTANT's designated representative shall coordinate with 
and receive asphalt cement binder samples from the designated plant 
representative. The CONSULTANT's design eel representative shall be 
present during all sampling operations. ach sa :pie will be properly 
labeled and signed off by both representatives. ' sample shall be taken 
during the production of each 0t (500 ton~ of plantmix bituminous 
pavement using container no ar-ger than a quart in size. CONSULT ANT to 
submit all asphalt ceme,nt binder sam , les to the Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDO ) ater"al Laboratory, for testing. All samples 
should accompany "th a . OT form titled "Transmittal for Asphalt 
Samples" to be rovid cl ay the TC. 

4. Provide On-site Nuclear. Gauge Testing & Sampling during the placement 
of aggreg13-te base a • d fill materials, on-site thin-lift Nuclear Gauge testing 
& sampl" . g for. _p antmix bituminous pavement placement, and on-site PCC 
testing & sam ling. 200 hours of field testing are anticipated, and laboratory 
ests will ineJude moisture density curves, Atterberg limits, and sieve 

analysis. 'Fest'frequency shall comply with the latest edition of the Orange 
Book. 

5. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement Testing. Provide plantmix 
bi tuminous pavement tests per each 'lot' (500 tons) placed. Laboratory test 
shall include extraction aggregate gradation specific gravity flow & 
stability and Marshall unit weight. Reports will also include voids in total 
mix and voids filled. 

6. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement coring and Lab Testing. Lab test 
shall include core unit weight. Test reports will include percent compaction. 

2.1. l. As-Built Information (Optional) 

Record Drawings. Provide as-built record drawings for the completed project. 
Two sets of electronic drawings, in single file PDF format (22" x 34" at 300 dpi), 

9 



on diskette will be provided to RTC for its files and distribution to the Local Entity. 
The PDF file shall include all plan sheets in one file with index/bookmark for easy 
access to different sheets or sections of the plan set. 

The final record drawings must be identified, dated, and signed as the record 
drawings and must also contain the engineer's stamp and signature. The Consultant 
may either: 

1. Provide the final rev1s1ons on the original engineer-stamped/signed 
reproducible drawings, which will then also be identified as the record 
drawings, or 

2. Provide new engineer-stamped/signed reproducible drawings identified as 
the record drawings. 

The Record Drawings shall include a scan oft e original title sheet (including the 
appropriate signatures by R TC, local governme igned and stamped by the 
CONSUL TANT) and identified as recorµ, drawings. 

2.1.J Construction Contingency (Optional) 

This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this contract 
in the performance of serviees under Tasks 2.1.E. to 2.1.J. If CONSUL TANT 
determines that it is necessai t , perfomn work to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSUL TANT shall pr:0vide a,:letter detailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any proposel:I ~or!<. Work under this task shall proceed only with the 
RTC Project Manager s prier wri ten approval. 

10 



Exhibit B 

Compensation 



Exhibit B - Cost Proposal for the 
Reno Consolidated 21-01 Project 

Task Description 
Project 

Manager 
($130/hr) 

Project 
Engineer 
($120/hr) 

Senior Tech 
($100/hr) Expenses 

Sub-
consultant 

Task 2.1.A lnvcstil!ation of Exislin!! Cond itions 

I. Condition Survev 20 20 40 
Task 2.1.A.1 Hours Subtotal 20 20 40 
Task 2.1.A. l Labor Costs $ 2,600.00 $ 2,400.00 $ 4.000.00 
Task 2. I.A. I Non Labor Costs $ - $ -
Task 2.1.A. l Non Labor Markup (5%) $ - $ -
Task 2.1.A.l Total $ 9,000.00 

2. Traffic Data 8 12 
Task 2.1.A.2 Hours Subtotal 8 12 0 
Task 2.1.A.2 Labor Costs $ 1,040.00 $ 1.440.00 $ -
Task 2.1 .A.2 Non Labor Costs A $ - $ -
Task 2.1. A.2 Non Labor Markup (5%) .Al' $ - $ -
Task 2.1.A.2 Total $ 2,480.00 ./ / 

'' /F 
3. Riaht-of-Wav Mappinl!. and E nginccrine Services 4 , qar // $ 25,500.00 
Task 2.1.A.3 Hours Subtotal 4 «JO "- ,,, 0 
Task 2.1.A.3 Labor Costs $ '520.00 $ 4.800,00' $ . $ -
Task 2.1.A.3 Non Labor Costs '' ,..,_ $ - $ 25.500.00 
Task 2.1.A.3 Non Labor Markup (5%) ,, ......._ ... 

"' / $ - $ 1.275.00 
Task 2.1.A.3 Total $ 32,095.00'' I! 

.. ., 
" . ~/ 

..,, 

4 . Locate Test Pits/U ti lity Clearance /'.._ ' -, 2 1 12 
Task 2. 1.A.4 Hours Subtotal \\'\. .... 2 0 12 
Task 2.1.A.4 Labor Costs \'\ , .. $ , 160.00 $ . $ 1.200.00 
Task 2.1.A.4 Non Labor Costs I/......._ \\ . , $ - $ -
Task 2. l.A.4 Non Labor Markup (5%) "'--......__'' ...., 

$ - $ -
Task 2.1.A.4 Total $ "\._ 1~60:00 

f'l'oo ....... ... 
... . --.. 5. Gcotcchnical lnves1i11.ation ' ... -........... 

Traffic Control Plan and Permits \ -:3/---.J 4 $ 2,500.00 
Subsurface Soil Exolorntion - S,le'slojts 24 $ 7,000.00 
Laboratory Testing I,.. - ' $ 4.200.00 
Su1mlics /_.,- .... V ' ' $ 200.00 , Task 2.1 .A.5 Hours Subtotal ............... 0 0 28 

Task 2.1 .A.5 Labor Costs ~ $ - $ - $ 2,800.00 ... _, Task 2.1 .A.5 Non Labor Costs $ 4.400.00 $ 9,500.00 
Task 2.1.A.5 Non Labor Markup (5%) $ 475.00 
Task 2.1.A.5 Total $ 17,175.00 

B-1 



Exhibit B - Cost Proposal for the 
Reno Consolidated 21-01 Project 

Project Project 

Task Description Manager Engineer Senior Tech 
($130/hr) ($120/hr) ($100/hr) Expenses 

6. Back calculation Analvsis - Not Used 

Sub-
consultant 

7. Develop Rehab/Reconsl Alternatives 4 8 

8. Life Cycle Cost Analysis - Not Used 

9. Optimum Rehab/Recon Alternative 4 8 

I 0. a and b Utility Investigation/ Deoiction 20 

11. Geotechnical Report and Pavement Design 40 20 60 
Task 2. l.A.8-1 I Hours Subtotal 48 56 60 
Task 2. I.A.8-11 Labor Costs $ 6,240.00 $ 6,7~.00 $ 6,000.00 
Task 2.1 .A.8-11 Non Labor Costs /r $ -
Task 2. I.A.8-11 Non Labor Markup (5%) /.r ~ $ -
Task 2.l.A.8-11 Total $ 18,960.00 /.; ' ~.,. /; ,, Total Not To E;cccd Tas,k ~- l.A $ 81,170.00 ~; ,, ,,t, 

Task 2.1.B Preliminary Desi1?n Services ...... -
.A ~"\ , · ... ~, '' ,~, I. Supplemental Topography ,,, ~ ,, -/✓ 

2. Mapping ('-. ~ ~, 4 

3. Proiect Coordination \\ , .... 80 '""' '' 1....-, \\ Iii.. '° 
4. 50% Plans "' "' .... -.......... ........._ '" 

Title Sheet , ...... ~~ 2 
Utility Survev for NLA t ...... , 2 6 
Utility Coordination \ ~ I',........._ V 2 12 '' , ,--., NLA Sheet 4 
Site Plan ( one sheet) ... ~ 4 - , 
Plan and Profile Sheets at l "=20ill5 sheets) 20 100 
Intersection Details at I '=IO' (Ysncets) \ > 12 40 
Grading and Ped Ramos at 1 "=l 0' {31 sheets) 8 40 
Striping Plans at l "=20' (5 sheets) .... _.I 2 10 
Details (3 sheets) 2 8 
QA/QC --- 12 
Specification List 2 I 
Engineers Estimate 4 12 
Plans Submittal I 8 

$ -
$ -

$ 11-500.00 

5. Public Meetings 24 24 

7. Drainaige Design 40 120 

Task 2.1.B.1-7 Hours Subtotal 171 475 0 
Task 2.1 .B.1-7 Labor Costs $ 22,230.00 $ 57.000.00 $ -
Task 2J .B.1-7 Non Labor Costs $ -
Task 2.18.1-7 Non Labor Markup (5%) $ -
Task 2.1.B.1-7 Total $ 91,305.00 

$ 11,500.00 
$ 575.00 

Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.B $ 91,30S.OO 

B-2 



Task Description 

Task 2.1.C Final Desil!n 

I a thru c Final Plans 
Title Sheet 
Utility Coordination 
NLA Sheet 
Site Plan (one sheet) 
Plan and Profile Sheets at 1 "=20' (5 sheets) 
Intersection Details at I '=IO' (3 sheets) 
Gradini:? and Ped Ramps at I "=IO' (3 sheets) 
StripinJ? Plans at I "=20' ( 5 sheets) 
Details (3 sheets) 
Soccification Preparation 
QA/QC 
Plans Submittal 

2. Engineers Estimate 

Task 2.1.C. l-3 Hours Subtotal 
Task 2. l.C 1-3 Labor Costs 
Task 2.1.C. l-3 Non Labor Costs 
Task 2. l.C.1-3 Non Labor Markup (5%) 
Task 2.1.C.l-3 Total 

Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.C 

Task 2.1.D Biddin!! 
I. Plan/speci fication Distribution 
2. Prebid Meeting 
3. Bid Opening/Review Bid Documents {~~ 

' Task 2. 1.D. l-3 Hours Subtotal \ 

Exhibit B - Cost Proposal for the 
Reno Consolidated 21-01 Project 

Project Project 
Manager Engineer 
($130/hr) ($120/hr) 

4 
2 40 

4 
4 

20 80 
20 30 
20 30 
4 IO 
4 20 

40 20... 
40 // 
l ,,4 -~ 

I~ ~, 
12 ~'12 

1'6j 258, ... 

$-2 U imJ00 $ 30,9.6.Q.00 

,,'" ......... ' ~ I~ ,/r 
/,; II 1 ... ,.,, 

$ 52.ISIIMO.. /i' 
..., 

/'-. , iv.,-
$ 52,1'50.00 "'' ~ ,. '\_) 

1 ............. \ "-
'--~'-"' 

__,, 
4 12 

'' ---.....:') 4 8 

' ' 8 8 ,...,........_ V , ...._.. 16 28 
Task 2.1.D. l-3 Labor Costs - - $ 2,080.00 $ 3.360.00 -
Task 2.1.D. l-3 Non Labor Costs I - ' Task 2.1.D.1-3 Non Labor Marln1o(l'S%) , ~ ...- ~' 

" Task 2.1.D.l-3 Totnl H $ 5,440.00 
..... ,.// 

Total Not To Exceed Task 2.l.D.1-3 ---- $ 5,440.00 

Task 2.1.D.4 Dcsien Contin1?,ency 
4. Contin11.cncv- Dcsie.n Serv ices [Ontional) 

Task 2.1. D.4 Hours Subtotal 0 0 
Task 2. 1.D.4 Labor Costs $ - $ -
Task 2.1 .D.4 Non Labor Costs 
Task 2.1.D.4 Non Labor Markup (5%) 
Task 2.1.D.4 Total $ 20,000.00 

Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.D.4 Optional $ 20,000.00 

Total Design Services Tasks 2.1.A-2.1.D.3 $ 230,065.00 

8-3 

Senior Tech Sub-
($100/hr) Expenses consultant 

H ~, 
0 

$ -
$ -

0 
$ -

$ -

$ 20,000.00 

0 
$ -

$ 20,000.00 



Task Description 

Exhibit B - Cost Proposal for the 
Reno Consolidated 21-0 I Project 

Project 
Manager 
($130/hr) 

Project 
Engineer 
($ 120/hr) 

Task 2.1.E Construction Administration (Ootional) 
(assumes 50 W.D) 

Admin 100 
Prqject Engineer 250 
Final WalkU1ru 8 8 
Provide ConstrucLuion Drnwinl!.S 4 

Task 2.1.E Hours Subtotal 108 262 
Task 2. 1.E Labor Costs $ 14,040.00 $ 31,440.00 
Task 2. 1.E Non Labor Costs 
Task 2. 1.E Non Labor Markup (5%) 

J' 
Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.E $ 46,530.00 // ,, 

I'- • .. 
_. r 

Task 2.1.F Construction Survcvine (Optional) ,-, 
Set Centerline and Offsets/Mark Cuts 

,_ 
Admin 20 40 

-Task 2.1.F Hours Subtotal ~ - 20 ,..i,,.. . ..40 
Task 2. 1. F Labor Costs $ 2,600.00 ,s 4,800.00 
Task 2. 1.F Non Labor Costs ...... ✓~ 
Task 2. 1.F Non Labor Markup (5%) . "" ... .., ,. 

y" ,, 
Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.F $ 33,65_0.00 ~ 

- ~ \ ,,,. "" 
Task 2.1.G lnsncction (Ontional) .. .._-........_ ...... ' 
Full time inspector (assume 50 worki ng davs) - '-' ........ 
Additional lns1icc1or as needed \, ... , ..... 

\ -.....__v 
Task 2.1.G I-lours Subtotal ' ~ 0 0 
Task 2. 1.G Labor Costs /--v $ . $ . 
Task 2. 1.G Non Labor Costs I ~ ' Task 2. 1.G Non Labor Markup {10%) ,.,. .,....---.. 

~ ) 

Total NotTo'Excecd Task 2.1.G I>,._ .J'./ , $ 80,000.00 -

B-4 

Senior Tech Sub-
($100/hr) Expenses consultant 

$ 1,000.00 
0 

$ . 
$ 1,000.00 $ . 
$ 50.00 $ . 

> 

/ 
$ 25,000.00 

0 
$ -

$ - $ 25,000.00 
$ - $ 1,250.00 

600 
200 

800 
$ 80,000.00 $ . 

$ -
$ -



Task Description 

Task 2.1.H Materials Testing (Optional) 
Asphalt concrete plant inspcctions/sanmlina 
On-site testing and sampling 
AC Coring 

Task 2.1.J-l Hours Subtotal 
Task 2. 1.H Labor Costs 
Task 2. 1.H Non Labor Costs 
Task 2.1 .H Non Labor Markup (5%) 

Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.H 

Task 2.IJ Project Closeout (Optional) 
I. Provide Record Drawinl!S 

Task 2. 1.1.1-2 Hours Subtotal 
Task 2.1.1.1-2 Labor Costs 
Task 2.1.1.1-2 Non Labor Costs 
Task 2.1.1.1-2 Non Labor Markup (5%} 

Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.1 

Task 2.1.J Construction Conlingcncy (Optional) 
I. Conting,cncy - Construction Services 

Task 2.1 .1.1-2 I-lours Subtotal 
Task 2, 1.1.1-2 Labor Costs -
Task 2. 1.1.1-2 Non Labor Costs \,;, 
Task 2. 1.1.1-2 Non Labor Markup (5%) ' ' Total Not To Exceed Task 2.1.J ., -

Exhibit B - Cost Proposal for the 
Reno Consolidated 21-0 I Project 

Project 
Manager 
($ I 30/hr) 

-
$ - $ 

$ 45,150.00 

Project 
Engineer 
($ 120/hr) 

-
-

~ 

.,I/ .. 
~ -

12 80 _... 
~ 

1_2 80 
$ 1,560.00 $ 9.600.00., 

A·,r-,\ _// .#, JJ ,,, 
$ 11,685.llQ, '/ 

I -.. , ,~ , .... 
\\ "" 'V 

~ .......... ' ,_, 

'"~'' ,....,__ ....... ) 

~ 
............ 

...... ....... 
-

$ 20,000.00 
Total Construction Scn•iccs Tasks ,2.1.E-J (Gpti_onal $ 217,015.00 

8-5 

Senior Tech Sub-
($100/hr) Expenses consultant 

$ 12_150,00 
20 

200 
100 $ 1,000.00 

320 
$ 32,000.00 

$ 13,150.00 $ -
$ -

$ 500.00 
~ 

#" 0 
$ -

$ 500.00 $ -
$ 25 ,00 $ -

$ 20,000.00 

$ 20.000.00 $ -
$ -



~

EASTERN 
SIERRA 
ENGINEERING 

CIVIL ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

main: 77 5.828 .7220 
fax: 775.828.7221 

45 15 Towne Drive 
Reno, NV 89521-9696 

www.esengr.com 

2020 STANDARD RATES FOR TECHNICAL SERVICES 

I. Personnel 

Charges will be made at the following rates for time spent in project management, consultation or 
meetings related to the project, conducting field inspections, sampling, evaluations, review and 
analysis of field and laboratory data, report preparation and review, design, travel time, etc. 

A. Professional Services 

President 
Principal En_gineer 
Senior Engineer 
Project Manager __ 

$180.00/hour 
$160.00/hour -- -
$140.00/hour - -
$130.00/hour 

Pro· ect Engineer/Desig,_ne_r ____ _ $120.00/hour 
$100.00/hour Staff Engineer/Designer 

CAD Drafter 
CAD Technician 

B. Technical Services 

II. Expenses 

A. Expenses 

Transportation 

1 __ Supplies & Shippjng _______ ___ _ 

B. Equipment 

Coring per core 
Pachometer 
Torque Wrench 

III. Subcontracts 

$90.00/hour 
$60.00/hour 

$120. 00/hour 
$110.00/hour 
$100 .00/hour 

$95.00/hour 

Current IRS Standard 
Mi_le~ge R<!~e 

_______ ____ __ ______ _ ____ _____ ____ ____ Cost plus 15% · 

$20.00/each 
$7.50/hr 

_______ ___________ $25.00/day : 

Subcontract services will be invoiced at cost plus 5% 

IV. Field Testing 
-

HOPE Geomembrane Peal & Shear $70.00/each 

Reno ❖ Zephyr Cove ❖ Bishop ❖ Mammoth Lakes 



2 
Reno ❖ Zephyr Cove ❖ Bishop ❖ Mammoth Lakes 



V. Laboratory Testing 

Tests Unit Price/Test 

Index Tests 

Moisture Content (ASTM D2216) $20.00 
Moisture Content and Dry Density $35.00 
Atterberg Limits (ASTM 4318) $85.00 

Particle Size Analysis 

Sieve $90.00 
Minus #200 (ASTM D 1140) $60.00 
Hydrometer Analysis Minus #1 O(ASTM D 422) $250.00 

Specific Gravity 

Soils (ASTM D 854) $80.00 
Fine Aggregate w/ Absorption (ASTM Cl28) $80.00 
Coarse Aggregate w/ Absorption (ASTM C 127) $75.00 

Moisture-Density Relations 

Standard Proctor (ASTM D 698) $165.00 
Modified Proctor (ASTM 1557) $180.00 
Compaction Check Point $55.00 
Rock Correction per Test $75.00 

Aggregate Testing 

Clay Lumps and Friable Particles (ASTM $75.00 
Flat and Elongated $100.00 
Fractured Faces (Nev T 2~,0J $80.00 
Sand Equivalent (ASTM 22119) $75.00 
Organic Impurities (ASTM <340,) $50.00 
Dry Unit Weight 0 1-\ggregates (ASTM C 29) $60.00 
Sodium Soundness of A:ggrega es (ASTM C88) $60.00/ per fraction 
Los Angeles Rattler tA. C 131) $130.00 
Durability Index, co&.rse aAd fine $250.00 
Cleanness $140.00 
Fine Aggregate Angularity $100.00 

Other Testing 

R-Value Untreated Field Sample (ASTM D2844) $250.00 

Concrete Testing 

Compression of Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C39) $25.00 
Compression of Grout Cylinder (UBC 24-28) $20.00 
Compression of Mortar Cylinder (UBC 24-22) $20.00 
Hold Cylinder (cured not tested) $12.00 
Concrete Trial Batch $550.00 

3 
Reno ❖ Zephyr Cove ❖ Bishop ❖ Mammoth Lakes 



Asphalt Concrete Testing 

Bitumen Content by Ignition (AASHTO T308) 
Bitumen Content by Solvent Extraction (AASHTO T164) 
Mechanical Analysis of Extracted Aggregate (AASHTO T30) 
Hveem Stability and Compaction (ASTM D1560/1561) each 
Marshall Stability and Flow (ASTM D1559) set of3 
Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity (Rice ASTM D2041) 
Bulk Specific Gravity ofHMA Specimen (ASTM D2726) each 
Swell of Bituminous Mixtures 
Moisture Content of Asphalt Mixture 
Effects of Moisture on AC Mixtures (ASTM D4867, AASHTO T283) 

Lab Produced HMA Sample 
Plant Produced HMA Sample 
Lab Produced RHMA-G Sample 
Plant Produced RHMA-G Sample 

Hamburg Wheel-Tracking of Compacted HMA (AASHTO T324 
Lab Produced HMA Sample 
Plant Produced HMA Sample 
Lab Produced RHMA-G Sample 
Plant Produced RHMA-G Sample 

Gyratory Compaction and Air Voids (AASHTO T3 tUT166) 
Lab Produced HMA Sample, Set of 3 Briquettes 
Plant Produced HMA Sample, Set ofJ':Briquettes 
Lab Produced RHMA-G Sample, et of3 Briquettes 
Plant Produced RHMA-G SampJe, Set of.~ Briquettes 

Moisture Vapor Susceptibility 
RAP Testing (Caltrans LP-9/CT384) 
Ignition Oven Calibration (AASFI O T308) 
Compressive Strength of HMA (A . ·SHTO · 167) 
Hot Mix Asphalt Mix De ign (Marsha I, Hveem and Superpave) 

$100.00 
$180.00 
$90.00 
$75.00 
$220.00 
$100.00 
$35.00 
$150.00 
$40.00 

$1,000.00 
$610.00 
$1,400.00 
$1,010.00 

$1,100.00 
$840.00 
$ ,500.00 

1,240.00 

$450.00 
$255.00 
$750.00 
$555.00 
$150.00 
$2,070.00 
$330.00 
$350.00 
upon request 

-Laboratory tes unit pri<;es are based on the average running time required for each test. Any 
special research 0r 1musual sample preparation will be based upon hourly personnel charges 
plus the unit price of the test. 

-All samples will be discarded thirty (30) days after submission of our final report, unless 
otherwise directed by the client. Upon request, Eastern Sierra Engineering will return the 
samples to the client or keep them for the client for an agreed upon monthly fee. 

-Any testing required that is not covered by this fee schedule will be contracted by an outside 
firm and the fee will be cost plus 10%. 

-Inspection and materials testing technician services are billed portal to portal from the 
laboratory. 

-Overtime rates of time and one-half or Double Time will be charged at the appropriate rate . 
Overtime is defined as any hour of services provided in excess of 8 hours in a single day or any 
hour of service provided on a Saturday or Sunday 

Reno ❖ Zephyr Cove ❖ Bishop ❖ Mammoth Lakes 
4 



Exhibit C 

Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 



INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

2019-11-11 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONTACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0400. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fu lly indemnify RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno, and City of Sparks, including their eleeted o ficial s, officers, employees, 
and agents (hereafter, "Indemnitees") from and against any and claims,, proceedings, actions, 
liability and damages, including attorneys' fees and defense costs incurred in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arising out of: 

A. 

B. The negligent acts of CO SUL Ti\'.NT, its employees, agents, officers, directors, Subs, or 
anyone else for which CO SU TAN:3' is legally responsible; and 

C. The infringement o~ any pat.ent or copyright resulting from the use by the Indemnitees of 
any equipmen part omponent or other deliverable (including software) supplied by 
CONSULT A NT under it as a result of this Agreement, but excluding any infringement 
resulting from the modHication or alteration by the Indemnitees of any equipment, part, 
component, or ot er deliverable (including software) except as consented to by 
CONSULTANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 
property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 

If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions, CONSULT ANT shall reimburse the 
Indemnitees for the time spent by such personnel at the rate the Indemnitees pay for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 



In detennining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall detennine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.C above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSULT ANT, at its sole expense, shall either (I) secure for the Indemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procuring a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-infringing. This covenant shall 
survive the tennination of this Agreement. 

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the start of any work on a R TC project, CONSULT ANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types and limits as described herein insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the perfonnance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULTANT, its Subs, or their employees, agent or representatives. The cost 
of all such insurance shall be home by CONSULT ANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSUL TANT shall furnish RTC with a certificate(s) ofinsurance, e ecuted by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing complian·ce 'Wi,tti the in ranee requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All ded ot'!bles nd self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. JI cert· 1 · tes and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and appl'O ed by RTC before work commences. The 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the 11igll to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies ofithe pol"cies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements co.nfirmin'g required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 
notice of cancellation provisions are equired to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CA CELkATIO 

CONSULT ANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation e'r non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten (10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULTANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULT ANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsultants (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause Subs employed by CONSULT ANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limits of the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each shall include the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insureds under its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stated herein, without requiring a written contract 



or agreement between each of the additional insureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained by Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for any applicable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is GREATER. If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the Contractor, Contractor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contractor. When requested by R TC, CONSULT ANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates of insurance evidencing coverage for each Sub. The CONSULT ANT 
need not require its non-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and Omissions Liability 
insurance. 

7. DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financi,al or otl:ierwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by the RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 

8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept cover!lge with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning- ,CQNSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
of Nevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. · 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSUL TANT fails to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to furnish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver as to the enforcement of any of these provisions at a later 

date. 



D. By requiring insurance herein, RTC does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect CONSULT ANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation on CONSULT ANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
RTC in this contract. 

E. If CONSUL TANT' S liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising_ from premises, operations, 
products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07/04 or CG 20 33 07/04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to RTC or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 

CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSULTANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against R TC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULT ANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for all owned, leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept auto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULTANT does not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 



CONSULT ANT waives all rights against RTC, its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSULTANT or any Subs by RTC. The 
CONSULT ANT, and any Subs, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required coverages. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State of Nevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 

CONSULT ANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each Sub evidencing that 
CONSULTANT and each Sub maintained workers' compensation and employer's liability 
insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSUL TANT, or any Sub is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must be 
purchased and evidence of coverage must appear ori the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSULT ANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSULT ANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSULT ANT shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of the scope of CONSULT ANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULT ANT shall maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "claims made" or "claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extended reporting period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Maria D. Paz Fernandez, P.E. 
Engineer II 

AGENDA ITEM 3.5 

Amy Cummings, AICP, LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Final Design of the Oddie/Wells 
Multi-modal Improvements Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. to 
provide final design, bidding services and design support during construction for the Oddie/Wells 
Multi-modal Improvements Project in an amount not to exceed $1,272,305; authorize the RTC 
Interim Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement (see Attachment A) with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. is for final design, 
bidding services and design support during construction for the Oddie/Wells Multi-Modal 
Improvements Project in the amount of $1,272,305. The Project includes addition of bicycle lanes, 
sidewalk, crosswalks and intersection improvements from the I-80 Westbound Ramps in Reno to 
Pyramid Way in Sparks. 

Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. was selected from the Civil Engineering Design and 
Construction Management Services List as a qualified firm to perform the final design services. 
Negotiation of the scope, schedule and budget indicated the amount for design services is within 
the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Appropriations were included in the FY 2020 Budget and FY20 20 Program of Projects and are 
included in the RTC FY 2020 Board approved budget. There is no additional cost in connection 
with this agenda item. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 
PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



Oddie/Wells Multi-modal Improvements Project PSA 
RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page2 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

April 19, 2019 

April 20, 2018 

August 17, 2017 

Acknowledged receipt of an update on the Oddie/Well Corridor 
Project Progress Update 

Approved the selection of Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. and a 
Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Preliminary 
Engineering Design of the Oddie/Wells Corridor Project 

Approved the Request For Proposals (RFP) for the Preliminary 
Design of the Oddie/Wells Corridor Project 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachment 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

ATTACHMENT A 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of March 20, 2020, by and between 
the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Stantec Consulting 
Services, Inc. ("CONSUL TANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC selected CONSULTANT from its qualified list for Civil Engineering Design 
and Construction Management Services to perform final design of the Oddie/Wells Boulevard 
Project from 1-80 westbound ramps in Reno to Pyramid Way in Sparks. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follow~: 

ARTICLE 1 - TERM AND ENGAGEME T 

1.1. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through December 
31, 2024, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

1.2. CONSULT ANT will perform the work using the project team identified in Exhibit A. Any 
changes to the project team m~t be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

1.3. CONSUL TANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable prpfessional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any s;overnmerit, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSULT ANT. 

I .4. CONSULT ANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSUL TANT. If CONSUL TANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSULT ANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order, CONSUL TANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

-1-



ART1CLE2 -SERVlCES OF CO SULTANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICE 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

2.2. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3. CONTINGENCY 

Contingency line items identified in the scope of services are for miscellaneous increases 
within the scope of work. Prior to the use of any contingency amounts, CONSULT ANT 
shall provide a letter to RTC's Project Manager detailing the need, scope, and not-to
exceed budget for the proposed work. Work to be paid for out of contingency shall proceed 
only with the RTC Project Manager's written approval. 

2.4. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the right to exercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exhibit A. CONSULT ANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. RTC will review and approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULT ANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual' or firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.5. ADDITIO 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services when agreed to in writing by R TC and 
CONSUL TANT. 

2.6. PERFORMANCE REOUIREME TS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSULT ANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respec;tive trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 

-2-



responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

Any sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSUL TANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of this Agreement. All test reports sha)l be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number . . 

2.7. ERRORS AND OMISSIONS 

CONSUL TANT shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULT ANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSUL TANT also agrees that if any error ,or omission is found, CONSUL TANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSULTANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULTANT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE'.3-COMPENSATION 

3 .1. CONSUL TANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULT ANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULT ANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Services (Tasks A to G) $1.272.305.00 
Total Not-to-Exceed Amount $1,272,305.00 

3.3. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSULT ANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 

-3-



Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSULT ANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than I 05% of the amounts billed to CONSUL TANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, except: (I) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSUL TANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTICLE 4 - INVOICING 

4.1. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com; RTC's payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be paid at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are· not paid within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RT<;:. 

4.3. CONSULT ANT shall maintain complete · records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon request, CONSUL TANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall have the right to inspect and copy such records. 

ARTICLE 5 - AGCESS TO IN FORMATION AND PROPERTY 

5.1. Upon request and without cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all pertinent 
information that is reasonably available to RTC including surveys, reports and any other 
data relative to design and construction. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULTANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1 . Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSUL TANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULT ANT prior to the Agreement is excluded from this requirement. 
CONSUL TANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 

-4-



interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULTANT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. CONSULT ANT represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

6.3. CONSULTANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or pro.cesses used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSUL TANT agrees that all reports, communicatio.ns, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or prepares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSULTANT may 
refer to this scope of work in connecti9n with its promotional literature in a professional 
and commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that co~es int~ the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULTANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULTANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

7.1. 

ARTICLE 7-TERMlNATION 

ERMINA Tl ON FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSULTANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSUL TANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSUL TANT setting forth the manner in which CONSUL TANT is in 
default. CONSULT ANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULTANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULTANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSUL TANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

-5-



7 .2. CONTRACT TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSULT ANT when it is in R TC' s best interest. CONSULT ANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULT ANT. If CONSULT ANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE 

8.1. CONSUL TANT shall not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/work required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSUL TANT shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions set forth therein. 

ARTICLE 9 - HOLD HARMLESS 

9.1. CONSUL TANT's obligation under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend to any liability ofRTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property. 

ARTICLE IO - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

10.1. During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULT ANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSUL TANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSUL TANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

I 0.2. CONSUL TANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSUL TANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 

-6-



10.3. CONSULTANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTJCLE 11 - RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS AND DJSPUTES 

11.1. NEGOTIATED RESOLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

11.2. MEDIA TIO 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute or claim .be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other party' s receipt or deemed rece ipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree'upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upon a mediator within ten (10) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. · .A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification set-forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. U TIGATIO 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

-7-



11 .4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperfonnance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12 - PROJECT MANAGERS 

12.1. RTC's Project Manager is Maria Paz Fernandez or such other person as is later designated 
in writing by RTC. RTC's Project Manager has authority to act as RTC's representative 
with respect to the performance of this Agreement. 

12.2. CONSULT ANT' Project Manager is Joseph Mactutis or such other person as is later 
designated in writing by CONSULTANT. CONSULTAN 's Project Manager has 
authority to act as CONSULTANT's representative with · spect to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

13.1. Notices required under this Agreement sh loe given as fol 0ws: 

RTC: 

'Business Line Leader, Transportation 
Joseph Mactutis 
Senior Project Manager, Transportation 
Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. 
6995 Sierra Crossing Parkway 
Reno, NV 89511 
(775) 398-1288 

ARTICLE 14-DELAYS IN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. TIME IS OF THE ESSE CE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 

-8-



process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSUL TANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSULTANT's performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSULT ANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSULT ANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. OTIFICATION OF DELAYS 

CONSULTANT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSULT owl edge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise becomes aware that CO suet il l be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (10) working days thereafter, CONSUL TANT shall 
provide such notice to RTC, in writing, fum · hin.g as inuc . aetail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REQUEST FOR EXTENSION 

ERAL PROVISIONS 

15. l. UCCESSORS ANDA:SSIGNS 

RTC and CONSUL TANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither R TC nor 
CONSUL TANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than RTC and 
CONSUL TANT. 

-9-



15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONS ULT ANT' s professional services, and CONSULT ANT' s 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15.3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

CONSULTANT is an independent contractor to RTC uncle his Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSUL TANT is not entitled to participate in any retirernen~ defe1Ted compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits RTC prov·des to its e1nployees. CONSULTANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar se.rv.·ces fur other while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being provided by G©. Sl:JL"TANT to RTC. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or breach of a provisi0n ·n ~liis Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provision in this A:gr,:ee111ent a d no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An extension oft time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed a1 e.x:tension,, ftime for the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respecti e heirs· suecessors and assigns. 

15.6. REGULATORY @©MPLIANCE 

A. CONSULT ANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSUL TANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSULT ANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULT ANT does engage in such public work, CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

-10-



15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CO TINUJNG OBLIGATION 

CONSULTANT agrees that if, because of death or 'a y ot er occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONStJCT NT te, render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSULTANT no t he s,urviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render corn pie e performanc . However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement if it constciers th deatb er incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such mag11itude as to af.fect CONSULTANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance o th· Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreemelil s all be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nev da. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be-the S~cond Judfoial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties Hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

15.12. CERTIFICATIO REQUIRED BY NEVADA SENATE BILL 27 {2017) 

CONSULT ANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSUL TANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

-11-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: _ _ _____ _____ _ _ 

Adam Spear 
R TC Director of Legal Services 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

-12-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICE 

This will generally consist of the following tasks: 

A. Project Management 

Project Coordination and Management. Provide project management required to 
supervise work and coordinate the project with the RTC and ether affected agencies. 
Work activities include: 

• Project Coordination/Management 
• Coordination meetings: assume twelve (12) ~rogress an :FAG meetings to meet with 

the RTC/Local agencies. 
• Supervise execution of work and coorp.jnate work between disciplines 
• Coordinate quality control reviews @ project activit,ies, deliverables and reports 
• Monitor Subconsultant activities 
• Prepare and update project sche te-. d menitor progress 
• Review invoices and preP.are mon lily P,rogress reports 
• Utility Agency Coordinati0 . € 00rd" ate with all utility agencies for upcoming work, 

facility relocation and new installation. CONSULTANT will assist in the preparation 
of the applications necessar1 fo r ~TC to submit to utility companies for facility 
relocation. Assume four ( 4) utility coordination meetings. 

B. Investigate E ·sting Gonditions and Field Inventory 

1. Final Geotechnical Investigation 

Additional field exploration, laboratory testing, analysis, and report preparation is 
required for the following additional work identified during preliminary design: 

• An additional 12,400 feet ofretaining/screen walls generally located between 
Sutro and US 395 and Silverada Blvd. to Pyramid Way. These are additional 
wall lengths not investigated during the preliminary geotechnical investigation. 

• Roadway areas identified in the initial geotechnical for additional 
investigations. These areas either contain clay subgrade soils or atypical 
existing structural sections. 

The work is generally subdivided into the following sub-tasks: 

a. Field Exploration 



Exploration will be completed by both exploratory boring and coring 
methodologies. A total of 7 additional borings will be completed for the 
roadway and 49 exploratory borings will be completed for the retaining walls. 
Six to seven pavement cores have also been budgeted. The location of the 
cores will be determined after the borings are completed. Borings will be 
advanced to 5 feet below surface grade in the roadway and 10 feet below 
surface grade for the planned retaining/screen wall alignments. 

Included in our cost proposal is traffic control, USA dig clearance, and 
obtaining required permits. It is assumed that all drilling operations can be 
completed during normal business hours and night work is not required. 

CONSUL TANT geotechnical personnel will log aterial encountered during 
exploration in the field. The existing structura ection will be measured. Bulk 
samples of the subgrade soils will be obtainefl for R value and moisture
density relationship testing. Representative sampJes wil be returned to 
CONSUL TANT geotechnical laboratory for test' g. 

CONSUL TANT will contact U A Di to locate ex isting utilities at the site 
and obtain necessary excavation an encre cj;up.ent permits. 

b. Laboratory Testing 

Mo'sture-density curve relationship tests will be completed on representative 
su grade-s0ils-. o,rimum moisture content determined by these tests will be 
comparea to in-place subgrade soil moisture contents and provides a basis to 
determioe if nstable foundation grade soils will be encountered. Moisture
density curve relationship tests will also be completed on representative 
foundation grade soils. Results of these tests will be used for remolded test 
soil samples for direct shear tests. 

Direct shear testing (ASTM D 3080) will be performed on a selected samples 
of native soils, screened to remove particles larger than the number 4 sieve. 
Tests will be completed on either remolded or in-situ soil samples, saturated, 
and tested at three different normal pressures to derive a plot of Mohr's Circle 
Failure Envelope. 

R-value testing will be performed on representative samples of anticipated 
subgrade soils. R-value testing is a measure of subgrade strength and 
expansion potential and is used in the design of flexible pavements. 

c. Geotechnical Report 



Upon completion of the field, laboratory testing, and analysis phases of our 
investigation, a geotechnical investigation report will be completed for the 
project and include the following: 

• Description of the project site with the approximate locations of our 
explorations, presented on a Site Plan; 

• Descriptive logs of the explorations performed for this study; 
• Summary of existing structural section thicknesses; 
• General summary of subgrade soil description and geologic profile in the 

retaining wall alignments; 
• Subgrade soil moisture and ground water conditions; 
• Laboratory test results; 
• Subgrade soil design resilient modulus; 
• Retaining Wall Recommendations including: 

o Site preparation and grading recommendations including any 
excavation difficulties; 

o Foundation recommenda(ons including suitable foundation types, 
allowable bearing pressure, lateral earth pressures for retaining 
walls; 

o Retaining wall baeldill a , drainage recommendations. 
• Mix design results for roa(ll>ed modification and treating clay subgrade 

soil areas including st ctural o efficient for structural section design 
• Construction RecommenaatLons · eluding: 

o Site pre aratipn and gr,ading recommendations; 
o Subgrade s~il ejjization alternatives; 
o Clonstru.ction ecommendations for lime treated subgrade soils, as 

required. 
0 Construction recommendations for roadbed modification, as 

requ red. 
0 St c iral section construction recommendations; 
o Anticipated construction difficulties. 

d. Assumptions 

The above scope is based on the following assumptions: 

• The geotechnical investigation limits are from 1-80 to Pyramid Way. 
• Retaining walls are to be generally located as follows: 

o Sutro to US 395 -Approximately 2600 lineal feet (south side) and 
approximately 2400 lineal feet (north side) 

o Silverada to 500 ft east of Silverada - Approximately 500 lineal 
feet (south side) 

o El Rancho to Sullivan - Approximately I 200 lineal feet (south 
side) 



o Sullivan to Rock-Approximately 1200 lineal feet (south side) and 
approximately 2600 lineal feet (north side) 

o Rock to 12th Street -Approximately 800 lineal feet (north side) 
o 12th Street to Pyramid Way-Approximately 500 lineal feet (south 

side) and approximately 600 lineal feet (north side). This is in 
addition to wall lengths investigated with preliminary geotechnical 
investigation 

2. Supplementary Topographic Survey 

Additional topographic surveys to locate existing roadway improvements on the 
following portions ofOddie Boulevard, Wells Avenue & intersection streets as 
required for the 100% design plan preparation as iclentified during preliminary 
design: 

3. Final Traffic Analysis and Report 

Work tasks will include: 

• One update and finalization of the traffic report to match the Final Design 
Plans 

• Answering questions related to CONSULT ANT created reports and 
memoranda 

• One (1) review cycle to address comments and provide responses following 
final agency review of the Traffic Report. 

If design changes occur that will result in a re-analysis of the traffic operations 
including but not limited to changes to the typical sections, number of lanes, 



multimodal improvements, access management, or safety, CONSULTANT will 
provide a scope and fee for this effort. 

C. Final Design 

The final design package for the Oddie Wells project will be a combined effort of civil, 
landscape, structural, and electrical disciplines. The generalized scope below describes a 
summary of the effort for the plans, specifications, and estimate common to all 
disciplines. Discipline specific details are provided in each subtask below. 

Prepare Final Construction Plans, Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 
suitable for construction bid advertisement for the approved preliminary design in 
accordance with RTC standards and requirements. RTC will provide the boilerplate on 
disk in MS Word format. The RTC, City of Reno, City o Sparks NDOT and Quality 
Control review comments will be incorporated into the-final Blans and Specifications. 

The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications will reference the local agency 
adopted edition of Standard Specifications for Pub~ic Works ~@nstruction (Orange Book) 
for standard construction items. Technical pr0"'isions will be repared for approved 
deviations from the Orange Book and uni~ue co struoti0n items not adequately covered 
in the Orange Book. Plans and specificaf 0 s ill be su mitted to the RTC, City of 
Reno, City of Sparks, utility companies ancj other affected parties for review at the 90% 
and I 00% stages of completion. 

Final Review Plan Set ubmittal. 'Br0yide all review sets of plans and specifications. 
Review sets of plans shaU be at 2i" x 34' size or if requested in an 11" x 17" size. Two 
sets of plans to the RT - 0 ani:i €ity of Reno, one set to the utility companies. 

Final Specificatfon 0ocu1nen Submittal. Provide one original, three hard copies and one 
copy on disk {MS Wor-cLfo at) of the Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 
to the RTC. 

Prepare a final Engineer's estimate of probable construction costs for the project based on 
the final design and any alternatives or options. The cost opinion will be in the same 
format as the bid proposal form included in the contract documents. A quality control 
review of the cost opinion will be performed. The number of project days prescribed for 
the project shall include the number of estimated working days based upon the estimated 
quantities of work. 

The final construction plans will be on 22" x 34" size sheets and will show all elements 
of the project construction, including plan/profile view, right-of-way lines and 
construction/slope limits (if applicable), landscaping plans, electrical drawings and signal 
drawings. The final plan set will include, as a minimum: 

• Cover Sheet ( 1) 
• Notes, Legend, Sheet Index, Abbreviations (2) 
• Section oflmprovement Sheets (6) 



• Key Sheets (2) 
• Project Phasing Sheets (4) 
• Demolition and Utility Plan Sheets (18) (at 1"=20' scale) 
• Right of Way and Horizontal Control Sheets (18) (at 1"=20' scale) 
• Plan/Profile Sheets (32) (at 1 "=20' scale) 
• Intersection Layout Plan Sheets (12) (at l "=20' scale) 
• Striping and Signing Plan Sheets (18) (at 1 "=20') 
• Sign Details (3) 
• Traffic Signal Plan Sheets (26) 
• Detail Sheets (8) (scales as noted) 
• Retaining/Screen Wall Plan/Profile Sheets (20) 
• Retaining/Screen Wall Details (2) 
• Bridge Demolition Sheets (4) 
• Electrical Symbols/Abbreviations Slieets {1 
• Electrical Oneline Diagrams/Load Cales 1) 
• Electrical Demo Sheets (15) 
• Electrical Street Lighting DesigQ Sheets , l5 
• Electrical Photometric €al cu ation (I$) 
• Electrical Details (4) 
• Site Specific Civil heets Livestock Events Center (4) 
• Site Specific Civi heets - E.esidential on Wells (I) 
• Site Specifie Cjvil eets - Ni'ajor Driveways (5) 
• Site Specifi 1vi fleets - Paradise Park (I) 
• Planti g.Legen , o e·s and Details Sheets (4) 
• Planting Ian She ts (18) 
• Jn:igati0n egenci, Notes and Detail Sheets (4) 
• lrrigatio Ian Sheets (18) 
• ™W:A Irrigation New Water Service Sheets (21) 
• NDO'fi Perm it Sheets (12) 

Approximately 315 sheets total 

An independent checker will check, initial and date each plan sheet. A quality control 
review of the plans, contract documents and technical specifications will be performed 
which will focus on technical aspects of the plans and specifications and will ensure that 
all items of work are adequately covered. Included as well is a Peer Review of the final 
product by senior personnel not associated with the design aspects of the project. 

1. Civil Design 

Civil plans will show pertinent elements of the project construction, including 
demolition of existing improvements, and geometric alignments and grading of all 
proposed curbs, sidewalk, cycle track, pavement, storm drainage improvements, 



screen walls, and retaining walls. This will include site civil design to transition 
from new back of sidewalk to the existing private property frontage. Plans will 
also show signage and striping plans, and traffic signal improvements. Also 
included in this task is an independent review of all civil and drainage 
deliverables. 

2. Landscape Design 

Landscape and aesthetics plans will show pertinent elements of the project 
construction, including planting, inert materials for ground plane treatments and 
irrigation of the center median and both parkways. Details will be provided for 
screen fencing and pilasters, accentuated paving ( assumes natural concrete with 
scoring), site furnishings, accentuated crosswalks, bi0swales, place name signs 
and locations for public art. Provide irrigation water demand calculations. 

Only minor design is included for adjacent prope . landsca11>es limited to those 
landscape areas which are adjacent to the new righ of wa):' tfoundary and a 
maximum of 30' on the private property qiterior. lrriga ion water demand 
calculations are included for the public ark trip. 

Also included in this task are up ;© five ~isual simulations and up to three 
illustrative cross sections and details. 

3. Structural Design 

a. 

CONSUL TA. T w'll c_reate and finalize the project structures design and 
repo11 based o tlie screen and retailing walls and other structure locations 
ide tified a~ the 60% level of design. The plans and report will be prepared in 
ace0 anee dth pplicable local and state standards and reviewed by City of 
Reno City o Sparks, and/or NDOT, as appropriate, for approval. 

Due to the localized widening, short (i.e. less than 6ft in height) retaining 
walls will be necessary. Precast concrete screen walls are also anticipated, 
combined with the retaining walls, or standalone adjacent to all existing 
residential development within the project limits. 

Structural design will consist of 90% and 100% structural design packages. It 
is assumed that walls will consist of cast in place reinforced concrete walls. 
Wall lines and grades will be developed in Task C.1. Structural plans will 
consist of footing design, structural design of walls, plan view drawings, 
profile view drawings, section details, and reinforcement details. All structural 
specifications will be provided on the structural sheets. Structural calculations 
will be bound in a structural design report, signed and sealed by a registered 
professional engineer in the State of Nevada. 



b. Bridge Demolition. 

CONSUL TANT will prepare a bridge demolition plan for the removal of the 
existing pedestrian bridge over Oddie Boulevard at Silverada Boulevard. 
Drawings will provide existing bridge structural design, and detailing of 
removal limits and restoration. Specifications will detail site restoration, 
restrictions on demolition methods, disposal, permitting requirements, and 
other items as pertaining to the protection of the public, traffic, and adjacent 
property. 

4. Electrical Design 

CONSUL TANT will provide electrical engineering services as follows: 

• A kick-off meeting with Stantec, Ag.ency and NV Energy staff. 
• Site review of the existing street con itions as-b Hts and coordination 

with the NV Energy's staff to identi existing electrical distribution 
equipment. 

• Design for demolition 0f. et lighting and electrical 
equipment in area of werk. 

• Photometrics calculations fo proposed street lighting changes. 
• Electrical street hgbting aesign, and electrical distribution equipment 

upgrades. 

• review of Construction Drawings and 

review of Construction Drawings and 
pb: te e .' c calculations with 50% client comments incorporated. 

• 95% bmittal of Construction Drawings for review. 
• I 00% Construction Drawings and specifications for city permit review. 
• Revised Construction Drawings based on city plan check review. 

5. Drainage Report 

CONSULT ANT will finalize the hydro logic analyses, hydraulic analyses, and 
technical drainage report based on the refinements that were made to take the 
design from the 60% design level to the 100% design level. The report will be 
prepared in accordance with the TMRDM, TMSCDLID, and NDOT Drainage 
Manual for submittal to RTC, the Cities of Reno and Sparks, and NDOT. 

6. NDOT Permitting 



NDOT Encroachment Permits will be required at Wells/1-80, Oddie/US 395, and 
at Oddie/Pyramid Way (SR 445). CONSULTANT will prepare occupancy permit 
applications/permit modifications for intersections located on NDOT facilities . 
Provide color coded plans in accordance with NDOT requirements. Submit a 
separate application for each location if necessary. Coordinate with NDOT 
District II permit office to obtain centerline station references for each location. 

Exclusions from Scope of Work. The following items are not part of the scope of work 
for the final design: 

• Utility generated design for relocation of existing utilities will not be prepared. 
Utility purveyors will develop their own relocation plans. Continued coordination 
and refinement to the utility relocation work will c0 tinue with the affected 
utilities. 

• No public art is included 
• No pocket park design is included 
• Utility potholing is not included at this ti e. As utili eoordination proceeds 

through final design, Stantec will P. ev,ide a p J?OSal for utility potholing, if 
needed. 

D. Right-of-Way Services 

1. 

CONSULTA Twill 00n.tinmMo provide right-of-way support ~ervices by 
updating t!u! Propelit)'; cquisition Management spreadsheet with revised 
ownershjp an a imp , t information within the project limits. This includes 
tracking po,tential prt'>blems, developing written recommendations, and identifying 
the resolution necessary for any issues related to damages and/or cost to cure and 
monitor pregres of each activity against the project schedule. 

2. Right-of-Way Meetings 

For any impacted properties, including any temporary construction impacts, 
CONSUL TANT will prepare for and attend up to two (2) additional in-person 
right-of-way coordination meetings with the RTC Project Manager and RTC 
Right-of-Way staff as required to conduct the ROW Engineering process. Two (2) 
other coordination meetings with CONSULTANT team are also included. Two 
(2) staff will attend each of these meetings. 

CONSULTANT will prepare exhibits, and attend a final Right-of-Way setting 
meeting with the RTC. Three (3) staff members will attend this meeting and will 
take meeting notes documenting changes to the exhibits/ memorandum and 



outcomes. Following the meeting, CONSULTANT will complete the exhibits 
and compile all the information and deliver to the RTC. 

3. Right-of-Way Engineering 

CONSULTANT will provide continued Right-of-Way Engineering Services as 
described below. CONSULTANT has assumed that 7 parcels will be impacted by 
permanent easement (PE - six of the seven parcels) and temporary construction 
easement (TE - all seven parcels). An additional 184 parcels are anticipated to be 
impacted by permission-to-construct or similar no-cost agreement allowing for 
the replacement of fencing along the right-of-way. 

The right-of-way engineering services include: 

Right o Way Exhibit Maps shall be 8-1/2" x 11" and shall include the following 
information as a minimum: 

• Owner of Record 
• Existing Right-of-Way 
• Proposed Right-of-Way 
• Area of additional required Right-of-Way 
• Existing Easements and any new required easement(s) on proposed Right-of

Way 
• County Assessor's parcel number and/or other lot and block designation from 

record mapping 
• Tax parcel number and owner's name 
• Sectional and/or subdivision references and ties 
• Existing topo 
• Take-area to be shaded 



• North arrow and scale 

For the additional 184 parcels potentially affected, CONSULTANT will develop 
simple sketch maps to provide the property owners depicting temporary accesses 
needs to complete the work. A quality review will be completed for each exhibit 
and legal description drafted. 

4. Exclusions 

The scope still does not include providing utility property rights research 
including investigation of prior rights, agreements, or utility easements. 

CONSULT ANT has assumed that up to 7 ownersh iRS wi 11 be impacted by up to 
13 permanent easements (PE) or temporary constn ctioo easement (TE). An 
additional 184 parcels are anticipated to be impacted by perll)ission-to-construct 
or similar no-cost agreement allowing for the replace ent of fencing along the 
right-of-way. The associated level of effort is developecl liased on this 
assumption, and any additional impacts to - operties are excluded without written 
authorization and additional fees. 

5. Deliverables 
• Updated Acquisition Manage en preadsheet with recommendations 
• Reviewed and illusti:ated pr-eliminary title report for up to 7 impacted 

properties 
• Parcel calculations fo p to 13 PE and TE parcels. 
• Sketch maps for up to 184:Permission-to-Constructs and 13 PE and temporary 

construction ease1 ent . 
• Legal de criptiens prepared for up to 13 PE and TE parcels. 

E. Public Outreacli 

1. Public Meeting 

This task will include supporting the R TC for preparations for and 
hosting/managing/executing two (2) public information meeting for 
communicating with the Public. This includes two planning meetings for each 
public meeting, coordination support for mailings, e-mail blasts, and stakeholder 
updates; meeting attendance; and meeting materials. 

Assumptions for this task are: 

• Walking the project corridor (3 miles each side) and estimating 5 minutes per 
stakeholder outreach. 



Also included in this task are support from other disciplines to prepare exhibits 
and other presentation materials and attend the public meetings. 

2. Stakeholder Outreach 

This task will also include coordination of stakeholder outreach meetings. These 
meetings will include business owners, community organizations, public officials, 
agency officials, labor organizations, chambers of commerce, schools, first 
responders and other affected members of the community. In addition to these, we 
will respond to requests for meetings made through other venues such as public 
meeting comments or the project website. 

Assumptions for this task are: 

• One (I) Community partner event (Sparks ocksport, Library 
Day) 

• One (I) Church event: donuts and coffee specia even support (TBD) 
• One (I) Grocery store, business o.utreaeh event (,Grocery Outlet, Good Will, 

Family Dollar) 
• Two (2) Sparks Marina or Paradise P rk Event 

F. Bidding Services 

1. 

CONSULTAN11 ii-I print and distribute up to 16 sets of final plans and 
specifications, inc]ud· g addenda to plan holder agencies, utility purveyors and 
Plan Exe.lfanges. .Pa ment for printing and distribution is to be included in this 
task. hese P:1ans are~on-reimbursable and are distributed to the project 
interes e parties. Plans and specifications will be available to prospective bidders 
from the RTC eoicl site. 

2. Pre-bid Meeting 

CONSUL TANT will be available during the bidding process to answer technical 
questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. All questions and responses will be 
documented and provided to RTC. CONS ULT ANT will prepare and distribute 
addenda, as required. All questions regarding legal aspects of the contract 
documents will be referred directly to RTC. CONSULTANT will prepare a 
summary of the pre-bid meeting and distribute to all plan holders, as directed by 
the RTC. 

3. Bid Opening 



CONSULTANT will attend the bid opening and review the bids received for 
irregularities and provide a recommendation for award. CONSULT ANT will 
tabulate bid results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and check multiplication and 
addition of bid items. 

G. Engineering During Construction 

Provide contract administration services as follows: 

1. Meetings & Site Visits 

CONSUL TANT will attend the attend the preconstruction conference. 
CONSULTANT's project manager will attend week!)( construction meetings and 
perform weekly site visits. At this time 50 meetings-and 50 site visits are 
anticipated. 

2. Submittals and RFl's 

CONSUL TANT will: 

• Review and provide comments 0n e contractor's traffic control plans 
• Review and stamp con aetor' ubmittal for conformance to the contract 

documents, including plantmix, bitum inous pavement and Portland Cement 
concrete mix design~ 

• Review and provide re<i:ommendations on test results 
• Review and prev-ide ree0mmendations on contractor's construction schedule 

and work prog ess 
• Revie •onstrt.tGtion for acceptance and/or mitigation 
• Pr , :v ide Rfl responses and recommendations to the RTC for any necessary 

co, struction char ges due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 

3. Record Drawings 

Record Drawings. Provide as-built record drawings for the completed project. 
Two sets of electronic drawings, in single file PDF format (22" x 34" at 300 dpi), 
on diskette will be provided to RTC for its files and distribution to the Local 
Entity. The PDF file shall include all plan sheets in one file with index/bookmark 
for easy access to different sheets or sections of the plan set. 

The final record drawings must be identified, dated, and signed as the record 
drawings and must also contain the engineer's stamp and signature. The 
Consultant may either: 



Key Staff 

• Provide the final revisions on the original engineer-stamped/signed 
reproducible drawings, which will then also be identified as the record 
drawings, or 

• Provide new engineer-stamped/signed reproducible drawings identified as the 
record drawings. 

The Record Drawings shall include a scan of the original title sheet (including the 
appropriate signatures by R TC, local government, signed and stamped by the 
CONSUL TANT) and identified as record drawings. 

1. Joseph Mactutis, Project Manager 
2. Clint Alverson, Roadway Lead 
3. Trina Magoon, Drainage Lead 
4. Barb Santner, Landscape and Aesthetics 
5. Cynthia Albright, Multi-modal 
6. Long Hoang, Electrical Lead (Roadway L"gbting) 
7. Randy Reynolds, Geotech Lead 
8. Halana Salazar, ROW Lead 
9. John Karachepone, Traffic Lead 
10. Kathleen Taylor, Public Outreach 
11. Richard Patterson, Bridge Re . 0 ,a,l 



-~ _::. 
0 I ,- .. 
' .. . .. 
' .. .- "' 

21.A PrD)l!CtObjectlnS 

P1011uPlan 

KltkoffMcMlng 

-ouf\ - tNt,n.o,n.11,i;iiia,u 
:aodayi: Thu5/10/11Wtd6/6/11 

2Ddays ThuS/10/18 'Ned!,/6/18 1 

Ddars lhu5/10/18lhu5/1D/1B1 

CoardlnillonMeeUn&RTC/NDOTDdays °"'n! !,/JUlll'l , 0,fUJII H"°I.,.,._ 

A&tll(VICldlotfMeellnt Odays WedS/1:l/18WdSn)JIBSFS•Sdavs 

Exhibit e 

NEPA Analysis and Preliminary Design of Oddle Boulevard/Wells Avenue Project 
N"ll•ri>J.• ...... ,.,. 

~,""'to,~ -"''- °'' "• Dooll ,.,. ,._ 1,;, ~ 'I.ti, MU 4 -""' Cm , !Wf,I 

~ 
• ,i,. 

\ 5/1& 

• 5/2J 

-i :z1a, Datacoll1ct1on 11Dd•vs Thu5/1D/l8Wld1/16/1~ . .. , ~ ~ 
" .. 
n 

'' 
.. .. .. 

:t -i 

I \ ~ ,.- ~ 
II- ~ -.. ~ .. 
;, " 
" .. 
u .. 
» -i 

....,-;- ~ 

... 
" 

i .. 
i, :t .. 

jj " 
~ .. 
" .. .. .. 

" .. 
.. .. 
"' .. 

T0p01raphK:Survty 7Sd1ys l ._ lt{IQl'IIW1•UlJ1H•t 

Geo1echn1callnvesL1uu011 B2davs T~uS/10/18 Fri8131/U 4 

Pavem,nt Rehab lllmlan 13i days Tn~ 5/10/UI Fri ll/!1/18 

\.fltlft""'"'U-411-ljl!Ntn~t~~' 
I 

T._1Q()S(lf'ft'rtl'lfl~UZOSS•6Dd1y,; • 

Wftll/lUaf11eHJU11t I Dl~citillh' 60day, 

li , itro,r,111111ttM.1 '\t,,I BOdavs wroia,1u11N U/'111 , 

Traffl<:FDm111ln1 lOOday,; Wtd8/15/18Tuel/l/11l 

Sat1ry and-'cce~ManJ(tmtnl 90d~ Wtdi/lS/lBTutl'/) 11/U 

Z,tC. trwlronmenttl ld1r Tutl/30/lBlu1l/lOIIB 

21CI. Pr1ll111lna,yDe,11ri 4S8d1y,;? Tue1/3D/lllln110/ll/1! 

TACMcetlnss lday? 1.-.UWll 'willlOf~ 
UtlMtyCoordlnallcnMeetlnss 1d1y? , .. 11>0111n,.,1ft0#1• 

~Plans ISO d~ys Thue/2/18 W•dl/27/198 

Otlwet'ablt•3°"P5&! , .. ,. WNll/27/t'JWtdU27/192o 

Aa1nryRfllltw 2Ddays Thu2/2B/19Wtd]n7J1921 

60,-Plans 120days Fr1 S/17/19 Thu 10/]1/1~22 

Odv,ra~e-60",6PS&E odavs Thul0/31/mhul0/31/1!23 

PDSAWcrkshop , .. ,. W~ l/1i/19Wtd 2/27/1910 

l.l.t, PublltOU\.!Ht~ """"' ThuS/1of]aTh111/U/20 

PubllC OUtrtKh (on1ol~ll 400d1y,; ThuS/l0/1BW1d11/20/11 

PublleMeellngU Oday, Thul1n9/1Elhull/29/1E 

Publl,Meclinelll Odays Tnul/2B/19Thu3!lB/1921 

PubllcMeellng#3 , .. ,. Thul/]3/20Thul/l3no 

U .t. aiv,t:. 111,.W,yAt111,•10 4200ays Tt.uS/10/16Wtdll/ll/14 

Nctk;tlDProceedforfln~Dflll,n Odayl Wld4/l/20 Wd•/1/20 

90%D«lan 6S6days Wad4/1/lDWirdJ0/5/2:l 

llln'Plans 90davs W~tfl/,-, l uff.A fl'l JJ 

9""~11\1cr.ibl~ Oday, ••-.Utm ••uvn ,.. 
Aac11ryRN1tw 2Ddavs WN •/j/10 Iipt/(1)0 u 

l""DHltn 65dl','I Writ(1/1'9 f lH U/ lM 

tCIO\oPlans sodavs Wrd9/2/20 Tutll/10/2(36 

10Cl'l6Delivuable Oday, Tuell/10/2CTuel1/10/2C38 

A&tncyRev,ew ISdays Wedt1/11/2Tuel2/1/lD39 

,~ ....,..~""""""" lSdevs Wtdl2/2notueU/22/lC40 

Blitdl"C UdtyS Wedll/23/JWH'l/17/2' 

Adlltrtlst 2Dd1ys Wt'd12/2l/2Tue1/!ll/2141 

lldOpenlna D da~s l11tl/19/21Tuel/l9/2143 

Ctmtr~ct 20 d;i~s Wtdl/20/21Tuel/16/Z144 

cons1r11ct1onNTP , .. , w,.urull"'-tclh)/)1,u 

,., ,,.,,,.., .......----, 

"''' ~1oiect~mm,,..,. .------, 
v, ... Ellern1lluh~ 

1,--:.-::.-::.=='~:---

. ,., .. 

( ,:;-•W.-

ln~<ll~TMO 
..n,..,.., ,.. .. ,,,,. 

P;i,atl 

... _ ... 

• l/ll 



Exhibit B 

Compensation 



I _,_.__ 

, 1 - ---

\ , - --

11..-,~c c..-....,1•.._.s,.- ,~ ""-
' •~• <oc.• .. •t• " C .. , P,--....-~ • --. ••'"'r' 1,,__ .', .. , 

Exhibit B • Co1I Proposal 
Oddie-Wells Final Design Project 

MHI....-C...i.lll" i, ~l•t:. 

,,._0..•~11-M• l n o 

., 

·, .. 

i . i 
{ 



Exhibit C 

Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REOIDREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

[NRS 338 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL) 
2019-11-11 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONT ACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0400. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to save and hold harmless and f'u l1y indemnify RTC, Washoe County, City 
of Reno and City of Sparks including their elect officials o,fficers employees, and agents 
(hereafter, "Indemnitees") from and against any and all elaims,:J)roceedings, actions, liability and 
damages, including reasonable attorneys' ees and defense costs incurred in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arising 0ut o tf'ie: 

A. Negligence, errors, omissions, te'eJ<less ess 0r intentional misconduct of CONSUL TANT 
or CONSUL TANT's agents, em12loyee_~, · fficers directors, subconsultants, or anyone else 
for whom CONSULT A'.N'L may oe. legally responsible, which are based upon or arising 
out of the professional services 0'fCONSULTANT; and 

B. Violation of law or any, contractual provisions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, franc is.es, Ji)ate~ts , r other means of protecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from tne use b the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliverable (inc uding software) supplied by CONSULTANT under or as a result 
of this Agreement, but excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSULT ANT. 

CONSUL TANT further agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the 
Indemnitees from and against any and all Damages arising out the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULT ANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSUL TANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 



property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 
If the lndemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULTANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSULT ANT is legally responsible, CONSULT ANT shall reimburse the Indemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the Indemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall either (I) secure for the Indemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procuring a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become 0n-infringing. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are separate and severable and it is tlie intent of the Parties hereto 
that in the event any provision of this Agreement sh0uld be deten med by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, voidable or too restri ive fo any ea on whatsoever, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain vaLid and b' ding upon said Parties. It is also understood 
and agreed that in the event any provisio hou d be considered, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, to be void because it imposes: a grea er obligation on CONSUL TANT than is 
permitted by law, such court may redu, e and ref©tm such provisions to limitations which are 
deemed reasonable and enforceable by sa · 001.J • 

Prior to the start of any work on a RTC project, CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the type and, l-imits as bl scribed below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which ay arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULT· T its subconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSUL TANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSUL TANT shall furnish RTC with a certificate(s) ofinsurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 



notice of cancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSUL TANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten ( 10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSUL TANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULTANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsu ants referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause ubs em loyed by CONSUL TANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limit @f. the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each shall include the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insureds un , er its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stated ereiQ., wit , • ut requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional in ureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained by Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for a Y, applicable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is @R:EA TER. If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the 0 t acto , Con actor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Conttact r. hen requested by RTC, CONSUL TANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates 0f insu nee evidencing coverage for each subconsultant. 
CONSULTANT need not requi e its 0n-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability insurance. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 



8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
ofNevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSULT ANT fails to furnish the required certificate 0r fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right h>ut not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSUL TANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to furnish sue , certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed b an autho · ecl representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC t© identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a wa\(er 0f CONSUL TANT's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver: as to the en mrcement of any of these provisions at a later 
date. 

D. By requiring insurance herei does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be ade_g1:1ate to pro ect CONSUL TANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation© CONSULTANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
RTC in this contrac . 

E. If CONSULTANTS liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 



products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 I 0 
07 /04 or CG 20 33 07 /04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to RTC or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 
CONSULT ANT waives all rights against RTC i;tnd any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSUL TANT' s insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the A@licy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability 'd, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $ , 0 ,000 each aed dent. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including ewned ired a~d non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 0 CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for all o neg leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to ac ,ept auto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULT T dees not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSULT ANT waives all righ s against RTC its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent th~se d m,ages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CONSUL TANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSULTANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSUL TANT, and any subconsultants, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULT ANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State ofNevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 



CONSULT ANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSUL TANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSUL TANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSUL TANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABI . 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain professional liability insurance ppl)(ng to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of the scope o· CONSULT ANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not les ban $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULTANT shall maintain professi0nal lia!illity in urance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "c iji s maae" or. claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extend ea reQO~ing period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agre ment. 



Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Brian Stewart, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 

AGENDA ITEM 3.6 

Amy Cummings, P, 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Resolution regarding property disposition 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a resolution regarding potential sale of five remnant parcels to the Board of Regents of 
the Nevada System of Higher Education on behalf of the University of Nevada, Reno after 
completion of the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project and contingent on 
approval from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and compliance with all applicable state 
and federal laws and regulations. 

SUMMARY 

RTC acquired five parcels between 8th and 9th Streets on the east side of Virginia Streets for the 
Virginia Street RAPID Extension Project. The parcels will be used for the construction of 
roadway and transit improvements, including bicycle lanes, ADA compliant sidewalks, a center 
median and left tum lane, bus pull-out /queue jump lane, and a RAPID station that will serve RTC 
and University of Nevada, Reno transit routes. Although the RTC acquired the full parcels to 
accommodate the Project, a portion of each parcel will no longer be needed by the RTC after 
construction is complete. Staff presented this information at the January 17, 2020, RTC Board 
workshop. 

During the workshop, R TC staff presented options to the Board regarding the remnant parcels, 
including the following: 

• RTC owns and maintains the remnant parcels, 
• RTC sells or leases property in accordance with FTA regulations & Nevada statutes, or 
• RTC pursues a joint development through FTA. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



Virginia Street BRT Extension Remnant Parcels 
RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page 2 

Staff also presented a summary of the City of Reno's University of Nevada Regional Center Plan, 
which was approved by the Reno City Council. The plan identifies the parcels now owned by the 
RTC as part of the University Campus Gateway Precinct. It states that this area should: 

• Bridge the City and University interface with campus facilities, university oriented private 
development, enhanced physical landscape and prioritized urban infrastructure. 

• Foster a heightened urban mixed-use pedestrian environment anchored by a flagship multi
modal transit station. 

• Feature a mix of campus academic spaces and community-serving uses with a welcoming 
program for the broader Reno community. 

It was discussed at the workshop that having a future use on the parcels that attracts people to the 
station area would have a beneficial impact to transit ridership. 

During the meeting, the University of Nevada, Reno requested that the RTC consider selling the 
remnant parcel to the Board of Regents for use as a future University building. Board members 
suggested coordinating with City of Reno staff so that next steps would be consistent with Reno 
land use goals and plans. 

RTC staff subsequently met with representatives from the City of Reno. It was recognized that 
selling the remnant parcels to the University for future University development would be 
consistent with adopted land use plans. 

The University of Nevada, Reno, has requested that the RTC adopt a resolution indicating that the 
remnant parcels will be sold to the University after completion of the project, contingent on 
approval from the FTA and compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations. 

R TC has initiated coordination with the FTA regarding the remnant parcels. The FT A requires 
that the property be sold for fair market value. An appraisal and review appraisal are required and 
must be approved by the FT A. 

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) authorizes RTC to sell remnant parcels, stating that "when the 
property is sought by another public agency for a reasonable public use, the commission may first 
offer the property to the public agency at its fair market value pursuant to NRS 277.050." 

Staff recommends approval of this resolution due to the anticipated benefits to the RTC and the 
transit system. Proceeds from the sale would be invested in the transit system for future capital 
projects and activity to be created by University development adjacent to the RAPID station would 
generate increased transit ridership. 



FISCAL IMPACT 

The parcels would be sold for fair market value. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

Virginia Street BRT Extension Remnant Parcels 
RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page3 

January 17, 2020 Staff presented options for the remnant parcels for consideration. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S} RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachment 



Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 3. 7 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: R. Warren Call, P.E. 
Engineer II Amy Cumrilings, A , L 

Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Newport Lane Rehabilitation 
Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with CA Group to provide design and optional 
engineering duiing construction services for the ewport Lane Rehabilitation Project in an amount 
not to exceed $354 823 · authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement (see Attachment A) with CA Group is for professional design services for the 
Newport Lane Rehabilitation Project in the amount of $192,775, and optional engineering during 
construction services (EDC) in the amount of $162,048. The Project includes 
rehabilitation/reconstruction of Newport Lane from Link Lane to Collins Circle. 

CA Group was selected from the Civil Engineering Design and Construction Management Services 
List as a qualified firm to perform engineering, construction management and quality assurance. 
Negotiation of CA Group's scope, schedule and budget indicated the amount for design services is 
within the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

The 2021 Roadway Reconstruction Project appropriations will be included in the FY 2021 Budget 
and Program of Projects as part of the Annual Pavement Preservation Program. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

June 20, 2019 Approved the Qualified Consultant List for Engineering Design and 
Construction Management Services 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachment 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

ATTACHMENT A 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of March 20, 2020, by and between 
the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and CA Group, Inc. 
("CONSULT ANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, R TC has selected CA Group from the R TC Design and Construction shortlist to 
perform Design and Engineering Services (EDC) Services in connection with the Newport Lane 
Rehabilitation Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

1. I . The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through December 
3 I, 2021, unless terminated at an earl iej clate, or extencled to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

1.2. CONSULTANT will promptly, diligently; and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professjonal standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act ofany government, civil disturbances or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control ofCONSULTA'.NT. 

1.3. CONSUL TA T shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement ancl a purchase prder has been issued to CONSULTANT. If CONSULTANT 
violates that prohibition CONSULTANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order, CONSULT ANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

ART ICLE 2 - SER VICES OF CONSUL TANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF ER VICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

-1-



2.2. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must be approved by RTC' s Project Manager. 

2.3. CONTINGENCY 

Contingency line items identified in the scope of services are for miscellaneous increases 
within the scope of work. Prior to the use of any contingency amounts, CONSUL TANT 
shall provide a letter to RTC's Project Manager detailing the need, scope, and not-to
exceed budget for the proposed work. Work to be paid for out of contingency shall proceed 
only with the RTC Project Manager' s written approval. 

2.4. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the right to exercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exhibit A. CONSUL TANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested; a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. R TC will review and approve the scope of services and R TC and 
CONSUL TANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULT ANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or firm to . perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

CONSULTANT will provide additional services when agreed to in writing by RTC and 
CONSULTANT. . 

2.6. PERFORMANCE REOUJ REMENTS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSUL TANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

-2-



Any sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
s/rnll be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULTANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of this Agreement. All test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number. 

2.7. ERRORS AND OMISSIO 

CONSUL TANT shall, without additional compensation, cprrect or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULTANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSULTANT also agrees that if any error or omission is found, CONSULTANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSUL TANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULTANT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 -COMPENSATION 

3.1. CONSULTANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed1 amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULTANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULTANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Services (Tasks 2.1.A to 2.1.D) 
Design Contingency 
Optional Services (Tasks 2.1.E to 2.1.l) 
Construction Contingency 
Total 

$187,775 
$5,000 

$147,048 
$15.000 

$354,823 

3.3. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 

-3-



Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSULT ANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than 105% of the amounts billed to CONSUL TANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of R TC, except: (1) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSULTANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTICLE 4 - INVOICING 

4.1. CONSUL TANT shall submit monthly invoices in the fox; at specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com~ R. TC ,s payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be para at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by R C that are n0t paid within thirty (30) days 
ofreceipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30) da of- receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RTC. 

4.3. CONSULTANT shall maintain eomplete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon re • est @<D SUL TANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall bale t e right, to inspect and copy such records. 

ARTICLE 5 - AG!<SESS TO INFORMATION AND PROPERTY 

5.1. Upon request and withou cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all pertinent 
information that is reasonably available to RTC including surveys, reports and any other 
data relative to design and construction. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSUL TANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULTANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSULT ANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULT ANT prior to the Agreement is excluded from this requirement. 
CONSULT ANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 

-4-



interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULTANT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. CONSULTANT represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to R TC. 

6.3. CONSULTANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or processes used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSULT ANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or prepares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSUL TANT may 
refer to this scope of work in connectiQn with its promotional literature in a professional 
and commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULTANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULTANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

ARTICLE 7 - TERMINATION 

7.1. CONTRACTTERMfNATIQN FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSUL TANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULTANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULTANT is in 
default. CONSUL TANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSUL TANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULTANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSULTANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

-5-



7.2. CONTRACT TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSULTANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSULTANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULTANT. If CONSULTANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE 

8.1. CONSULTANT shall not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/wo ki required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSUL TANT shall obtain all types and am unts g insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions se forth therein. 

10.1. During the perfi rmance 0J: his Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSUL TANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are emP.loyed and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to flrerr race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSULT ANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by R TC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

I 0.2. CONSULT ANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 

-6-



10.3. CONSULTANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 11 - RESOLUTlON OF CLAIMS AND DI PUTES 

11.1. NEGOTIATED RESOLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

11.2. MEDIATION 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negot'ated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writin · 0ftne dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute . or e:laim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other i;i y' s receipt 0 cteemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree u QD a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upo a mediator within ten (10) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each par~ shal elect a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the e. ~ator. A ediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the quali ,cation e forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the ~es Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Com . n ess otl1erwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall a,ve comP.lete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to ~y the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within tlurt;i ( ,0) da);s following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unles otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

-7-



11 .4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12 - PROJECT MA AGERS 

12.1. RTC's Project Manager is Warren Call, P.E. or such other person as is later designated in 
writing by RTC. RTC's Project Manager has authority to act as RTC's representative with 
respect to the performance of this Agreement. 

12.2. CONSULTANT' Project Manager is Chad Anson, P.E. or such other person as is later 
designated in writing by CONSULTANT. CONSULT . T's Project Manager has 
authority to act as CONSULTANT's representative with respect to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

13.1. Notices required under this Agreement shall be gjven as foll0ws: 

14.1. 

RTC: 

ARTICLE 14 - DELAYS IN PERFORMA CE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

-8-



14.2. UNAVOIDABLE DELAY 

14.3. 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSUL TANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSULTANT's performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSULTANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSULTANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

OTIFICA TION OF DELAYS 

CONSULTANT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSUL TAN has knowledge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise becomes aware that CONSULTANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (10) working day, f ereaft'er, CONSULT ANT shall 
provide such notice to RTC, in writing, furnishing as muo etail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REOUE T FOR EXTENS ION 

15.1. 

Any request by CONSULTANT for ah extel}si0n of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writi g t.9 R C. CONSULTANT shall supply to RTC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the aclditional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised s fueau e. T shall provide CONSUL TANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable · ne afj: r receipt of a request. 

s 

RTC and CONSULTA 1 bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the sacces ors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither RTC nor 
CONSULTANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than RTC and 
CONSULTANT. 

15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSULTANT's professional services, and CONSULTANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

-9-



15.3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

CONSULTANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSULT ANT is not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits RTC provides to its employees. CONSULTANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for othe ·s while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being provided by CONSULTAN o RT .. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

15.6. 

A. with all applicable federal, state and local 
goverl)Jl;'lent laws regulations and ordinances. CONSULTANT shall be 
responsibJ er qbtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under tli is Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish RTesertificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSULT ANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULTANT does engage in such public work, CONSULTANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIV E AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 

-10-



the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CONTI UING OBLJGA TION 

CONSULT ANT agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONSUL TANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSULT ANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render complete performance. However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement ifit considers the de th or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to affect G@NSULTANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreemen . 

15.10. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 

The provisions of this Agreement shall _e governed anti construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nevada. The exc usive 1/e · ue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judieial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit o he j ·sdiction of that District Court. 

15.11. ATTORNEYS' FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction the ,re ailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable att0meys fees. 

EV ADA SE A TE BILL 27 (2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott of Israel for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSUL TANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

-11-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: _____________ _ 

Adam Spear 
R TC Director of Legal Services 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

-12-



Exhibit A 

SCOP.E OF SERVICES 

NEWPORT LANE REHABILITATION PROJECT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This will generally consist of the following tasks: 

2.1.A. Investigation of Existing Conditions 

I. Falling Weight Deflectometer (FWD) Testing - Not applicable to this 
project. 

2. Condition Survey. 

a. CONSULTANT will vis 

b. 

Corrsttuction of improvements for a Special Assessment District 
(SA ) will be included with this project. The City of Reno will 

>eifoJTJn a sidewalk and driveway apron condition survey and 
pr,epare the SAD documents. The CONSULT ANT shall review the 
· ity of Reno's SAD documents for compatibility to project, make 

suggestions and incorporate into the construction plans accordingly. 

3. Traffic Data. 

a. Traffic data is needed to estimate the past 18-kip equivalent single 
axle load (ESAL) applications that have contributed to the current 
condition of the pavement, as well as the future 18-kip ESAL 
applications that will be required for rehabilitation/reconstruction 
design. It is assumed that all the information on average daily traffic 
(current and future), truck percentages and truck factors will be 
available from Nevada DOT traffic records (NDOT TRINA station 
located north of railroad on Link Lane). The CONSULTANT will 
also review accident data for possible safety problem areas, and 
provide recommendations. 



4. FWD Deflection Plots and Strip Charts - Not applicable to this project. 

5. Right-of-Way Mapping and Engineering Services 

a. CO SULTANT will obtain record right-of-way based upon 
Washoe County GIS information and Washoe County Recorder's 
Office. The recorded right-of-way information will be shown on the 
project plans and tied into survey monuments. No further resolution 
of the roadway right-of-way is included in this task. 

b. 

C. 

Deliverables - Record right-of-way in CAD format 

It is estimated approximately ten (I 0) parcels will require permanent 
and/or temporary easements and/or potential fee takes to construct 
the planned improvements. CO . SULT ANT will perform boundary 
surveying including preparation df full Metes and Bounds 
descriptions of ten (I 0) individua par els. This will include 
property record researcli <drafting of property boundaries from 
record descriptions ealculati0ns of earch coordinates for filed 
boundary survey field b unda~ survey on each affected parcel, 
post processing a d reduction of field data, boundary resolution 
based upon field fi dings preparation of legal descriptions and 
exhibit maps o in i~id 1;1 ) affected parcels. CONSULT ANT shall 
pull prelimina Title Reports and updates as necessary for each 
affected p~rce . 

It is estimatea approximately five (5) parcels will require 
Pe ission to Construct the planned driveway improvements. 
CO SULT ANT will provide an encroachment exhibit and vesting 
de s for each parcel for use in R TC' s discussion with property 
owners to acquire Permission to Construct. 

Right-of-way appraisal, property owner negotiations, escrow 
coordination and title clearance are not included within this task. 

Deliverables -property boundary for ten (I 0) parcels along with exhibit 
maps and legal descriptions for easements on each parcel. 
Encroachment exhibits and vesting deeds for permissions to construct. 
Right-of-Way summary spreadsheet detailing easement type, size, and 
reason by parcel. Five (5) permission to construct exhibits to also be 
provided. 

6. Subsection Identification and Core Location Selection. Information from 
the condition surveys will be reviewed and locations for pavement coring 
and boring will be identified by CONSULTANT and reviewed and 
approved by the RTC. It is anticipated that approximately 4 pavement core 

2 



locations will be required. The primary objective of the coring/boring 
program will be to establish pavement, base, and subgrade layer thickness 
and material types. Falling weight deflectometer not applicable to this 
project. 

7. Geotechnical Investigation. Following pavement coring, the subsurface 
soils will be augered, if possible, to a depth of five feet to determine the 
thickness of aggregate base present and to obtain samples of the subgrade 
soils for classification. A drill rig will be mobilized to complete the 
investigation. Representative samples of the soils encountered will be used 
for testing to aid in classification and moisture content determination. The 
results of the geotechnical investigation and associated laboratory testing 
will be summarized in a written report. 

9. Develop Feasible 
CONSULTANT will 

Alternatives. 

10. Conduct Life-Cycle Cost Analysis - Not applicable to this project. 

11. Identify Optimum Rehabilitation/Reconstruction Alternative. Based upon 
the results of the cost analysis, as well as some practical construction 
considerations, CONSULT ANT will prepare the recommended 
rehabilitation or reconstruction alternative(s) for the project. It should be 
noted that because of varying conditions along the length of the project, 
there may be more than one recommendation. 

12. Utility Investigation/Depiction 

a. Overhead Utilities: CONSUL TANT will investigate and locate all 
overhead utilities within the roadway right of way and areas 
reasonably affected. Deliverable will include depiction of all 

3 



b. 

C. 

d. 

overhead utilities within the roadway right-of-way on plans 
developed under Section 2.1.B, Preliminary Design. 

Subsurface Utilities: CONSULTANT will investigate and locate 
subsurface utilities within the roadway right-of-way, and areas 
reasonably effected, in accordance with the American Society of 
Civil Engineers Standard guideline for the Collection and Depiction 
of Existing Subsurface Utility Data, Quality Level C. Additionally, 
CONSULT ANT will coordinate with Utility Owners to remove lids 
of surface features and document depth of utility device, or invert of 
pipe, within such surface features. Deliverables will include: 
Depiction of subsurface utilities on plan sheets developed under 
Section 2.1.B, Preliminary Design. An inventory of subsurface 
utility surface features by Owner, ype location, and depth of 
feature or pipe invert. 

Utility coordination: Based on field investigation CONSUL TANT 
will provide RTC a list of utility comRany ose utilities are likely 
to be within the project Iii ·t,s or reasonably affected by the project. 
R TC will issue the initial notlficatio o the utility agencies on the 
list and CONSULTANT ·11 co dinate with the utility agencies for 
upcoming wo k - Gi lity relocation and new installation, and to 
insure utilities likely f(ected by the project are drawn on the plan 
and profile, evalua e potential conflicts through field investigation, 
investi ate con-fret reselution strategies. 

W'tili~ PothQ.ie Exploration (OPTIONAL): Should insufficient 
information be vailable from existing records to determine whether 
or 1\@ eontlicts between the proposed work and existing utilities will 
occur the CONSUL TANT shall pothole three (3) locations to make 
sueh a determination. 

13. Rep0rt. 'fhe findings and recommendations of CONSULT ANT for all tasks 
identified in Section 2.1.A shall be submitted by report with backup 
documentation. The Geotechnical Report and pavement design shall also 
be submitted to the Local Entity if the recommended pavement section 
varies from the Entities standards. 

14. Drainage Memo. The Service Provider shall perform all analysis to design 
the drainage system supporting the roadway improvements. Roadway 
improvements will match existing curb, gutter and sidewalk from Link 
Lane to La France Lane. For this area, existing drainage patterns will be 
maintained, and no drainage analysis will be performed. 

From La France Lane to Collins Circle, the existing curb and gutter on the 
north side of Newport Lane will be maintained, and new curb, gutter and 
sidewalk will be constructed on the south side. The south side 

4 



improvements will require a minor roadside ditch to be covered. Offsite 
flows contributing to this area will be estimated using the rational method. 
Available USGS quadrangle topography and site investigation will be 
used to develop approximate drainage basins. Onsite flows will also be 
computed using the Rational Method, using the roadway plans to 
determine contributing basins. 

The capacity of the existing ditch to be covered will be estimated using 
normaJ depth computations. A storm drain system will be de.s igned to 
replace the lost conveyance, and to perpetuate existing drainage patterns. 
The storm drain wi ll drain to the entrance of the existing 3-24 ' RCP 
culverts near the intersection of La France Lane and Newport Lane. The 
roadway improvements as scoped will not require the modification of 
these culverts, i.e., the culvert entrance will remain as in the existing 
conditions. Existing utilities will be reaso · ably avoided. 

An onsite drainage system will be designed meet E;jty of Reno criteria 
limiting onsite drainage flows to~ of the eastbouqcl travel lane for the 5-
y ear storm. The drainage for the estbound travel lane will not be 
altered, and not evaluated. • P (l)XU .ate flo depths in Newport Lane 
will be estimated using normal d pth eq ations for the 5 and 100-Year 
events. 

L :ydrology 
a. E~aluate offsite contributing basins for all necessary concentration 

points between Collins Circle and La France Lane. 
b. Evaluate onsite drainage basins. 

2. Hydraulics 
a. Existing ditch capacity 
b. Onsite system 

i. Drop inlets 
ii. Storm drain 

3. Report 
a. Draft Report 
b. Final Report 

5 



2.1.B. Preliminary Design 

1. Supplemental Topography. Obtain cross-sections at critical locations 
within the length of project. 

2. Mapping. Provide field topo survey or aerial photography in a digitized 
format for plan view at a scale of l "=20' with a width at least 20 feet behind 
the curbs along the length of the project to provide for consideration of 
improvements and grade continuity behind the curb. Topography at I-foot 
contour intervals shall be added. 

3. Project Coordination. Attend meetings, review reports, and provide project 
coo rd inati on. 

4. Plans and Specifications. Prepare preliminary Plans, an outline of 
Technical Specifications, and a preliminary cost estimate suitable for RTC 
and Local Government review. Constructi@n plans shall cover an area 
sufficient for contractor's later use as a base rt affic control plans, e.g., 
coverage should include traffic oo trol taper areas across intersections. 
Curb, gutter, and sidewalk at are deficient according to both RTC and 
local entity standards sh I[ be ide tified, 

5. Public Information A presentation will be made by 
CONSUL TANT and :R € to p . - erties adjacent to the project work zone 
to discuss p oje.c I imits eope tentative schedule, traffic controls, 
driveway access, ~ubli rr@'tification requirements, and concerns of adjacent 
properties- ii,efore tfie plans and specifications are finalized. 

6. Traffic Sigga Modification Design for Street Intersection - Not applicable 
to this project. 

2.1.C. Final Design 

1. Prepare Final Plans and Specifications 

a. Prepare Final Construction Plans, Contract Documents and 
Technical Specifications suitable for construction bid advertisement 
for the approved alignment in accordance with RTC standards and 
requirements. RTC will provide the boilerplate on disk in MS Word 
format. The RTC, Local Entity and Quality Control review 
comments will be incorporated into the final Plans and 
Specifications. 

The final construction plans will be on 22" x 34" size sheets and will 
show all elements of the project construction including plan/profile 
view right-of-way lines cross-sections and construction/slope 
limits. The final plan set will include, as a minimum: 

6 



• Cover Sheet 
• Plan/Profile Sheets (at 1 "=20' scale) 
• Drainage Plan and Profile (at 1 "=20' scale) 
• Grading and Pedestrian Ramp Details ( at 1"=10' scale 
• Intersection Plan Sheets ( at 1 "= 1 O' scale) 
• Signing and Striping Plan Sheets (at 1 "=20') 
• Detail Sheets (scales as noted). 

Depths of existing sanitary sewer and storm drain utilities will be 
checked and noted on the plans if there is any reason to expect 
conflict due to vertical clearances. All located, existing 
underground utilities will be shown on the Plan Sheets accompanied 
with the following "Note: Subsurfac utilities are depicted by their 
Quality Levels in accordance Ame ican Society of Civil Engineers 
Standard Guidelines for the Col ecti n and Depiction of Existing 
Subsurface Utility Data (CI/A CE 38-02). II utility information 
shown hereon is depictecl to Quality Le el "C", unless otherwise 
noted." 

The Contract ocumep.ts ancJ Technical Specifications will 
reference the !ates eclition of Standard Specifications for Public 
Works Constr · ·og ( ange Book) for standard construction items. 
Technical rov1s·o11s wi be prepared for approved deviations from 
the Ora · e ~ oo ana unique construction items not adequately 
covered in e Orange Book. The final plans and specifications will 
oe signed and sealed by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil 
E ineer i responsible charge of preparation. Plans and 
speei 1cations will be submitted to the RTC, Local Entity, utility 
ageneies and other affected parties for review at the 50%, 90%, 
I 00%, and final stages of completion per the following: 

• 50% & 90% Plans-One electronic copy (PDF) on CD to RTC, 
One 22"x34" set each to RTC, two 1 l"x17" sets to RTC, two 
11 "x 17" sets to Local Entity, and one 11 "x 17" set each to utility 
agencies and other affected parties. 

• 90% Plans - One 11 "x 17" set to Washoe County Health District 
(WCHD). 

• 90% Specifications - One set each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• 100% Plans - One 11 "x 17" each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• 100% Plans - Email pdf of updated sheet(s) to WCHD as 

needed. 
• 100% Specifications - One set each to R TC and Local Entity. 
• Final Working Plan Set - One 22"x34" set to RTC, one 11 "x 17" 

set each to RTC and Local Entity. 

7 



2.1.D. 

• Final Working Specification Document - One set each to RTC 
and Local Entity, one copy in MS Word format of the Contract 
Documents and Technical Specifications to RTC. 

b. Independent Checker. An independent checker will check, initial 
and date each plan sheet. A quality control review of the plans, 
contract documents and technical specifications will be performed 
which will focus on technical aspects of the plans and specifications 
and will ensure that all items of work are adequately covered. 

c. 'Utility Agency Coordination. Distribute design review submittals 
(50% & 90%) to utility agencies for review and comment and 
provide RTC a list of utility agencies provided design review 
submittals and Utility Agency review. comments . 

2. Final Engineer's Opinion of Probabl Cons ruction Costs and Time. 
Provide a final Engineer's opinion of probable construction costs for the 
project based on the final design and any alternati es or options. The cost 
opinion will be in the same format as the bid reposal form included in the 
contract documents. A qualify contr revie of the cost opinion will be 
performed by the CO S ANif. The ON UL TANT will also estimate 
the number of working or ·ruen< ar days, as appropriate, for the construction 
of the projects. 

3. Contingency. bi is a eentingency for miscellaneous increases within the 
scope of this contract. O.NSULTANT shall provide a letter detailing the 
need, sc@pe and noHQ-exceed budget for any proposed work. Work under 
this task shal preceed only with the RTC Project Manager's written 
ap~r"G al. 

1. Plan Set and Specification Distribution. CONSUL TANT will provide RTC 
with final plans and specifications, including addenda, in Portable 
Document Format (PDF), for use in the Ebid system. 

2. Pre-bid Meeting. CONSULTANT will be available during the bidding 
process to answer technical questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. All 
questions and responses will be documented and provided to RTC. 
CONSUL TANT will prepare and provide PDF addenda, if required. All 
questions regarding legal aspects of the contract documents will be referred 
directly to RTC. CONSULTANT will prepare and provide a PDF summary 
of the pre-bid meeting, as directed by the RTC. 

3. Bid Opening. CONSULTANT will attend the bid opening and review the 
bids received for irregularities and provide a recommendation for award. 

8 



CONSULTANT will tabulate bid results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and 
check multiplication and addition of bid items. 

2.1.E - I Construction Services (Optional) - The R TC and CONSULT ANT shall review 
Optional Construction Services following the completion of final design to determine their 
appropriateness to the project. 

2.1.E. Contract Administration (Optional) 

1. Provide contract administration services as follows: 

2. 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Perform construction coordination 
• Review and provide recommendations 00 contractor's traffic control 

plans 
• Review and stamp contractor's sub1 

contract documents, including plant pavement and 
Portland Cement concrete m · . designs 

• Review and provide recommendations o 
• Review and provide r,ee m encl t io s construction 

schedule and work p 0 ress 
• Review constructi'©n fo act ptance and/or mitigation 
• Provide verificatio and ap roval of contractor's monthly pay request 
• Supervise the inspe tion sur eying and material testing activities 
• Provide rec0mmendations to the RTC for any necessary construction 

chan e due to eta c0nditions 

eontingency. This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the 
$Co_pe !;>f' his eontract. CONSULT ANT shall provide a letter detailing the 
need sco .- e and not-to-exceed budget for any proposed work. Work under 
this ta K shall proceed only with the RTC Project Manager's written 
approval. 

2.1.F. Construction Surveying (Optional) 

Provide construction staking as follows: 

• One set of preliminary grading stakes at 50' stations denoting offsets and 
cut or fill to finish grade. This set of stakes will also delineate clearing and 
grubbing limits. 

• One set of red tops at 50 feet centers for sub grade preparation. 
• One set of final curb and gutter stakes at 50 foot stations and 25 foot stations 

at returns. 

9 



• One set of offset stakes for storm drains, head walls, traffic signals, and 
utility pull boxes and vaults. 

• Roadway monuments referenced in four directions. 

2.1.G. Inspection (Optional) 

I . Provide Inspector. Provide one full time inspector during all construction 
activities. 10-hour workdays and a 45 working day contract period are 
anticipated. This inspector will: 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Monitor the work performed by the Contractor and verify that the 

work is in accordance with the plans and specifications 
• Assist in problem resolution with t · R TC, contractor personnel, 

utility agencies, the public and others 
• Prepare daily inspection repo1 s submitted weekly to R TC and 

CC'd to the appropriate governmen · risdietion(s). 
• Provide quantity reports and assist in co tractor s monthly progress 

payments 
• Provide verification of the di ib . ·on of public relation notices 

required to be delivered y the contractor 
• Assist in preparation e'f the Punch List 
• Maintain a fie 0: , ueline set of drawings to incorporate contractor 

record drawing llil,_ar - s 

2. Provide Additional uspector During Paving Operations. Provide additional 
inspecto daring mainJine paving days to monitor plantmix bituminous 
pavement -laeementand in-place density tests. 43 hours of field inspection 
and sampli"gand 20 hours of Nuclear Gauge time are anticipated. 

2.1.H. Materials esting eoptional) 

1. Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(Orange Book) testing requirements. Materials to be tested will include 
plantmix bituminous pavement, aggregate base, native subgrade material, 
structural fill material and Portland Cement Concrete. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSULTANT's recommendation regarding 
acceptance/mitigation of materials, shall be submitted promptly to the RTC 
and CC'd to appropriate govemmentaljurisdiction(s). 

2. Provide AC Plant Inspection and Testing. Provide plantmix bituminous 
pavement plant inspection and laboratory aggregate testing. 3 hours for 
plant visits and sampling are anticipated. Laboratory tests will consist of 
sieve analysis, percent of wear, fractured faces and plasticity index. 

10 



3. Provide Asphalt Cement Testing. Sampling and testing of asphalt cement 
binder material shall be in accordance with Section 1.0 I A ASPHALT 
CEMENT of the RTC's Special Technical Specifications. For each paving 
day, the CONSULT ANT' s designated representative shall coordinate with 
and receive asphalt cement binder samples from the designated plant 
representative. The CONS ULT ANT' s designated representative shall be 
present during all sampling operations. Each sample will be properly 
labeled and signed off by both representatives. A sample shall be taken 
during the production of each "lot" (500 ton) of plantmix bituminous 
pavement using container no larger than a quart in size. CONSULT ANT to 
submit all asphalt cement binder samples to the Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT), Material Laboratory, for testing. All samples 
should accompany with a NDOT form titled "Transmittal for Asphalt 
Samples" to be provided by the RTC. 

4. Provide On-site Nuclear Gauge Testing & Sampling during the placement 
of aggregate base and fill materials, on-site thin-lift ucl.ear Gauge testing 
& sampling for plantmix bituminous pavement glacement and on-site PCC 
testing & sampling. 108 hours of field testing are.anticipated and laboratory 
tests will include moistur density curves Atterberg limits, and sieve 
analysis. Test frequencY, sJ,all comply wifll the latest edition of the Orange 
Book. 

5. 

6. Provide Pia tmix Bituminous Pavement coring and Lab Testing. Lab test 
shall · nclude €Ore unit weight. Test reports will include percent compaction. 

7. Pro:V, ide Top Lift Longitudinal Joint Testing and Coring. Nuclear density 
testing will be performed on each side of all longitudinal joints at 200 foot 
intervals per every 1,000 foot segment. A core will be taken in every 1,000 
foot segment near the point of one of the density tests on the side of the joint 
with the lowest mean joint density. The cores will be tested for specific 
gravity (air voids and compaction). The test report will include a Paving 
Plan and a Data/Calculation Sheet. 

2.1.1. As-Built Information (Optional) 

Record Drawings. Provide as-built record drawings for the completed project. 
Two sets of electronic drawings, in single file PDF format (22" x 34" at 300 dpi), 
on diskette will be provided to RTC for its files and distribution to the Local Entity. 
The PDF file shall include all plan sheets in one file with index/bookmark for easy 
access to different sheets or sections of the plan set. 

11 



The final record drawings must be identified, dated, and signed as the record 
drawings and must also contain the engineer's stamp and signature. The Consultant 
may either: 

1. Provide the final rev1S1ons on the original engineer-stamped/signed 
reproducible drawings, which will then also be identified as the record 
drawings, or 

2. Provide new engineer-stamped/signed reproducible drawings identified as 
the record drawings. 

The Record Drawings shall include a scan of the original title sheet (including the 
appropriate signatures by RTC, local government signed and stamped by the 
CONSULTANT) and identified as record drawings. 

12 



.--., 

• 
. -.-

• . 
" •.. ... -. ·• -. 

• 
-. -. 

....... - -
..;;- ...... i~W:~~ ;.,'&. .,__ 
IUct.1.,. .. ... ..... 11~•Hfft.r1' /!---------------- ------------ - - -------~ 

i. ......... ..,, ......... , ,,1,1, .. ~---1 

ha1" 11 0 1~,~ .. 11<111d1,.o'I.Mdr

J-..C•1ol-Solll--to," 
~ T-D ... 

"'I C~!IOI •"4 , .. IIJOlr .,,.1, doll 

l)t,I.Mo ..... lol M, 

llli-Ollt""'•,tlll/lt• /IO'ltv t-.1 or.1'1'1H 

llt....,.,..,.,._1<>1-NCI 

' "'"' , .. MonlfJO/Jtl~I/ID/10 

M..,1/lllllDfn•/t/10 I 

==~::: ! 
Mo,,l/M/XJtH/17/JfJ ' 

Manl/110ll01n•ll7/20 

Sd•rl Mon1110nornmno 

llS ll,y! Mo,,l/ll/>(M , /11/lD 

too,., 1,1o,,l,l)Ol)OMSll,/JO 

)Otm Marol/10J> Or <1 t /11/JO 

IOdl'rl ...... 1/10/JM•l/)t/JIJ 

St1l"""'' td .... ~1Ucn10<!Co,t(0<1llonS.lttW(IO l~dt" 

Gool0<hn1c.l'"vt•l',IIII.,. 10drt1 _,,__,,.~...--UI ,..,., 
ldtftlllfc,pl .., ..,.,!Mb'JlOll .. /tNo,.,,,.,u • • ~llf"'ll~dl,o 

-.o,.nor,1•11>/JO 
M(lamO/JOfn~/1/'lO 

MonS/4/10 fnS/ll/10 

M""l/ll'10l~~mrn '. 

Mo,, l.fU,"la-'t t l(,l"a 
.... t.."'ltJ'nll"11 •,.,.,.,. 
Moo t'~l'l.'HM 

Ullllf ...... 11:1~ ILl'-'fl' 

~ .. ~.fffijlioo,., 

1.11111,t...i- .. " 
I./Uq"°'JICl11,..ir1\on . .., 

11r,1 ....... _ 

11.11.l <.oll•U""' 

0<1ft11.t..-, 

f1...iAoon 

Prfl!o,IM,yll,Wp 

~•.i11,,.,.,. p1,y ·-

Pr,p.,1<•oM,11• 

C•-"P""""~un1 
FINll»llp 

"•rw•,.._,.,._.,..~_ 
,,.,....n,.,ilo..,lN<IIHPW 

Rtctt"fll~/ol.111,'IOIIW!IMI, 

P"Pl"W'>olln> 

PrtOlttl0,,01011\alO 

~rtPllt9ot.•o•~•ocauoo, 
,,.,_'IV'll,U.i ,.,.~,_,,, ....... 
,,.p.,cJOi:11,PS&t 

~ltlq/~"Ytw 

PttOllfldYtllllfT.r'ltPW 

fMQ/IJQt 

,,_,l>'M.,ol-,l,s&fooAIC 

"'~P• ... 1n1t'°"ltr 
u.•11111•,.,tWd..llllJn 

r.-.,1,..,1n1o"'"''""""'' 

- ---, 

.. , . .,. -~. 
l~dorl M""l/llO'l'OOa1QJJl/JO 

lSd0¥1 Mo,,l/lOl)Ol<14/17/10 

10or,1 M:.oi/J~lll)l<16f)f10 

IOOH" Monl/)O/'la~I/H/10 

10"" 1,1.,,,,,i.,nor,,t/10/10 
tod.J.. Man5/ll/}Olo1\/llnO 

100"1, """"}/lSf,IOfnt,'WM 

so,r, Monl/10f,101nl/Uf'O 

11.0Ur, Mo,,1/10/2U~U/1/l0 

Udm Monl/J.01l01<1 S/WO 

JOO•!" -JIJD/Ul n 'S/1129 

t'(IMr, ~Jl'IO'>M n ll/f/JO 

U°'TI MMlf\JfX"ll/1/ll 

lOom Mor;Vll'J0Jn,1s120 
111d,., Mor;,/IJlO rn)nt,a 

IOU" M0117/&/JIJ lnl/J7/la 

04,,. 11'1111/)0 ,,0111/10 
IS_..,. -lf20IM'<1 lr7/10 
11 .-.;-. ...... 111UX,.U1(M 

l S O"V' _..,.. 1,:.«rt, 

Odl','1 ... IN>~ l..,llll'tih 

llUyo -7/lwe-ll/'II/) 
ll....,_ _,1"~11/l{ft 

"°"' , .. an,-,. WMHmn 
oo,,. , .. 1'tt.l.l •·'I""' 
lOd,,. ..,._._-,,....._,..,VJ'I 

... , .... :,O_IA[JII - .,,.,. ,....,,,n 
r<0 IIJlJJO r,, ,,ll/JO I 
-IJJl/)Of<1 11fl/1/10 ' 

Mi,,10~111••1u1.1uno l 
MoolO/ltlll• IWll/10 : 

fol0/2)/lOl"lo/ll/lO 

Monl0/H/lln10/JO/l0! 

Monll./l!lOfnllWlO j 
M..,IIJ'l!l1)W,<111/ II/ I 

Wodll/ ll /lW~ll/1 1/1 

Mon9nl~ Ml/ lillC 

MonJ/l0ll01~ 10/lO/JO 

Sdly, MooLl/lllOr1111µ;110; 

1S,,..,.. n,., 11/U/lfWtd U/Uf.! 

S41'!'1 ~IL/ UIX\lltdlllll/l 
IMl1/ l/lfJ I ... U(ll10 I 

0~•¥> t1.._ lltll'J,lt"11U(ltU 

,----. . ..,.._ ... 
r------1 . , •• -"I _...,,....,....,, u t--- --- •"

-.....i~""' r-------, I•~• ~''"' .•. 

,, ______ _ -

LJ 

- -.. ,_,L,_,Jn ~"' -u,;.na •a 

-•, l lf\ 



Exhibit B 

Compensation 



Contract Information: Newport Lane 
Consultant lnfonnation: CA Group 

Project Manager: Warren Call 

Name 

T.ukNA. Dnu.lcrUM 
i _.. l lnVHli-!l.111,Qt\C.-~lll\lnflll.mllllltOII& 

J, \ ,"-,i 1.-, -.'iJil..,~ Oii:llkai,mclar F\'ltl ••-

~ S\rlnCh• rlll 

~~no. 
:t,1.A.B-11 .P-h• MMM 
2,JA\1 1••-1"""'111 

21A.12D Pottloll 

8lalaltt R1t ., 

P1ojtcl Pro;e<:I 
Ptltid~M ~ f'\III H 

. 

_..,,. ... 

ENlftNI 

.. 
I 

IU5",ID 

El'\{l \n ieerlng 

~~7;~er I 

"' I 

HW'lll.n K"lll;ll,I PCII, ln°'II. 

CADO 
Techniciiln .... 

I 
I .... 

Clu1c.i1 

I 
I 

• I 
1. 1.11.2. 
2.Jfi.l , ~-~Jllfl 

""l t 0.4.. Pl~n• •r,d'~i»edk.itlon• 
2.1 BS ~WonNtalcinllttt.no::i 
2..1 es r,.Jk!iMn.1t r.r.nc.fiutlat"l 

HOl.!1'1-$tlllfoUt 

C-t .luDlour. 
" 

,.. 
"' WIG.t)O U.'lillU.00 

.. • 
d 

""' 
., 
1 -,.., 

:1,.1..,.n1,1;1 

~ 

~ ht...1 "'""l.. 1CIC 

1' ,.;w,_., 111 1 ID.QC l4 !ICXHU 

~ I , .., 7 CI ..,_ lQI .. ..,,, 
1000 1.J'JQl1.I» :J J..JDG.DO 

-..-

,. ... .., ... 

..... .. 
'-11#;,UI.C!Q 

"'"" 

-

,.,, • 

lnd• pffldenl 

~ 

QAl(>C fnap K:to l 

I I 

I 

I 
-,, . I • 

"' , ..... 
:>• 
v 

,. .,_ .. 

"' l "foobDO I 

.. ..,, 

I 

I 
I 

I 

Q .,..., 

""" 

ID00 

1400 

,,,,.. 

5u1lal\,ubo 
Tol• J Ubo,L. 

Ho.ua aded l.,.lbar Cc11 U Houn 

~ 

1 
- ~ 

"" 

... , ... 
"· 

_.UH 
.11at 

--= ... 
.,...., 

Sllbt11n11llUIII 
Coa.t~ 

.itl 5vMr1 
110, !i 



Task No. 

Contract Information: Newport Lane 
Consultant Information: CA Group 

Project Manager: Warren Call 

... ., 
" ...J\Ut,i:im 1 .... N\DTl• II Ku,ourcH '"~'· 

Name I I I 
I I··•'""""' I PtoJ.d, Pt~I lnl~rn CA00 

PllncfO;II M,trn;• ge, E"'Olne111 !Du1Qner Technlcl:M C .. 1M:al 

Lt.ea Conlrilct Adminlr.trat1on /OPTIONAL) 

" 
., 

I 
.-.vticon,0~11 S\lbconn,tt.an, 

1Nl• Pf'MS"1'11 lr ........... l Hovn: Co'111 
QA/QC lntaKIOI Hll!UJ• o;ided u.boJ CoslJ 

2. 1 E 1, Ci1111t.-:tA.11mirnKllfll1!11 

2...1.L.2 c~ ~ • 

1.v. ca,11111ucl.lon lt.l!Ma ,l0fl1IIC»IAL.I 

"°""'""'"" 

"" 

141 ,,. 

14 l lll .., ...... .,, " 11.0.0 ~ 
. 

141\0 
• .. :oo _..,..., .. 

"'-"' .,. .... O( ~ 

7.1.G~ Inspection (OPTIONAL) 
_,,.o-Kllil'I 

lfOIIJf'll5"1•t•I" 
Cos1 Sub101al 

H'ounSuiU:M• " 
Cos1Sub101ai: 

2.1-ti. ~-~• fHtlllO ( Ox.e.LI --- . Hout,; liiu.blola-1 

COJ1tSUbio1&1; 

~tlll'Uli!Ot.t . 

Coati1itbllotlll 

Onu• t11w111 ouii&' 
L»K#11. Ol1- c.on• To 

8.IIS{C: M):QJi'E CnNTJ{AC;: IUMMAKY 

Total Esl1maled Bas,e Direct l abor Co&I 

...........,,.. 
Oir•c:1 t:opcnM'-

c .., 
r,u.dfir:tmar.a .s,n;rc,~ 

I .,..,_.., 

" 
""'"' 

"""-"' 

S1 ~9 05 

,.,_,. 

,, 
.,,.,.. .. .., ...., 

• I 

" ' !i-l 511D 'Q0 IGOO $0,IXI .. 
t i " [ 

J,1~.D;) "''° "'"' 
.. 

.... l4a> 

I .... . . 
''""' ~ 

I 

MJ,00 

' '-~ 
[ 

"""" 
.. •« ..., ii. ,&,..-a 

UTO'.UJO KICO 

""' . . . " ... ~ 
\ , ... 

,, 
.... ~ .... 1111 

UU10 J.6ffl till00: l ll" tll.00 

I 

" M).OII 

... .. 

I 

• .... 
DI ,._.. . 

t 

...,_ '1--- .:<;::;0ttr-'"'• ••c-"ro=•;::;"';-..,,,-+-----------I 
\."""""' H"' 

1•~7.1.A. 
I.Alo~1:JIL.:)· 

Sla'J',1.A.0-11 
Sim 1 •• 1.A.'.l tJ.J 

:utt l,.UJ. 
1.'l,D,.C: 
.'1,n, I 

l • 1lrJ_1.c. 
.t.C.1 

... f..G'-3 

f a,;k2.,1,0 . 

r.11r1.ui. 

fasll 1~1,,. 

:llb.2.1..F 
.11-..; .,.o. 
8' 1.1 ) 

~l.t.H 

LaborHours Subtotoll t•rn 
25[ .l.lf,ilt 11~111111'10 E:tllll"lll~IDM 

"' 

"' ..... 

.. , . .. ... ir_ 
1 1.... ·~ .. 

-
,,,., 

""' ... ' 
,111,1,( .1,L ~ 

" 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REOlTIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

(NRS 338 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL) 
2019-11-11 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONTACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0400. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to save and hold harmless and fi lly indemnify RTC Washoe County, City 
of Reno and City of Sparks including their eles,tei::1 officials, officers employees, and agents 
(hereafter, "Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims proceedings actions, liability and 
damages, including reasonable attorneys' fee 'and efense costs incurred in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arisin , ut of tl:ie: 

A. 

B. Violation of la . or anY, contractual provisions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, franchises, patents or other means of prot,ecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from the use b the lndemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliverable (incfuding software) supplied by CONSULTANT under or as a result 
of this Agreement, but excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSULTANT. 

CONSULTANT further agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the 
lndemnitees from and against any and all Damages arising out the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULTANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSULTANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 



property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 
If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULTANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSULTANT is legally responsible, CONSULTANT shall reimburse the Indemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the Indemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULT ANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSUL TANT, at its sole expense, shall either (1) secure for the lndemn itees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procurfrlg a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-infr.inging. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are separate and seve ole and it is tfie intent of the Parties hereto 
that in the event any provision of this Agreement slum d be d~tennined by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, voidable or too restri · ive fo any reason whatsoever, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain va id ana b' ding upon said Parties. It is also understood 
and agreed that in the event any provision '8 ou d be considered, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, to be void because it imposes a greateJT obligation on CONSUL TANT than is 
permitted by law, such court may redut e ana ref@pn such provisions to limitations which are 
deemed reasonable and enforceable by aLcl ee 

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the start of ny work on a RTC project, CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the type and limits as !described below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property w ich may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSUL T~J;, its subconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSULTANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSULT ANT shall furnish R TC with a certificate( s) of insurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 



notice ofcancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSULTANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten ( 10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULTANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULTANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsu tants referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause -ubs em . Joyed by CONSULT ANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limi s of tbe tY, e specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each s 1 include the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additiona insureds un er its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stateQ erein, wit :10ut requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional insureds and anY, sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability n aintaiued by Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for aThY. applkable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is @RE:i\ TB . If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the G:@ntFactor Corr actor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contractor. hen requested by RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates @f insur ce evidencing coverage for each subconsultant. 
CONSULTANT need not require. its OJ -design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability insurance. 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 



8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
ofNevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSUL TANT fails to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right l:jut not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULTANT's obligation t_o fl:llTJ1jsh sue 1 certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an 111thori12ecl representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate o thei; evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RT to "dentify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a a· er of CONSULT ANT's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver s to the en orcement of any of these provisions at a later 
date. 

D. By requiring does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adeguate to prn ect CO UL TANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as limitation 0p, CONSULTANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
R TC in this contraot. 

E. If CONSUL TAN'P2 liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 ( or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 



products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07/04 or CG 20 33 07/04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to R TC or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSULTANT's insurer shall endorse COL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the ~el icy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form C O 01 CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for a I ownecl leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept uto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the COL if CONSUL TA T dee not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSULT ANT waives all right aga ·,n R.': , its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the exte t these am ges are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insLJ·r.ance obtained by CONSUL TANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSUL TANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSULTANT, and any subconsultants, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State ofNevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 



CONSUL TANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSULTANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSULT ANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSUL TANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain professional liability insurance appl).'.° ng to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of t1e scope of. CONSULTANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not Jes than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULT ANT shall maintain professiona liabJ1Lty insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a cl ims made or. ••etaims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extendeo e12otting period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreen::ieJ1t. 



..-..-...-""". REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Jeff Wilbrecht, P.E. 
Engineer II 

AGENDA ITEM 3.8 

Amy Cummings, I>, LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Kings Row Rehabilitation Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Lumos and Associates, Inc. to provide 
design and optional engineering during construction services for the Kings Row Rehabilitation 
Project in an amount not to exceed $692,030; authorize the RTC Interim Executive Director to 
execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement ( see Attachment A) with Lumos and Associates, Inc. is for professional design 
services for the Kings Row Rehabilitation Project in the amount of $350,620, and optional 
engineering during construction services (EDC) in the amount of $341,410. The Project includes 
rehabilitation/reconstruction of Kings Row from Keystone Avenue to Wyoming Avenue. 

Lumos and Associates, Inc. was selected from the Civil Engineering Design and Construction 
Management Services List as a qualified firm to perform engineering, construction management and 
quality assurance. Negotiation ofLumos and Associates, Inc. 's scope, schedule and budget indicated 
the amount for design services is within the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2021 Roadway Reconstruction Project appropriations will be included in the FY 2021 Budget 
and Program of Projects as part of the Annual Pavement Preservation Program. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

June 20, 2019 Approved the Qualified Consultant List for Engineering Design and 
Construction Management Services 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE{S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachment 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

ATTACHMENT A 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of March 20, 2020, by and between 
the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Lumos & Associates, 
Inc. ("CONSULT ANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC delivers various rehabilitation/reconstruction projects as part of its Annual 
Pavement Preservation Program; and 

WHEREAS, as part of that program, R TC will rehabilitate and/or reconstruct Kings Row from 
Keystone A venue to Wyoming A venue (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, Project will include roadway reconstructi !fl sidewall<i cupl5 and gutter replacement 
as necessary, correction of localized drainage deficiencies, reconstruc i n of existing handicapped 
ramps, preparation of easement documentation StPip,in odifications and other incidentals 
necessary for the rehabilitation of the street within the Rrojec limits· and 

WHEREAS, RTC selected CONSULTANT from 'R'TC 19-01 procurement of Civil Engineering 
Design and Construction Services for the Street aQd Higpway Program list of preferred consultants 
to perform certain engineering, desi~ oonstr cJio nanagement and quality assurance services 
in connection with the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC an CO Sl:JL l'ANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set fortb herein, i.:lb hereby agree as follows: 

1.1. The term of this Pi:gr~ement shall be from the date first written above through December 
31, 2021, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein 

1.2. CONSULT ANT will perform the work using the Key Personnel as identified in Exhibit A. 
Any changes to the Key Personnel must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

1.3. CONSULT ANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any government, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSULTANT. . 

1.4. CONSULTANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSULTANT. If CONSUL TANT 

-1-



violates that prohibition, CONSULT ANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the tenns of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order. CONSULT ANT shall not rely on the tenns 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of perfonnance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

ARTICLE 2 - SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

2.2. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3. CONTINGENCY 

Contingency line items identified in the scop~ of services are for miscellaneous increases 
within the scope of work. Prior to the use of any contingency amounts, CONSULT ANT 
shall provide a letter to RTC's Project Manager detailing the need, scope, and not-to
exceed budget for the proposed work. Work to be paid for out of contingency shall proceed 
only with the RTC Project Manager's written approval. 

2.4. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the rightto exercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exhibit A. CONSUL TANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. RTC will review and approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULT ANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.5. ADDITIO AL SERVICES 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services in connection with the Project when 
agreed to in writing by RTC and CONSULT ANT. 

-2-



2.6. PERFORMANCE REOUlREMENTS 

2.7. 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSUL TANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying ( as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

Any sampling and materials testing shall be performed by a approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized aecrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or mate1~a s testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required ce ·fieation roof of certification 
shall be provided to R TC with this Agreement. If certification:expjtes or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RT immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot lie ag eed U(!Dn by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULTANT shall provide only: Ne ada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified person el to ~erform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of th is . gr,eement. II test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated withJtisYherJicense number. 

CONSUL TANT shall witl 0ut additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissjons caused by CONSULT ANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSULTANT also a r:ees that if any error or omission is found, CONSULTANT will 
expeditiously makelhe necessary correction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSULTANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULTANT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 - COMPENSATION 

3 .1. CONSULT ANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULTANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 

-3-



must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULTANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Design Services (Tasks 2.1.A, 2.1.BI, 2.1.C, 2.1.DI to 2.ID3) 
Total OPTIONAL Design Services (Task 2. I .B2) 
Contingency - Design Services (Task 2. I .D4) 
Total OPTIONAL Construction Services (Tasks 2. I .E to 2.1.1) 
Contingency - Construction Services (Task 2.1.J) 
Total (Including Optional Services) 

$259,780 
$65,840 
$25,000 

$301,410 
$40,000 

$692,030 

3.3. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSULTANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSUL TANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than I 05% of the amounts billed' to CONSULTANT for such 
services. 

3 .4. CONSULT ANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, except: (1) :if such ·'litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSULT ANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. ' 

ARTICLE 4 - INVOICING 

4.1. CONSUL TANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com. RTC's payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be paid at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are not paid within thirty (30) days 
ofreceipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULT ANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RTC. 

4.3. CONSULTANT shall maintain complete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon request, CONSUL TANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and R TC shall have the right to inspect and copy such records. 

-4-



ARTICLE 5 - ACCES TO JNFORMA TION AND PROPERTY 

5.1. Upon request and without cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all infonnation that 
is reasonably available to RTC and pertinent to the Project including surveys, reports and 
any other data relative to design and construction of the Project. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSUL TANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULT ANT to perfonn its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSULTANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of R Tel. So are already developed and 
purchased by CONSULT ANT prior to the execution of e P.roject t at will be used in the 
Project and services rendered under this Agreement, is exG.l udecl from this requirement. 
CONSUL TANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other i.A eflech a roper,ty rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this greement and upon payment in full ofall 
compensation due to CONSUL TA . i ac ·ifdance with the tenns of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts mputations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agree1 enf sha 1 upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. 

6.3. CONSULT ANT s 1all hear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or processes used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSULTANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and infonnation that it obtains or prepares in connection with perfonning this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSUL TANT may 
refer to this Project in connection with its promotional literature in a professional and 
commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever fonn that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULTANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide infonnation or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSUL TANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

-5-



ARTICLE 7 - TERMINATION 

7.1. CONTRACTTERMI ATlON FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSUL TANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSUL TANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULT ANT is in 
default. CONSULT ANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULTANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSUL TANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSULTANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

7.2. CONTRACT TERMINATION FOR CO VENTENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part; at any time by written notice to 
CONSULTANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSULTANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULTANT. If CONSULTANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

RTICt E 8 - IN SURANCE 

8.1. CONSUL TANT shall not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/work required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSULT ANT shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions set forth therein. 

ARTICLE 9 - HOLD HARMLESS 

9.1. CONSULTANT's obligation under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend to any liability of RTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property. 

-6-



ARTJCLE 10 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNlTY 

10.1. During the performance of this Agreement, CONSUL TANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSULTANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

10.2. CONSUL TANT will, in all solicitations or advertisemel'l,ts for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT, state that well qualified apphcants j ll receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disabili' y or national origin. 

10.3. CONSULTANT will cause the foregoing prov isiens to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that sue · rov isjons will be binding upon each 

11.1. 

sub-consultant. 

In the event that any dispute or clai arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate jn g000 faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shal include f!Ieviding tile other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decision&relatwe te the dispute or claim. 

1 I .2. MEDIA TIO 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute or claim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other party's receipt or deemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upon a mediator within ten (10) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification set forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 

-7-



mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

11.4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall pi-oceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claims all n tconstitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

12.1. RTC's Project Manager is Jeff Wilbrecht or &uch other person as is later designated in 
writing by RTC. RTC's Project Manager-bas authority to act as RTC's representative with 
respect to the performance of-'this Agreeme t. 

I 2.2. CONSUL TANT' Projee Managei: is Alex Greenblat or such other person as is later 
designated in writing y C<DNSU TANT. CONSULTANT's Project Manager has 
authority to act as CONS , !,;TANT s representative with respect to the performance of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

I 3. I. Notices required under this Agreement shall be given as follows: 

RTC: 

CONSULTANT: 

Brian Stewart, P .E. 
Director of Engineering 
Regional Transportation Commission 
1105 Terminal Way 
Reno, Nevada 89502 

Steven G. Moon 
Director, Construction Division 
Lumos and Associates, Inc. 
9222 Prototype Drive 
Reno, Nevada 89521 

-8-



ARTICLE 14 - D ELAYS IN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. T IME IS OF THE E SENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by R TC' s Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension oftime shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSULTANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur ip connection with or during 
CONSULTANT's performance, is not caused directly or suestantialJy by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSUL TANT is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSUL TANT to miss specified completion dates, and ca not adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. NOTIFICATION OF DELAYS 

14.4. 

CONSULTANT shall notify RTC ass o as C@ SULTANT has knowledge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise beeeme_s awar that CONSULTANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (: OJ working days thereafter, CONSULTANT shall 
provide such notice to G in writing, furn ishing as much detail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extensfoin oHime. 

Any request by CO SUL"TANT for an extension of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall lfo ade in writing to R TC. CONSUL TANT shall supply to R TC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the additional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. RTC shall provide CONSULTANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable time after receipt of a request. 

ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

15.1. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

R TC and CONSUL TANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither R TC nor 
CONSULTANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 

-9-



the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than RTC and 
CONSULTANT. 

15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSULTANT's professional services, and CONSULTANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15 .3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provision· or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties hall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term., or pro¥:i ion held invalid. 

15.4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

CONSUL TANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSULTANT is not entitled to P.arti.cl'eate Jn any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other bene its RT<;; P,rovides to its employees. CONSULT ANT 
shall be free to contract to provide sir • ila serviees for others while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services ana_ad ocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being provid dbyCO SULTANTto RTC. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or li>reacn of a provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provisio in this Agreement and no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An e tension of the time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an eXitensfon of time for the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

15.6. REGULA TORY COMPLIA CE 

A. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSUL TANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSUL TANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 

-10-



is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULTANT does engage in such public work, CONSUL TANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CONTINUING OBLJGA TIO 

CONSULT ANT agrees that if, because 0 deatH , r any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or empl0y,ee of O ULT ANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONS LT ANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to rende corn-P.1ete performance. However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement i "t si s the death or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of sucJi m ituae as to affect CONSULTANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the perfoi.:.mano of this Agreement. 

The provision of this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the St fe of Neva a. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shal1 be the . econd Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the paFtjes hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

15.11. ATTORNEYS ' FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

15.12. CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY NEVADA SENATE BILL 27 {2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULTANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 

-11-



CONSULT ANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: _ _ ______ _ ___ _ _ _ _ 
Adam Spear 
R TC Director of Legal Services 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATI©N COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By:----,-------,--.----------
Amy1Cummlngs, fnterim Executive Director 

Steven G. Moon, Director, Construction Division 

-12-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services, Schedule, and Project Team 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

KINGS ROW REHABILITATION/RECONSTRUCT 

The Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) has identified that Kings Row is in need of rehabilitation 
and/or reconstruction. This may include various maintenance techniques up to and including complete 
reconstruction of the paved roadway. 

The Scope of Services for this project will include the following tasks: The RTC has identified 
approximately 4,500 linear feet of Kings Row that is in need of rehabilitation, this includes replacing 
sidewalk, replacing degraded curb and gutter, residential and commercial driveway improvements, ADA 
compliant pedestrian ramps at the affected intersections, new catch basins where needed, bus stop 
improvements, striping and signage. The scope of work for this project includes: topographic surveying, 
geotechnical investigation, agency coordination (TMWA, NV Energy, City o Reno), and preparation of 
construction documents, bid services, construction management, inspection, and quality assurance testing. 

1. Project Management - includes ongoing meetings and coortlioation With RTC, City of Reno, 
and local utility providers. 

2. Topographical Survey- includes a topograP.hical sllrvey with ,ri,ght of way research. 
3. Geotechnical Investigation - includes a soils investigation and recommended 

rehabilitation/reconstruct options for thi section of King.s Row. 
4. Preliminary Design- includes the c0Jlec ·0.n, review, and incorporation of background data 

provided by the local utility provide :s a!)d the City of Reno base maps with the topographical 
survey. Limits ofreconstruction will be etermi.ped and documented in preliminary plans. 

5. Construction Documents- inclu:cdes col'lstruetlon plans and technical specifications that will be 
prepared for review and accep ance~y tl~e RTC. 

6. Bidding Services - ineludes technical assistance that will be provided to the RTC during the 
bidding process. 

7. Project Design Contingency- a cantingency amount will be provided for unforeseen conditions 
and will only oetJsed at -tne direction of the RTC. 

8. Constructi0lt Administration - includes construction management, pre-construction meeting, 
coordination w,itli the Mntractor, review of field reports and quantities, submittal review, 
invoicing, responding, 0 request for information, and record drawings. 

9. Quality Assurance Testing - includes sampling, testing, and documentation of all materials 
incorporated into the project. This includes materials delivered to the project that are listed in 
the Plans and Specifications. Materials to be tested will include bedding soil, soil backfill, 
asphalt concrete, aggregate base, native subgrade material, and Portland Cement Concrete. 

I 0. Quality Control Inspection - includes an inspector to be on site to appropriately monitor the 
Contractor's daily work for compliance with the Construction Contract Documents, and to 
advise the Contractor and the RTC of the need for corrective action. Conduct daily on-site 
observations of the Contractor's work for the purposes of determining if the work generally 
conforms to the contract for construction and that the integrity of the design concept as 
reflected in the contract for construction has been implemented and preserved by the 
Contractor. Properly document all field conditions both existing and proposed for inclusion 
into the record drawings. 

11. Construction Staking -includes providing supplementary control, construction stakes for 
roadway alignment and concrete improvements, and other information needed for construction. 

Each of these tasks are defined in greater detail below. It is understood that the final design requirements will 
be adjusted as needed to meet the demands of the project and the needs of the RTC. 



PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

CONSULT ANT will provide professional engineering services for the Kings Row Rehabilitation / 
Reconstruction Project. The project limits include the portion of Kings Row from Keystone Avenue to 
Wyoming A venue; which may include the returns for connecting cross streets at intersections. 

TASK 2.1 .A - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Management of the overall project will include scheduling of CONSULT ANT staff resources, R TC design 
review meetings, coordinating with agencies and utility providers, quality assurance reviews, and invoicing. 
The project manager will schedule and facilitate a project kickoff meeting. Meetings to review the 
preliminary design, as well as 60%, 90% and 100% design review meetings. Detailed monthly invoices 
will be prepared to document all work performed and status reports wi II be provided to the Regional 
Transportation Commission upon request. This task also includes bi-weekily update meetings with RTC staff 
if needed. 

TASK 2.1.B-l -TOPOGRAPIDC SURVEY AND MAPPING . 
A project basemap will be created using ground collecte<:J su ey field silos. The project will be surveyed 
at a point density and accuracy intended to obtain a lfori zo , t,al scale' of 1 "=40' with a l' contour interval 
consistent with National Map Accuracy Standards. Field sl · ts will be obtained at critical locations such as 
edge of building corners, roadways, surface evi enee o utilities, and sanitary sewer and storm drain lines. 
All relevant site features such as fences, vegetation baJlard and railroad features will be located. A digital 
terrain model and topographic basemap will be genera a from the collected data. 

Control established for the projec will be re erenced to the Nevada State Plane Coordinate System, West 
Zone, NAD83 and based on the CitY. f R-eoo Benchmarks using a local combined scale factor to establish 
ground values for the project. Existing,surve.x monuments will be located and re-established in the field 
under Construction Staking ms . 

Utility information will be gathere fi'om local providers and displayed on the base map. Catch basins and 
manholes will be dipped as needed for inclusion into the base map. 

Lumos and Associates will gather all relevant record boundary and right-of-way information along the 
alignment and will use field location of recovered boundary monuments to rectify the record information 
and assemble a comprehensive right-of-way map for the project area. 

TASK 2.l.B-2 - RIGHT-OF-WAY MAPPING AND ENGINEERING (OPTIONAL) 

CONSULTANT will perform Right-of-Way mapping including preparation of temporary and/or 
permanent easement descriptions ofup to 24 individual parcels. This will include property record 
research, drafting of property boundaries from record descriptions, calculations of search coordinates for 
filed boundary survey, field boundary survey on each affected parcel, post processing and reduction of 
field data, boundary resolution based upon field findings, preparation of legal descriptions and exhibit 
maps of individual affected parcels. CONS ULT ANT shall pull preliminary Title Reports and updates as 
necessary for up to 24 parcels. All R TC comments shall be addressed prior to recordation. 
CONSULT ANT will prepare Permission to Construct ("PTC") exhibits for up to 72 parcels. This excludes 
any legal descriptions relating to the PTC's. 

2 



Right-of-way appraisal, property owner negotiations, escrow coordination and title clearance is NOT 
included within this task. 

Deliverables - Exhibit maps, legal descriptions, and title report for permanent and/or temporary 
construction easements on each affected parcel (up to 24). Exhibit for permissions to construct on each 
affected parcel (up to 72). Right-of-Way summary spreadsheet detailing easement type, size, and reason 
by parcel. 

TASK 2.1.C - GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION 

CONSUL TANT proposes a field investigation that will consist of approximately six (6) test pits wilhin the 
roadway and six (6) core excavations within the roadway, in the area proposed for reconstruction. 
CONSULT ANT will collect samples of each soil type encountered within the test pits and core excavations 
and document the existing pavement structural section. We understand CONSULT ANT will provide the 
excavating and coring services, traffic control, and patching (for core h es). 

CONSUL TANT herein proposes to provide laboratory testing on the samples collected . Additionally, we 
propose to perform engineering analyses and calculations and develop a repo that will discuss the site 
conditions, field and laboratory test data, and our conclusions'<filtd recommen . ations from a geotechnical 
perspective. Our Geotechnical Investigation will be supervised by a Regjstered Professional Engineer in the 
State of Nevada and will specifically include the following service-s· 
Field Investigation will include: 

• Identification of all Test Pit and C0reJ :l.ole LQcations 
• Soil Sampling/Coring 
• USA Dig Notification 
• Excavation/ Backfill/ Patch 
• Traffic Control 

Laboratory analysis may include: 
• Atterberg _ imits 
• R-Value 
• Grain Size Analysis (jncluding fines and moisture content) 
• Soluble Sulfates 
• Expansion Index 

Proctor 
• Cement Treated Soils Compression Tests 

Report, Recommendations, and Conclusions: 
• Table of Contents 
• Project Location, Background, and Purpose 
• Exploration Logs and Maps 
• Site Conditions 
• Field Investigation 
• Soil Types and Classifications 
• Laboratory Test Results 

Site Preparation Recommendations 
• Pavement Structural Design & Recommendations 
• Construction Procedures 
• Ground Water Depth, if Encountered 

3 



Prior to the completion of the geotechnical report, CONSULTANT will meet with the RTC's Project 
Manager to present feasible road rehabilitation alternatives. 

TASK 2.1.D-l - PRELIMINARY DESIGN 

Existing Improvement Assessment - CONSULTANT shall perform a condition survey and detennine the 
replacement limits for curb and gutter, valley gutters, sidewalk, and driveway approaches in accordance with 
Regional Transportation Commission criteria for curb and gutter, valley gutter, sidewalk and driveway 
replacements. CONSULTANT shall perform a surface drainage condition assessment and improve drainage 
issues within the project limits including but not limited to catch basins, ditch inlets, storm drain manholes, 
and storm drain pipes. CONSUL TANT shall also evaluate existing pedestrian ramps within the project limits 
for compliance with current ADA standards. CONSULTANT will evaluate striping modifications to include 
bike lanes. This project will include a Special Assessment District (SAD) for new sidewalk improvements and 
replacement as needed. City of Reno will mark out sidewalks and driveways in white paint to be assessed and 
CONSULT ANT will incorporate all assessed concrete areas into road ay design plans, specifications and 
quantity totals. Preliminary improvement plans and cost estimate will be pro ·aed at a 30% level, including 
any proposed utility improvements. The intent of this task is to determi etoe proje~timprovement limits. No 
vertical design or grading details will be provided on the Preliminary impr0vemefit plans. 

TASK 2.1.D-2- CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

CONSUL TANT shall prepare Final Construction Plantand il'.echnical Specifications suitable for construction 
bid advertisement for the approved alignment in aeeord'a ce with the RTC's standards and requirements. 

The final construction plans will be on 11 "x 17 1 size heets (half size 22"x34"). The plans will show all 
elements of project construction including but not limitet:I to reconstruction plan and profile view, subsurface 
plan and profiles for storm drain improveme ts rigbt-0f-way lines, property owners name, property APN and 
site address, and any other details nec~sary for. construction. 

60% and 90% Improvement ~laos submittal: 
CONSULT ANT will sujj•nit 60½ design plans, to the RTC and utility companies for review. At a minimum, 
the 6 0 % design plans will itrclude the following: cover sheets, preliminary note sheets, plan and profile 
sheets with and existing parcel base with owner names and addresses, rights-of-way, base map of 
existing conditions, existing ufilities, and preliminary detail sheets. An updated cost estimate will also be 
included. 

The 90% design plans will include a title sheet, Index sheet map, detail sheets, existing surface features, 
existing subsurface utilities, and plan and profile sheets with final roadway alignment (horizontal and 
vertical) identified for the project. In addition, CONSULT ANT will include final storm drain plans, traffic 
control plans where needed for permits, striping plan, pedestrian ramp grading plans, and any other details 
necessary for construction. CONSULT ANT will prepare an outline of bid items (using the Regional 
Transportation Commission standard format) and an engineering estimate of probable construction cost. 

The 90% design plans will address all comments generated from the 60% design plan review and include a 
draft copy of the contract documents and technical specifications. 

The contract documents and technical specifications will reference the latest edition of Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Constructions (Orange Book) for standard construction items. Technical 
provisions will be prepared for approved deviations from the Orange Book and unique construction items 
not adequately covered in the Orange Book. The Regional Transportation Commission will electronically 

4 



provide CONSULTANT the boilerplate of the contract documents and technical specifications in MS Word 
format. 

100% Improvement plan and Specification Submittal: 
100% construction documents shall be distributed to the RTC and utility companies for final comment. The 
100% improvement plans and specifications will address all comments generated from the 90% 
improvement plan and specificationreview. 

The 100% plans shall show all elements of project construction. 
• Title Sheet - including vicinity map, approval signatures blocks & Sheet Index 
• Index Sheet Map, Symbol Legend & applicable abbreviations 
• Plan and Profile Sheets (Horizontal l "=20' and Vertical l "=4') 
• Detailed Grading Plans 
• Striping and Signage Plan 
• Typical Sections (scales as noted) 
• Standard Detail Sheets (scales as noted) 

The 100% contract documents shall include all bid items, alternative op ions ana technical provisions 
required for the project. A Final Engineer's Estimate of Probable Construetio Cost will be prepared for 
the project based on final designs and any alternative options. The cost options shall be in the same 
format as the bid proposal form included in the contract iiocuments. An estimate of the time necessary to 
complete construction will be provided by CONSULJ3t\ T. 

CONSULTANT will coordinate with all applicable tiHties to finalize submittal requirements for the 
applicable utility relocations if required. 

Plan Production and Distribution: 
At 60%, 90%, 100% and Final project milestones CONSULT ANT will submit up to three (3) sets of 
plans on 11 "xl 7" size sheets (hal si~J .and teeJmical specifications (at appropriate milestones). The RTC 
will be responsible for delivering all sets to the review agencies. Electronic files of submittals will also be 
included in .dwg, .docx, and .~df ti le formats. 

Review Meetings: 
At 60%, 90%, and 100% Qrojeot mi I es tones CONSULT ANT will conduct one (1) meeting with the 
RTC to review the design an<:! discuss design comments. CONSULT ANT understands that additional 
meetings may be required to discuss review comments and design issues. 

Final Bid Documents: 
Final review comments will be incorporated into the plans and specifications. CONSULT ANT will submit 
final construction documents suitable for bid advertisement in accordance with the Regional Transportation 
Commission standards and requirements. 

The final plans and specifications will be signed and sealed by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil 
Engineer in responsible charge. CONSULT ANT will prepare final PDF' s of the signed and sealed plans 
and deliver electronically to the Regional Transportation Commission. Signed and sealed Construction 
Documents shall be delivered to the Regional Transportation Commission electronically in MS Word and 
PDF format. The Regional Transportation Commission will upload to the RTC's E-Plan Room. 

5 



TASK 2.1.D-3 - BIDDING SERVICES 

CONSUL TANT will be available during the bidding process to answer technical questions and respond 
to questions raised by bidders during the bidding period. In addition, all questions and responses will 
be documented and provided to Regional Transportation Commission. 

Pre-bid Meeting. CONSULT ANT will be available during the bidding process to answer technical 
questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. All questions and responses will be documented and provided 
to RTC. CONSULT ANT will prepare and provide PDF addenda, if required. All questions regarding legal 
aspects of the contract documents will be referred directly to RTC. CONSULTANT will prepare and 
provide a PDF summary of the pre-bid meeting, as directed by the RTC. 

CONSULT ANT will attend bid opening and compile a bid tab to assist the RTC in evaluating the bids. 

TASK 2.1.D-4- PROJECT DESIGN CONTINGENCY 

The Project Contingency is specifically for additional out-of-scope tasks and time extensions, as may be 
required, which are unidentifiable at this time. This work shall be adaed at the sole discretion of the RTC, 
for fees negotiated on a case-by-case basis. Work will be performed on a time and materials basis in 
accordance with CONSULTANT' fee schedule. A standard fee schedule is ine;m:porated into this proposal. 

2.1.E- J - CONSTRUCTION SERVICES (OPTIONAL) - The RTC and CONSULTANT shall 
review Optional Construction Services following tlie completion of.final design to determine their 
appropriateness to the project. 

Provide contract administration services as follows: 
• Attend the preconstruction conference and progress meetings at intervals determined by the RTC 
• Perform construction coordination 
• Review and provide recommendations ,on contractor's traffic control plans 
• Review and stamp,eentFactor's submittal for conformance to the contract documents 
• Review and prO\dcle rec0mmendations on test results 
• Review and provitle recommendations on contractor's construction schedule and work progress 
• Review construction for aceeptance and/or mitigation 
• Provide verification and approval of contractor's monthly pay request 
• Provide weekly electronic quantities 
• Supervise the inspection and material testing activities 
• Provide recommendations to the RTC for any necessary construction changes due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 
• Provide final test results, field reports in an electronic .pdf on diskette 

TASK 2.1.F- CONSTRUCTION STAKING {OPTIONAL) 

Provide construction staking at offsets designated by the contractor for the curb and gutter, sidewalk, 
spandrels, driveways, pedestrian ramps, bus pads, and catch basins. This will be limited to one (1) set of 
finish grade stakes. 

Provide record of survey for existing monuments. Field locate street monuments in Kings Row. Control for 
the project will be referenced to the Nevada Coordinate System, West Zone, NAD83 using local combined 
scale factor to establish ground values for the project. Punch marks along with a "PLS' number will be 

6 



placed on newly installed street centerline monuments. A Record of Survey will be prepared and filed 
with the Office of the Washoe County Recorder depicting the survey monuments that have been located 
and re-established. 

TASK 2.LG - CO STRUCTION JNSPECTION (OPflO AL) 

The following staffing shall be provided for the duration of project construction: 
• Provide Inspector(s) that have the appropriate certification required by the Nevada Alliance for 

Quality Transportation Construction (NAQTC). Provide one full time Senior Inspector, ten (10) 
hour workdays for Ninety (90) shifts, for a total of 900 hours. 

The inspectors will: 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

Attend the preconstruction conference 
Monitor the work performed by the Contractor and verify that the work is in accordance with the 
plans and specifications 
Assist in problem resolution with the RTC, contractor personnel, utility agencies, the public and 
others 
Prepare daily inspection reports, submitted weekly to RTC and CC d t0,the appropriate government 
jurisdiction(s). 
Provide quantity reports and assist in review of contractor's monthly progi:ess payments 
Provide verification of the distribution of public relation QOtices requii:_ed to be delivered by the 
contractor 
Assist in preparation of the Punch List 
Maintain a field blue line set of drawings to ine0rporate contractor record drawing mark-ups 

Provide Material Testing for compliance with the sp .cifi · tions per the Standard Specifications for Public 
Works Construction, Revision 8 of the 2012 Edition Orange Book) testing requirements. 

The following tests and frequencies ~hall be p~rfoFmed: 

• Materials to be testecl will inclucle asphalt concrete, aggregate base, native subgrade material, 
structural fill, pipe beddin~ an Portland Cement Concrete. Test reports, accompanied with 
CONSUL TANT"s recemmendat'ion regarding acceptance/mitigation of materials, shall be submitted 
promptly to the RTC and CC:'d to appropriate governmental jurisdiction(s). Laboratory tests are 
anticipated to include cement treated base compression tests (24), moisture density curves (8), 
Atterberg limits (8), sieve analysis (8), and concrete compression tests (150). 

• Provide On-site Nuclear Gauge Testing & Sampling during the placement of aggregate base and fill 
materials, on-site thin-lift Nuclear Gauge testing & sampling for asphalt concrete placement, and on
site PCC testing & sampling. Eighty (80) hours of field testing are anticipated. 

• Provide AC Testing. Provide asphalt concrete tests at a frequency of every five hundred (500) tons 
placed. Laboratory tests shall include ignition oven extraction, aggregate gradation, maximum 
theoretical specific gravity, flow & stability and Marshall unit weight. Sixteen (16)- hot mix 
samples are anticipated. 

• Provide Asphalt Concrete Coring and Lab Testing. Lab test shall include core unit weight. Forty
eight ( 48) - asphalt cores are anticipated. Test reports will also include percent compaction. 

TASK 2.1.J - RECORD DRAWINGS (OPTIONAL) 

Provide as-built record drawings for the completed project. One set of blue line and two sets of electronic 
drawings, in PDF format (24" x 36" at 300dpi), on diskette will be provided to RTC for its files and 
distribution to City of Reno. 

7 



The final record drawings must be identified, dated and signed as the record drawings and must also contain 
the engineer's stamp and signature. These drawings may include either: 

1. Provide the final revisions on the original engineer-stamped/signed reproducible drawings, which 
will then also be identified as the record drawings, or 

2. Provide new engineer-stamped/signed reproducible drawings identified as the record drawings. 

The Record Drawings shall include a copy of the original title sheet (including the appropriate signatures by 
RTC, local government, signed and stamped by the CONSULTANT) and identified as record drawings. 

TASK 2.1.J - CONSTRUCTION SERVICES CONTINGENCY (OPTIONAL) 

This task is contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this contract in the performance of 
services. If CONSUL TANT determines that it is necessary to perform worl~ to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSULT ANT shall provide a letter detailing the need, scope, and nQHo-exceed budget for any proposed 
work. Work under this task shall proceed only with the RTC Project Manager:1s prior written approval. This 
task may or may not be used at the sole discretion of the RTC. 

ASSUMPTIONS/ EXCEPTJO S: 

• Work outside the established scope of work can be performed on a time and materials basis in 
accordance with Exhibit B. 

• Right-of-Way mapping services above d beyond the scope listed above can be provided upon 
RTC Authorization and billed to the Desigp Contingency Task. 

8 



PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Consultant agreement to RTC Board: 
Start Design/Project Kickoff: April 1, 2020 
Preliminary Plans: June 2, 2020 
Final Construction Documents: December I 9, 2020 
Advertise: December 20, 2020 
Open Bids: January 18, 2021 
Start of Construction: March 1, 2021 
End of Construction: June 30, 2021 

Reference the attached Exhibit A-1 for detailed schedule outline. 

9 



KEY PERSONNEL 

The key personnel assigned to this project include the following: 
• Principal in Charge/Project Manager- Steven G. Moon, P.E. 
• Group Manager-Thomas W. Young, P.E. 
• Project Engineer -Alex Greenblat, P.E. 
• Construction Project Coordinator - Brian Harer 
• Geotechnical Engineer - Mitch Bums, P.E., CEM 
• Survey Project Manager- John Gomez, P.L.S. 



RTC Kf~·gs RciW Rel'\_.lbllllallorr/R.eccmstrtlct 
El<hlbl! -

Q,e~gn & Consw~Uo~ SclietJ,ule' 

Beginning -4/1/2020 "I"''""""' ,,..~,,..,., 
LUMDS 

Ending 6/.30/2021 

& ASSOCIATES 

1t Hlil,I 1~ Jtlilil~l!l~il~~l¾lililtlilil,lililikl~i ,\Jglj tl:1!~1~ ililm ~!1lil~ili fl I 
lHIC Start ind c,y. ~{ I~ I~ 
~~•Off ., ':!1~0 11 

~ 
I T • I-~==~ ,non 

!l2m2D 3ll 
211 

~ o.--lt'li 30 I --~mrr - " C~Doc:wman:1(GO%J • 5 I I 
~cnc~Rc~ - " f~:a~~rnon~(go,.1 11,omuo so I 

--~ 1Gl11(;?!20 ~ ' ~e,i .. ~OJ.inti:lunw,11 [100'6l ,, ,a~ 11 ,. 
~ Rn,ow 1112"'2020 1 " l I 1 
flnal81d.0Ku~t:s ,mf2tiir----, J.O I 
Mvtim!li-..:f"WHk&cf"Tlffll 12~ 1 29 ' oe.,ne.~ ~ I 

I 
Conl,lkt, 1i'io21 5f I 
,l;Groi;,,c«d iam1 1 I 
Con•~m1 'II =,-,ir ·~ '' I I I 

\ 



RTC Kings Row~eha611ftallori7Recon~irucl 
):xhlblt-A-1 

Design & eonstruotlon Schedule 

Beginning 411/2020 .JUf18 <I\H.U _ ... ._.~.,, 
LUMOS 

Ending 6/30/2021 

& ASSOCIATES 

Jl~l~l1IJ ~1~1! 1il:l!l~l!l1l~1~1~1~ I~ lil~ll IH~IJ~ ll~il~, 11! l!l 11~~1~ + •• H H s • 5 1 Task Start End Day, :t ;17 ;z i 1 
fJtMeet~ , rn::zoza \ l 
~ --f'>~ ~UNDII 5/2/202D 30 
~ allnYbl ,. 
Prellmina,v Daslan 130%) 30 •• I 
~ lltllC)' ReVJOW 61312020 14 
cOl\stn.Lcfumoocu'menu. (SO%> ,s -, 
~gencv Review " Construction Documenbi 190%) \ 60 
i\Q.!!!9' R1!.vli!W 10/18 21 

,~ {100~1 
11 1 " 1 " I -

"' 1 1 I 
ct1ffl'1 Weck Std' 11N1 1 26 I ' Qpen Bids 1/18/2021 1 I -Co•- 1/19/2021 2/27/202 ~ I I 

Nobel!! To Proceed 2/28/2021 212812021 1 I , I I coni'ln,;:,,-, .. ---- >lllm ,--oll~Q I ' I ' ' ' ' 
. 



RTC Kings· Row Rehabill\etfontReconslrilct 
E)lqLblt A-1 

~sJgn &.§ oM_t,_rvcdcn $c)1ed4le 

Beginning 4/t12020 -~ •=u Jl!li[tmlJOt. , -,._ ·---- -
LUMDS 

Ending 6/JD/2021 

& ASSOCIATES ii ,l ,lil~J1 -Ii !1!!!~l J!j\J\J~!~l ~I~ i -1~1~1~1~1ilil~l!lll1li~l!l1l!lrl!lil1J,I f ILi! !Ii t ~ 

Task Start End Doys ~ 
PraJt:CSKkJc-olT "111 12020 -411r.illlZQ ' I I 11 

~ 
-112/2D20 S12/2020 30 I 
-419/2D20 sn12020 28 

30 I 

" 45 II ; 60°") 
14 

~!!._~~C!'.!'ffllnll1ill'lll1 ' .. 
:~~11\U-tfgijv;i -- 21 , ,,~~ ,. 
~~FtcN'# ,, 1 ,. 
~Bi 0ctcu!Mn11 1 .,,1~ 10 
l~t• WuJt81dTimel 1 ,1ff®l1 ia I 
Open Bid& - 1 1/1B/2021 1 
Contracts 1 2'27120~ 
NG11c11 To PrixeeCI 1 2!28/2D21 1 I 
c•Trrutit:an f'2t1 21 .6/i~, 121 ' I 



RTC Krn9s Row Rehebil!latfoni'Re.i:onstrucl 
ExhibltA-1 

OesT.90 &Const/tJc!lon Schedule 

Beginning 4/112020 o.a~k";l"l"Ufl liilovt!ffloir.i:11.fif 

LUMDS 
Ending 6/30/2021 

& ASSOCIATES 

8! L~f 11§1~1~1~1~1~f §!glgl§ ;I! ~l!li ~I ls In iltJilil~ tl!l~li ~ ilt l!' i 11:~li iii Jtl!I! Tawlt Slarl End Days 
§ §j ! ,tlJ 

ProjectKlck~f1 4{~0 I I 

~:= r: ::;, .. ~ l 
a 

~ ~imlnary Oesion 30% 30 i 
Agency Revu1w 14 ~ ....,. .,,,,,.,,,..,,. rao .. i ,s 
~ ifflCV R h'IN' " .. 
~~~OV.l &/11~020 .. ·,, I 
Ai;•~ ~y RCMNI' • I0/1&/2020 ,. 
Con~Oocumantl (100%1 11/9/2020 14 

IP 
1 14 

:d'T1m111J 
10 

I ,. 
--- 1 I -

' 2127/2D21 " : 
~ £:0(§- 2~:~{-~~: 1 ,. 11 

... 



RTC l<.ings Row Rill'i1;1bllllil tlbn/ReoonW1Jc1 
g,ihlJ?!~ 1'· 

Design &.Conswollon ScbedWe -
. Beginning •/1/2020 --,---=·--~ J"""O'Y:,ov--, 

Ending 6/30/2021 
LUMDS 

& ASSOCIATES 

§I l~I l!l~!t~!1lil1l§l!l!I §la · · 1
11 ! I ~ il~I I l~l~l . il!lll~~ H1H~l:li 1~111Jl1 ~I 1~ I I! Taa,lt St.a11 End o,i- ~ ~~--· I ' I 

!ea-?$~=;.twcm lO 
?6 

~ .De"Gll e!!!J lO ; 
~~~~w ___ - -- • I -~ tian Documents (80%) 811812020 '5 I 
~ - 1lll/102Q 1• 
~ ... -.tG0'41 '" I 
~.!!!!!"' 21 I I I 
Consln.lci:ion Oai.umenlS (100"4) --1 

' " I I ' 
~ encyReView 1 " ! I 

~~ia r ... 1 ' 0 
a I 

~ -~ - --- \/ I I I I 
Conlrects 1119/2021 "-"w112021 " I 
~1"0Proccc-GI '•-: - =i1-,h- "' c~ .. ,, 

1 I I 



RJG Kfngs Row Rettebllltal[ori/Reco~$.!illcl 
ExhlbltA-1 

Desi n & Construction Schedule 

LUMDS 
Beginning ~4/"-1/2"'0""2~0-___ _ 

Ending 6/30/2021 

5 ASSOCIATES 

Task Start End Day. 
F!!t!d. '11QQ20 U1Q020 I 

-

• 



RTe l<lngs Row Rehabllitallon/Rec<insf/\Jct 
ei;;hlbitA-1 

Qe1Jgn & ponslruci Q ScnepUle -
" 

Beginning 4/1/2020 npm=« 1'f•Y~ 

LUMDS 
Ending 6/30/2021 

& ASSOCIATES 

il*liltl;lt ililrlililililil ailili HI t~~J I l~ I 
i i~ 1

1 I! lr~ili -l! H di~ ai aa aa 1." I~~ J · !1! Task Start End a,y, < g:: l l . H 
Po;,~-..,, <II l I I I 
y, .. ~...,.., lO 
a.~ai Wh1:Wk!non ,.-
Pte!lminary011,;lgnf3D%) 30 
Agency Ravu,w ___ 6 14 I 
Construc:oon Documents (60%_1 __ --

6/18_~~,020 45 I 
~~-RllN'! 813120"20 7QG2D • 
Con'ID'Ucllon ~"ti u1iiiifo I l17io20 IO I 
~ency Rov1ow 10/1812020 111812020 21 
Consln.Jetlon Oocument& (100%) --,- 11123/202D 14 
~.;<'<'I~.-. I 1mQ02fl ,. I ' 
FNI Bid Doo.lmffl11 12'111/'"}lf11Q 10 I 
Mo-Of"lll1 [<f Weak Did T11nt) 1 11,1nri:u ,. 
Q~lds 1118/2021 1118/2021 1 
Contrac;ts 1M9/2021 ~~+--2.~ i{t:t>ce Ta ,a.oecci 1/2112021 I 
conitnidion 111hQ; ,, 



RTe Kings RQ\V Ret)abil~l{an~eco.nstru01 
Exb1bltA-1 

LUMDS 

Task 

~jG:1. 
T 

& ASSOCIATES 

l:lesign & ©onslnicUoa Schedule 



Exhibit B 

Cost and Fees 



PROJECT BUDGET 

RTC • KINGS ROW REHABILITATION/RECONSTRUCT 

EXHIBITB 
DATE: 2.119/2020 

euoc-n ffflMAn 
"~ 1= 1 """ ' ·- "• ' 10" •"" ' ' OIPtCTOft C "'"n• ADt.tlH '-UMVtiV 

l:i "'"" ' 
.,,,n 

i.,~aDo,11!.K 11,PJ(iJr,1 '"" K ITCCJd;l"l,Afj -u ... u ... ao=~ sulfVk.vl'lffl' l:'N'""' -,;_,"al tttill.Ulll a Tl"IIIQ. 

J. t.~ -P, i, eel t.bn&11m,,vi l 

Pro5aci M1n111~m•r.f • "" 5l6..211Q 

P.,o•a alee~tU!,atiari • .., St.NO 
~UV,.\&:iwra,u """"" 1• .., s10.s.so 

&1Jtllo1~ttr.L " 160 ~ '" SubTolal $ Sl,520 $28800 - ...,,..,, 
~-I , •• I • l0Mln,arMI le lhPvtV , nd J.\lnrun11 A' .. ,. l '&.IIIKM1'111Cilr Utit.flt. J' .. ., .,_..., U5-1i:IO 
P1oiec COf'llrGl l ~N, ft/'IIOel',tfflin;tbon .. .. .,, IHilffl 

S.T0Wlir1.. I I I I I .... s,1 ,.,7 " 1221 I I I 218 

S-.ibTot&IJ I I I I I 1 ..-. I 59,3801-,;:- .,,,,,, .s2ss.;o I I I 5i2.00ol ...,_.,. 
: ,1,8•;:! - lilMIITI.Ol•W,llY,.llpplflQ -
f1 •e~mlnarv T11je Reoor1s _r - " 5-Uia«t 111!1:60 

Par,m;~ 1';1 Conv-f\lCt f'dliblrl, " B . $11840 
l:,114:r,,._.,,1 E.Mhi:bo~Ldui OIi =a ,. 

"' 535.040 

SubTot11IHrs. .. B -- .,., ,. 19~ ,,. 
rii.bTG! ... 110 ... 00 $ ! ,rWO ' ....... .,._,,. SIi~ KS,I-IO 

). t.c. ~o1•c:nn1ul &1wuo11~on 
fW!ldlltw•.ri0611M I " ••" ...... "'''° • &At.• l,M !t!Wl' R"tC 2 " -.. "' SI0.490 

Sub Total Hrs. 
,, 10 I I -, . ._ I I;\ . 90{ 201 I T I ·11~ 

SlltiTwl S W-01 5i3120 I --~, .. ui;i.800 I s1.sool f T S6,00ol 12! 9!10 

Lt.D•1 •""tllml".uyDc-u gn ~ 
lJ\,IUv R1iea1m.'F .. ""' . • ,. "' . ....,, 
e, .. ~l'l•~l\,..LU \&.~t'l'IC • AO ~ V $6040 

Pr~l'\IP!....9wEa 5lfl. ,I, £.alffl•t• 1 .. 100 - to 522.SSD 

&ibTGIOIHrL 1 " 11-,1-..... •( ~ 20 ,,. 
!li&Totart 5470 S7,440 &1&c,1:,0 ss ooo I~ S3600 , 532.630 

,.u,.,.c.. ~ """"' 
2 " ~Jm01owam• "OUT1'M • "' ,- · ,. Sli.160 

00. h7'1t110Vlllll1Mi lf'I • 100 240 " .. .w.;.1eo 
IQO~lm.,,..,v,mtl'll PWI.S& s,m;a. • •• 100 10 S23020 
Final 81:j Docuirumls , .. •O • $9,5.oO 

S4Jt1Tat>l~L 18 21 0 ..,. .. .. , 
SubTolal S S4,230 m ,'480 l'l'1,IDII 5i15,B40 S121,150 

l.lJ)..l.9id.dl,,n.r,rt"'1cu 
s ' 

, • ,, s:,gro 
Sla>Tal.AJ""- ' • ,, ,., 

Sublolal§ $4701 s;1.240 I I $2,160 I 7 I I I ...... 
:. ,.,o....a • P 1Dtr.-cf Doe.Jen CtlfltltlOCM T 
Pt-(i,.d.Qe:sian Collllnne.n&I.' llicom m .ooo 

~1-o&&I~ I I I I I I l 7 7 7 I I I I I 
S1Atl;it,,j1, I I I 7 7 I I ,,...., .,.,.., 

Sub\o!al Hr•. .., .. m rn .. ,.. .. "" .. ,..r .. m I '"" S.UBTOT.4L Of.SlGN S.E.R.VICE.S StUW S3120 1,,U, t fll s.s.c,110 ... ....., '5t ,ua uo;eoo ...... 6.15..MD s,o:no .. ,.,.,. S.='El40 ~UCO SlH,UD, 



PROJECT BUDGET 

RTC-KINGS ROW REHABILITATION/RECONSTRUCT 

EXHIBIT S 
DATE 1119/lQlO 

euoan t5TU4An .,~ ,~ "" •= ~t1) ... '" .,, ,~ 
""' 

,,. •= .. ~ lilillAf -CUlE.C!roA _,,H y l'1!.'11ur.- " ,. .. r• ' F-N l l'f,l(J!J " 0 "'" 
MAN'AGi;a~ k"t r,ui 1.1m,v-="-• OR 5URUFY-nlil ~A W ~-W '" R '0TAL . 

2.1,Jf. C.orn. t1uc ttt111 AltmM111u,l)on 

eci,.i,umon ~,.i-icm • .. , .. .. ~ ,. .., ... 
SiUOlatalt.L ' .. 110 'ii .... ... I -6ubTmii .. ...., ...,.. U,,.<OQ u:aao - ........ 

1. IS • CfJfUOUCIJDII &l.a1ln11 - -
~Mm,lc&cft " 

.,. 
"' .. ,,.. 

~ .. ccrdl -DIS"Ul'II"'"' ~ I " . , . ,. I ...... 
iubTotatHi1.. .,. .. ,,.. 

"' .. ,. , .. ,.. 
~To!ill ,, .... 53 60D SJ,8-40 ss,eeo S40 320 U 1.640 

,iruc-Uoft 11\UIH'lJon 

Coord'INOO" 1fl0 Onr~ .. """' ,ooa ~ ..,. 1l2!1000 
Sl.lOTota/Hrt. I "'"" - .. .. " '""' ::iublTIICW~ I I 112'5..000J ' J t .'20011 ' I I I I .II.»~ 

l . 1.H. Ml1UlAII Tr:tillrit! 
ll1it1ti1b.l< COON:1"1.illan 11'CI Orii,_,ht ,. - . .. I ,,. .. 
Ml!llfl4b.Tc , ..... ~ DO S,l,QQO 

l.lillenal11. TuhM! UM ,, - - .. .,., ... 
~lot.alt.... .. ~ 

,.._ - .. 230 "" &tti «.al-I I -M.610 -- I I w,aa I >l3,DOCI .. .,,...., .161.0BO 
l .1J . Rrcmd Or-,w\nn1, 

R-1«:irt!Dt . >I " ':0 ' 17.Q11J' 
~ GClltti-1,. ' - "' • "' Si:IOTttliMl ..,. '1.~, .... ... ... Sl.+lr;l \?:Q1Q 

2. 1..J. C:c,n\1nu:t"llA Con11nn1 ,w:v 
~fllltruQICftC:o-!111 ...... 

!.UDlllUl.tv._ I I I I I I I 
.51Jtll~l.l.S ~OQQ ....... 

s;Aico11fHt.. 10 .. ,., ,..., m .. "" 
,. , . , .. 2)0 1i1Ul 

.SUB10fM. Cot'l51RUctKm SERYiCU ...... ...... H ,:00 .. .... ti1'7~ IAt,040 JS.OOII ...... Ul-4G .. _ ... ....,., 1.ll,0011 J.70..400 IJ..l t ,410-

101M Of~GHAND COttliiTR\JCTIOH !,!!ff\AC.e"S 01"1 ,or.no 



Exhibit C 

Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

JNRS 338 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL] 
20 I 9-11-11 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGE T/BROKER CONTACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0400. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to save and hold harmless and fully indemnifyRTC, Washoe County, City 
of Reno and City of Sparks including their elected officials officers, employees, and agents 
(hereafter, "Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims, proceedings, actions, liability and 
damages, including reasonable attorneys' fee and defense costs incurred in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arising out of. the: 

A. Negligence, errors, omissions ecklessness 0r intentional misconduct of CONSULT ANT 
or CONSULTANT's agents, emiloyee§, officers directors, subconsultants, or anyone else 
for whom CONSULTANT, may be legally responsible, which are based upon or arising 
out of the professional se:rvices 0fCONSULTANT; and 

B. Violation of lijW or any contractual provisions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, franchlse.s, patents 0r other means of protecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from ilie use b the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliverable (including software) supplied by CONSULTANT under or as a result 
of this Agreement, but excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSULTANT. 

CONSULTANT further agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the 
Indemnitees from and against any and all Damages arising out the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULT ANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSUL TANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 



property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 
If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULTANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSULT ANT is legally responsible, CONSULT ANT shall reimburse the lndemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the Indemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall either (I) secure for the lndemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procu11ing a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become n0 -infriflging. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are separate and severable and it is tire intent of the Parties hereto 
that in the event any provision of this Agreement should be determined by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, voidable or too restrictive for any 1:eason whatsoever, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain vaLid and b ·oiling upon said Parties. It is also understood 
and agreed that in the event any provision hould - e considered, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, to be void because it imposes a greater obligation on CONSULTANT than is 
permitted by law, such court may reduoe ancl re 0nn such provisions to limitations which are 
deemed reasonable and enforceable by said c0 

3. GENERAL REQUIREME TS 

Prior to the start of any work on RTC project, CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types and I units as oescribed below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property w ich may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULTANT its subconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSULTANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSULTANT shall furnish RTC with a certificate(s) of insurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 



notice of cancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSULTANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten (10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULTANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS&SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULTANT shall include all Subcontractors and ubconsu ants referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause -ubs em -toyed by CONSUL TANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and Lim its , f the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limjts each s 1 l i.Jrclude the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insureds uncler its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements sta es herei~ witJiout requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional insureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained by Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for ~ app ·eable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is @REA TER. If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the 0n actor Contractor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contr,actor. When requested by RTC, CONSULT ANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates of insu ce evidencing coverage for each subconsultant. 
CONSULTANT need not requive its on,-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability insurance. 

7. DEDUCTIBLESfA.ND SEbF-lNSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 

8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 



ofNevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSULT ANT fails to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, R TC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to furnish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate or other evidence of fuij compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONSUCTAN 's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver as to the enforce · ~nt of any o'{ these provisions at a later 
date. 

D. By requiring insurance herein, RTC dees n0,~ represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect C©NSUb ~ NT and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation on CO SUL 'FANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
R TC in this contract. 

E. If CONSULTANT'S liaaility policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a subs anti.ally similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability c0verage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERM, LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 
products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other lndemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07 /04 or CG 20 33 07 /04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 



This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to R TC or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSULTANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 0 I, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for all owned, lease hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept autoJ iability for ncmrewned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULTANT does not own 01; operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC its office;rs em~lbyees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are. co ered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CO ULT,:, NT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed t at tbere sball be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance co, e-rage prov ided for CONSULTANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSUL TA tf an an ):' s'ubconsultants shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain-workers' compensation and employer' s liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State ofNevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 

CONSULTANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSULTANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSULT ANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 



CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSULT ANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of the scope of CONSULTANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSUL TANT shall maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "claims made" or "claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extended reporting period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Brian Stewart, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 

AGENDA ITEM 3.9 

Amy Cummings, AP, LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Transfer of right-of-way to the Nevada Department of Transportation 
previously relinquished to the RTC for a portion of Double R Boulevard 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a transfer of right-of-way from the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) to 
the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) previously relinquished to RTC for a 
portion of Double R Boulevard. 

SUMMARY 

At the November 17, 2000, meeting, the RTC Board approved a resolution whereby NDOT 
relinquished right-of-way for a portion of Double R Boulevard to the RTC (see Attachment A). 
The RTC planned to use the relinquished right-of-way for the construction of a proposed road 
and then transfer the road to the city or county. The proposed road, however, was never 
constructed. 

The deed transferring the relinquished right-of-way to the R TC provides that all right, title and 
interest in the property reverts back to NDOT if the purpose for which the right-of-way was 
relinquished ceases to exist. After meetings between R TC and NDOT staff, it was decided 
that the relinquished right-of-way should be transferred back to NDOT as provided for in the 
deed. RTC staff seeks the approval of the Commission to transfer the right-of-way back to 
NDOT. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact will result from this action. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



Double R Blvd. Right-of-Way Transfer 
R TC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page 2 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

November 17, 2000 Approved a resolution consenting to relinquishment by the Nevada 
Department of Transportation of right-of-way for a portion of 
Double R Boulevard, a.k.a. Wilbur Mays Parkway, and transfer of 
same to the Regional Transportation Commission. 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

As part of the 1-580 extension project, Patriot to Mt Rose Highway, NDOT secured right-of
way for portions of Zolezzi Lane (now known as Damonte Ranch Parkway) and Wilbur 
Mays Parkway (now known as Double R Boulevard). NDOT's acquisition of a 100-foot 
right-of-way for the south leg of Double R Boulevard at its intersection with Damonte 
Ranch Parkway occurred 1994. At the time of acquisition, the 100-foot right-of-way was 
obtained to accommodate a major arterial roadway facility. 

Since 1994, RTC's Regional Transportation Plan has changed so that Double R Boulevard 
(south of Damonte Ranch Parkway) was no longer a road of regional significance and 
identifies Damonte Ranch Parkway as the major north/south arterial through the Southeast 
Truckee Meadows Specific Plan Area. Through NDOT's consultation with R TC, City of 
Reno, and Washoe County, it determined the right-of-way corridor could be reduced, 
allowing public access with a 42-foot minor collector right-of-way. 

After Damonte Ranch Parkway had been constructed, NDOT relinquished the remaining 
42-foot right-of-way corridor to RTC. RTC approved the Resolution allowing the Nevada 
State Transportation Board to approve the same. RTC planned to transfer the right-of-way 
to the City of Reno or Washoe County upon closure of jurisdictional issues pertinent to this 
area and road construction. The road was never constructed and therefore no transfer 
occurred. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachment 



I 1111111 1111111111 1111111111111111111111111 1111111111111 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
Right-of-Way Division 
Attn: Walter McClellan 
1263 S. Stewart St. 
Carson City, NV 89712 
Ptn. of APN's 160-030-05 

160-520-05 
160-520-29 

25S2457 
151813112:SISIJ 

I nf 6 

ATTACHMENT A 

Control Section WA-7 4 
Project QF-395-2(17) 
E.A. 71565 
Route 1-580 Former Route US-395 
Parcel: B 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION PREPARED BY: 
GARY O. WHEELER, P.L.S. 
STATE QF N~VADA , Lie. No . 12685 
C/415 .Dou"' e ''R' ' /3Lvd s+e. <is 
~ .e,no, {) ✓ gq 5°11 

RESOLUTION OF RELINQUISHMENT 
OFA PORTION OF STATE HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-

fee simple interest in 

that certain right-of-way for a portion of Wilbur Mays Parkway, extending froitrtll~. 'ght-of-way line of 

Damonte Ranch Parkway, to a point 783 feel souther ; and ) 

d s parcel nu~ e on Exhibit "A" 

attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 

of the board, relinquish to cities nd ounties any porti n of ny State hfg~ which has been superseded by 

relocation or which e departme t de ermines exceeds its eeds. If the purpose for which it is relinquished is 

abandoz z ..asesjg exist, then 

depa en , and 

Page1 of 4 



I 111111111111 fflll 111m1 llll ll~l llWI ii ,m 11111111 
2532457 

1!18/311'2SSI 
2 or s 

WHEREAS, the Washoe County Regional Transportation Commission has requested the 

relinquishment of aforesaid portion of highway for the purpose of a roadway system. 

WHEREAS, Washoe County Regional Transportation Commission, entered into an agreement with the 

Nevada Department of Transportation on November 17, 2000, to accept the hereinafter described designated 

road as a part of the County of Washoe road system; and 

WHEREAS, Washoe County Regional Transportation Commission, o \ e tate of Nevada, consented 

by resolution passed and adopted on November 17, 2000, to the Nevada Depa'\.en~ of Transportation 

relinquishing the aforesaid portion of said road to the Washo unty Reg ~'artation Commission. 

/ 
THEREFORE, it is hereb de rmined by e Bo rd of Di ectors the Nevada Department of 

Transportation, State of Nevad , th t the following de crib d right-~ d incidents thereto, being all that 

hereof, · hereby-reliR isheo to the ~ shoe-Gettnly ' gional Transportation Commission of the State of 

Nev tfa . ~ right-of-way is descr" red ~~...::- __ ·--- -· 

Page 2 of 4 



I 1111111 lllll lllll lllllll 111111111111111111 1111111111111 
2592457 

6l8/3l/288l 
3 or s 

BEGINNING at a point on the right or southerly right-of-way line of Damonte 
Ranch Parkway (former Zolezzi Lane), 80.00 feet right of and at right angles to 
Highway Engineer's Station "Z" 39+97.17 P.O.B.; said point of beginning further 
described as bearing N. 30°10'43" E. a distance of 2,217.33 feet from the southwest 
comer of Section 16, T. 18 N., R. 20 E., M.D.M.; thence along a line N. 55°21'16" E., 
156.1 0 feet; thence along the arc of a non-tangent curve to the left having a tangent 
bearing of S. 55°21 '16" W. and a radius length of 60.00 feet, through a central angle of 
83°21'16", and an arc length of 87.29 feet; thence along a lines. 28°00'00" E., 144.02 
feet; thence along the arc of a tangent curve to the right with a radius length of 521.00 
feet, through a central angle of 28°51 '25", and an arc length of 262 .40 feet; thence 
along a line S. 00°51'29" W., 242.60 feet; thence along a line Ni 9°23'14" W., 42.00 
feet; thence along a line N. 00°51'29" E., 242.78 feet; thence~. the arc of a tangent 
curve to the left with a radius length of 479.00 feet, through a ntr l angle of 
28°51 '29", and an arc length of 241 .26 feet; thence along a line . 28'\00'00" W., 
125.55 feet; thence along the arc of a tangent curve to the left wit a ra~~us length of 
60.00 feet, through a central angle of 90°00'00", and an arc length 6{ 94.~ 5 feet to the 
point of beginning, said parcel contains an area of O ro..acres (30,529 squ re feet), 
more or less. 

Page 3 of 4 



I 1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 
2592457 

El813 l / 2&&1 
4 of 8 

The parties acknowledge that this document serves as the required agreement and resolution with and 

by the local body and that no relinquishment can occur until the Department of Transportation, Board of 

Directors approves of this relinquishment. 

It is the intent of the Department of Transportation to relinquish to the Washoe County Regional 

Transportation Commission all of the Department's right, title and interest in and to the aforesaid described 

right-of-way as shown by shading on Exhibit "A", attached heret an made a part hereof. 

DATEDthisJ)'dayof A~ 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM: 

&:~ r=ktl,A 
Brian Hutchins 
Deputy Attorney General 
Chief Counsel 

ATTEST: 

R00-11 

of tho 

I 20 ,e:,/ • 

Page 4 of 4 



I 

C1I ,.._ ,, •• u, 
_, 

OD.TA 
L ·-&T 

R 
, .... ,. ~·· .,... •. .,, 
,_ 
rwmac --· _r:, ..... 

~ 
411 .oo -- . .,.,.., ~ - ·- 17"11111 --

I 2 ...... ,n 
I :I 11:ue ·- -· 
Ct4 ·-• ·- IW" 

C11J 31.1' ...... ~ 114• 
cu 117.28 'IO. ,._....,,, ~- P/L 

Slit 00-20 
f1ELJIMSH 10 
WAstt0£ R.T.C. 

PARCEL E 
ND6f'lfl'E~'SAl.t 
TO TRI-PARTNERS 

PROPOSED R/W 

COUNTY OF WASHOE 
PARCEL A 

1,0,1 SQ.FT. 
TRI-PARTNERS 

DON.Am:> TO NDOT 

STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPT. Of' TIWISPORTATION R/W OMSION 

MlE: ca:oeER 11, 2000 

EXHIBIT "A" 

~gLq:;o~ 
SCIU:.-f-:J!'iao• SHEET 1 OF 1 SMEE'.IS 

C!J 

........ -.... 
,n <ZI 0 
~ g:11) 
(U ' m~ r:u , 

a:) 
0 

iiiiiiiii 
!!!!!!!!!!! 

= iiiiiiiii 
iiiij;_j -----=== 
!!!!!!!!!!! -!!!!!!!!!!! 
iiiiiiiiiii -----iiiiiiiiiii -iiiiiiiii 
!!!!!!!!!!! 



Doc• 2es24e7 
88/31/2881 04 : 17P Fee :NC 

IK1 
Reque• ted ly 
NliVADA STATE 

~••hoe County Recorder 
Kathryn L. Burke - Recorder 

I !IHI 11111 i~I illii Iii iii lliliil 11111 DI 1111 

-----~------ -~---·-··---



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Doug Maloy, P.E. 
Engineering Manager 

AGENDA ITEM 3.10 

Amy Cumrriings, A<i: LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Change Order No. 11 for the Southeast Connector Phase 2 Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Change Order No. 11 (CO 11) increasing the total contract amount of the agreement with 
Granite Construction, Inc. (Granite) for Construction Work Phase 2 Southeast Connector, between 
Clean Water Way and South Meadows Parkway, by $327,736 for a new total contract amount of 
$158,588,256; authorize the Interim Executive Director to execute CO 11. 

SUMMARY 

Construction of the Southeast Connector Phase 2 Project roadway improvements are complete. 
The contract between the RTC and Granite includes continuing maintenance and monitoring of the 
constructed wetland areas including those constructed in accordance with the US Army Corps of 
Engineers 404 Permit. Work to be provided as a result of this change order is associated with the 
constructed wetlands. 

Previous change orders CO 1 thru CO 10 were in the total cumulative amount of $3,820,726. All 
previously approved change orders were the result of changes in work directed by the R TC which 
are compensable events under Section 14.D(2)(a) of the Agreement for Construction Work Phase 2 
Southeast Connector Between Clean Water Way and South Meadows Parkway between the R TC 
and Granite Construction, Inc. 

Work included in CO 11 consists additional wetland maintenance that is the result of adverse 
impacts from flooding that occurred during construction. Subsequent to completion of the 
construction of the wetlands, it has been determined that specific areas that were subject to five
year flood event(s) during construction adversely impacted the plantings and associated weed 
maintenance. In accordance with the specifications and construction agreement, the Contractor is 
eligible for compensation for the specific extra work included in the proposal from Granite dated 
March 9, 2020. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



FISCAL IMPACT 

Change Order No. 11 for the 
Southeast Connector Phase 2 Project 

RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 
Page 2 

The original total contract amount was $152,439,794. Taking into account previously approved 
change orders in the amount of $3,820,726 and CO 11 in the amount of $327,736, the revised total 
contract amount is $156,588,256. The total contract amount is within the current Fiscal Year 2019 
Program of Projects budget. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

October 22, 2018 

September 21, 2018 

February 20, 2015 

May 16, 2014 

January 17, 2014 

July 19, 2013 

May 17, 2013 

April 19, 2013 

January 18, 2013 

November 21, 2012 

Approved Change Order 10 in the amount of $363,723 and authorized 
the Executive Director to execute CO 10. 

Approved Change Order 9 in the amount of $608,344 and authorized 
the Executive Director to execute CO 9. 

Approved the Guaranteed Maximum Price and Construction Contract 
with Granite Construction. 

Approved the recommendation of Atkins North America as the 
Construction Manager for Phase 2. 

Approved a Request for Proposals advertisement for Construction 
Management Services for Phase 2. 

Approved the recommendation of Stanley Consulting to provide ICE 
services and approved a pre-construction services contract with 
Granite Construction. 

Approved the recommendation of Granite Construction Company to 
provide Pre-Construction Services for Phase 2 design. 

Approved the short list of Contractors for interviews for Phase 2 Pre
Construction Services. 

Approved a Request for Proposals advertisement for Construction 
Manager At Risk pre-construction services for Phase 2. Approved the 
PSA Amendment with TY Lin for Design Services During 
Construction for Phase 1. 

Approved the Construction Contract with Kiewit W estem. Approved 
the Construction Services Contract with Atkins Global. Approved an 
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between the RTC and the Truckee 
Meadows Water Reclamation Facility to grant the RTC rights to 
construct Phase 1 on TMWRF property. 



October 19, 2012 

September 7, 2012 

August 17, 2012 

July 20, 2012 

June 15, 2012 

May 18, 2012 

April 20, 2012 

March 16, 2012 

Accepted a staff update. 

Change Order No. 11 for the 
Southeast Connector Phase 2 Project 

RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 
Page 3 

Accepted a staff update and approved Atkins North America for 
Construction Services for Phase 1. 

Accepted a staff update and delayed the recommended selection of 
Atkins North America for Construction Services for Phase 1. 
Approved a Design Cost Agreement with NV Energy for the 
relocation of overhead power poles at Clean Water Way. 

Accepted a staff update and approved CH2M Hill for Phase 2 Final 
Design services. The shortlist for Phase 1 Construction Services was 
also approved. 

Accepted a staff update. 

Accepted a staff update. 

Approved advertising RFP's for Phase 1 Construction Services and 
Phase 2 Final Design. 

Accepted a staff update and approved the Pre-Construction Services 
Contract with Kiewit W estem. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
/lfolropo/il<111 Plm111l11g • Public 1'ru11sporl11/io11 & Operations • E11gl111-rri11g c Co115/ruclio11 

Ml'lropolil ,u\ Plannin~ Oq,!,miMlinn of W.i,;,hlX' Cnun1r. NL~\"itt!J 

Project No. 532013 CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER (C.O.) NO. _11 __ 
Change Order Requested By: Sheet 1 of_1 __ 
Doug Maloy 

Date 3/9/2020 

To Granite Construction , Contractor for the SouthEast Connector Phase 2 Project 
You are hereby directed to make the herein described changes from the plans and specifications or do the following described work not 
included in the plans and specifications on this contract. 

Cf) 
Cl 
z 
::i 
LL a, 
LL 1ii 
0 Cl 

~ 
:J 
ai 
:'.5 

! 
... i 

~ a:: 
a. 
a. 
<( 

w u z 
<( 
z 
u: 

~ 

..J 
<( • 
>2 
0 (ti 

C:: Cl 
a. 
a.. 
<( 

a:: 
w 
u 
u: 
LL 
0 
w u z 
<( 
:J 
a. 
~ 
0 u 
I-

~ 
1-z 
8 
~ 
a:: 

This change order is for changes in the Work directed by the ATC in accordance with the Agreement for 
Construction Work approved by the ATC Board of Commissioners on February 20, 2015 and signed by the RTC 
Executive Director on April 10, 2015. The extra work and costs are specifically described in the attached ''Request 
for Changes" letter from Granite Construction dated March 9, 2020, including attachments thereto (Exhibit A) . The 
change order amount wil l be paid for on a time and materials basis and Include all labor, equipment and materials 
necessary to complete the work in accordance with the plans and specifications. 

This extra work includes weed abatement and associated maintenance in specific areas adversely affected by 
5-year flood events on the Steamboat Creek that occurred at various times during the construction period as 
described in Exhibit A. In the Agreement for Construction Work, the "Plar:it Establishment and Revegetation Work" 
is set forth in Section 338 of the Special Technical Specfications. Per Section 338.03.01 .11, the "Contractor will 
not be held responsible for poor revegetation and plant establishment that are beyond his control." "Conditions 
defined as being beyond the control of the Contractor for the plant establishment includes ... A 5-year flood event 
on Steamboat Creek as measured at the USGS station c1n Clean Water Way." 

This change order Is specifically for extra work riecessary as a result of 5-year flood events that meet the 
description in Section 338.03.01 .11. This chang,e order does not change any of the other contractual obligations 
between the ATC and Granite Construction, lncltidln@ but not limi ted to , all reve9etatlon and plant establishment 
maintenance responsibilities for areas outside the 5-y'ear flood event limits. All work shall be in accordance with 
Exhibit A, the Agreement for Construction Work, ans permits associated with the Southeast Connector Phase 2. 

The work to be provided as a result of this change order will occur, and be as approved by, the RTC and shall be 
paid for on a time and materials basis with a "not to exceed" amount of $327,736. The "not to exceed" amount is 
based on a two year schedule for treatment and maintenance per Exhibit A. 

Original Contract Amount: $152,439,794.09 

Previously Approved C.O. Amounts: $ 3,820,726.12 

Net Increase from this C.O.: $ 327,736.00 

Total Revised Contract Amount: $ 156,588,256.21 

Total Percent Change all C.O.'s: 2.72 % 

Contractor Acceptance: 

Accepted Date: ft(o--J' ol- 9 20 2 0 

By (Print Name): Q~ ~ {2.,-:> l ( 

Signature: A C, /~ 
'f 

NOTE: This Change Order is not effective until 
approved by Executive Director, RTC. 
NOTE: Previously approved C.O. amounts includes 
the full approved amount of C.O. 1. 

Contract time prior to this C.O.: 656 

Net increase resulting from this C.O.: 0 

New Contract Time with this C.O.: 656 

RTC Approval: 
Recommended by (RTC Project Manager): 

_____________ Date: _ ___ _ 

Department Director: 

________ _____ Date: ____ _ 

Chief Finance Officer: 

_____________ Date: _ _ __ _ 

Executive Director: 

Date: 

Created 5/4/11 



March 9, 2020 

Regional Transportation Commission 
1105 Terminal Way, Suite #108 
Reno, NV 86502 
Attn: Doug Maloy, Project Manager 

Reference: SEC Phase 2 

GRArllTE™ 

Subject: Request for Changes due to Additional Weed Management in Floodplain Areas 

Dear Mr. Maloy, 

Granite Construction ("Granite") appreciates our ongoing relationship w ith The Regional Transportation 
Commission ("RTC") Team on the Southeast Connector Phase 2 .f;)l'Oject. In accordance with Sec. 14 
Categories of Changes to Contract Time or Construction Price, Grarnite espe fully requests equitable 
adjustment for extra work associated with weed management issues be)lend our,,control. 

Soil Tech has prepared a proposed T&M request for t he-assoc·ated war.~ ue to the 5 year flood events. 
The methodology and work approach are attached alc:mg with the'ir · otto exceed price of $327,736.00. 
Daily costs will be tracked and agreed upon with eur ass1gned representative, and based on certified 
payroll reports and actual invoices. 

Should you have questions or require additional i 

Regards, 

Granlt e--f'.onstruction Company . 

- /?/0 
B 1ah Roll 
Area Manager 

Attachment 

CC: George Jordy, Atkins 
Brian Dowd, Granite 
Josh Whellams, Soil Tech 

Reply To: Granite Construction 
1900 Glendale Ave. 

Sparks, NV 89432-2087 
775.358.8792 Office/ 775.358.03732 Fax 



EXHIBIT A 

February 28th , 2020 

Mr. Doug Malloy, P.E. 
Engineering Manager 
Regional Transportation Commission 
1105 Terminal Way Suite 108 
Reno, NV 89502 

EST. 1990 

~l,htµvt,iLUI"', U-i •C 
Spc,tt,.We1QI 

RE: Southeast Connector Phase 2, Change Order for Weed Management in Floort(:)Jain Areas 

Dear Doug, 

Please consider this letter as a formal change request to address a, ~itional scopes of W,0fk associated with the 5 year 
flood events. The purpose for this change request is to ensure the sucee: of the re egetation and wetland mitigation 
for this project by eradicating and controlling the weeds bro~lit up . n by tliie f100c:.f events. This weed mitigation effort 
is based solely on exposed surfaces within the flood affeeted aregSI' For p r:ioses of clarification, all of the ongoing 
weed mitigation efforts outside of the flood boundaries are , ;(:)f ihe current contracted maintenance scope and will 
continue to be executed and billed accordingly. 

Work performed under the flood area scop II be lnvo'be as agreed upon per time and materials rates. Based on 
our discussion in October, actual treatment areas are g!3n~rally identified in the incorporated Attachment 1. Work will 
be performed on exposed areas wit iA the affected liloundary and will be tracked daily along with quantities being field 
surveyed/verified and approved by all r.espeeted pa Jes. The specific work approach is highlighted within the attached 
weed management plan along with an estimated not to exceed cost of $327,736.00. 

As mentioned above the eonlents enclosel:I in this request for change include the weed management plan, time and 
materials hourly rates, arl'~ Attaehmenl, 1 Treatment Areas. The additional two year schedule will be dependent on the 
written approval of this change request. 

With that being said, we intend for iiiis scope to be a work in progress based on actual field observations, and seasonal 
weather conditions. As such, the T&M basis is designed to allow for maximum flexibility to respond to field conditions 
in an appropriate manner. We intend to work closely with the team to adjust the projections within the affected areas 
as necessary as the project continues to mature. 

Thank you again for your continued collaboration in the effort to successfully achieve the common restoration goal for 
this project. As always, please feel free to reach out to us with any questions or items needed. 

Best Regards, 

1 



EXHIBIT A 

SOIL 
-

/ : •
,: .. ,. 

~ . . , 
' . 

•J 'I 

,.,, r-:: .... '· 

EST.1990 

2090 Kleppe Lone. Unit C 
Sparks, NV 89431 

www.soll-tech.com 

TECH 

SEC Weed Mitigation Plan - 5 year Flood Effected Areas 

Table of Contents 

Introduction and Purpose . . ... . . .. . ... .. . .. ... ... . . . . . . . .. . .. .. . ... .. .. ... 1 

Treatment Overview .. . . . . . . .. . . . .. ... . . . ... .. . ... . .. ... ... . . . .. . .. .... .. . .. . 1 

Approach and Technique ... ... ... ... . ....... .. . ... ......... ... .. . ... ... ... 2-4 

Attachment 1 - Flood Effect Maps/Estimated Areas .... ... ..... 5-7 



EXHIBIT A 

Introduction 

Soil-Tech, Inc. and CSESA are working collaboratively to develop an approved Adaptive Management Strategy for the 
SouthEast Connector (SEC) Project. As agreed by the project stakeholders in our recent series of meetings, we have 
outlined the following weed management program to proactively address both short and long term weed mitigation 
issues which have developed as a result of the repeated 5 year flood events throughout the project. 

Weed Abatement Plan for Flood Affected Areas 

As noted earlier, to ensure the success of the SEC revegetation and wetland mitigation the highest priority will be weed 
control, both of noxious species and invasive species not rated as noxious but that function to outcompete desirable 
species. Weed control is paramount to allowing the desirable vegetation to establish and grow. This includes the control 
of annual weeds, throughout their season, making sure to mow species before they go to seed, and the treatment of 
noxious weeds with herbicides at the appropriate phenological stage. 

Our control measures proposed below are pursuant to the July 2013 404 Permit Application (#SPK-2010-01058) 
Appendix D, and consistent with Integrated Weed Management plan and subsequent submittals #0004 & #0550. More 
specifically, the purpose of this proposal is to increase the overall effort rather than make changes to the work approach. 

Seasonal Treatment Overview 

In the spring after mowing the early season weeds, the mowed weed debris may be left on the ground as mulch . This 
mulch may retard the germination of the later season weedy species, which prefer open ground, and is intened to 
promote the growth of the desirable species which benefit from the shade and additional moisture retention. 

In the fall, mowed weeds may be removed or crushed and used as mulch. If additional hydro-seeding is required all 
mowed weeds need to be removed prior to seeding. If the area is broadcast seeded, weeds may be mowed after 
broadcast seeding and left in place. 

The presence of weed sources in adjacent areas and upstream of the project area means that weed control will be 
ongoing. As desirable vegetation spreads and there is less open ground, the annual weeds will become less prevalent 
and may not need much control. It is almost certain that both perennial pepperweed and tamarisk will need continual 
control throughout the project area as both of these species establish from seed sources not controlled by this project, 
but in close proximity to it. 

Primary Focus - Key Areas 

Segments 1 and 2 (25.2 Acres) 

Lower Floodplain - While portions of the wetland areas in the lower floodplain in Segments 1 and 2 are revegetating 
with suitable wetland species, (the lower areas are dominated by cattail (Typha latifolia), bulrush (Scirpus spp.) and 
creeping spike rush (Eleochris macrostachya) --all obligate wetland species), we are still experiencing significant 
emergence of noxious weed species including perennial pepperweed (Lepidium perfoliatum) and purple loosestrife 
(Lythrum salicaria) throughout both the revegetated and the exposed areas. 



EXHIBIT A 

Treatment Protocol/Techniques - The recommended maintenance required in these areas is continued herbicide 
treatment of the two noxious weed species. Soil-Tech will utilize 0.75 - 2 oz./acre Chlorosulfuron (Telar<i>) in upland 
areas, or Weedar 64® at 2 - 4 pints/acre in wetter areas. 

Upper Floodplain - The wetland areas located on the upper floodplain, which are not currently inundated but have 
been affected by flood flows in 2017, 2018 and 2019, are revegetating with facultative wetland species such as: 
weeping alkali grass (Pucinellia distans), saltgrass (Distichlis spicata), creeping wildrye (Leymus triticoides) , sumpweed 
(Iva axillaris) and saltbrush species (Atriplex spp.), and low goosefoot (Chenopodium chenopodiodes). 

The vegetation establishment on the upper floodplain has been slower due to seed and plugs being washed away by 
the flood. This made it more prone to invasive and noxious weed species, therefore, increased weed control in these 
areas is essential to ensure the success of desirable vegetation. 

Treatment Protocol/Techniques - Cutting/mowing the early season annual weeds-- cheatgrass (Bromus tectorum) 
and herb Sophia or tansy mustard (Descurainia sophia) --before they go to seed in April and May, then mowing the 
late season weeds, smotherweed and burningbush (Bassia spp.) before they go to seed in July would be the 
recommended maintenance. In addition, the two most problematic noxious weeds, perennial pepperweed (Lepidium 
perfoliatum), and tamarisk/salt cedar (Tamarix spp.), will be aggressively treated with appropriate herbicides. For 
perennial pepperweed, again, Soil-Tech will utilize 0.75- 2 oz./acre Chlorosulfuron (Telar®) in upland areas, or 
Weedar 64® at 2 - 4 pints/acre in wetter areas. Some infested areas may require the mowing of old growth prior to 
herbicide application. Tamarisk may be hand pulled where appropriate. When stump cut, stumps of tamarisk will be 
treated with Garlon® 4 Ultra herbicide at the recommended label rate. Tamarisk without a central leader; i.e., first 
year growth, may respond to foliar Garlon® applications. 

Segment 4 (22.5 Acres) 

The majority of the noxious and invasive weed species plaguing the SEC site are both tolerant of high salts in the soil, 
and thrive in areas which experience seasonally wet soils. These conditions are present in almost all of the wetlands 
in Segment 4. There are some small areas where suitable wetland vegetation is establishing well, for example the 
excavated area along Steamboat Creek just north of Pembroke, where the grading plans provided habitat for the 
obligate wetland species mentioned on the previous page. All other areas are more suitable for saltgrass and creeping 
wildrye, and the adjacent, undisturbed areas support both of these species, which establish best from underground 
rhizomes. Saltgrass in particular is slow-growing from seed. While it might be useful to overseed these areas with 
creeping wild rye, unfortunately, seed has twice been washed away in high flows, and at least half of the area that was 
intended to benefit from seeding sat underwater for most of the growing season. 

Again the best approach would be to aggressively control weeds in these areas. This means cutting/mowing the early 
season annual weeds, (Bromus tectorum) and herb Sophia or tansy mustard (Descurainia sophia) , before they go to 
seed in April and May, then mowing the late season weeds, smotherweed and burningbush (Bassia spp.) before they 
go to seed in July. In addition the two most problematic noxious weeds-- perennial pepperweed (Lepidium perfoliatum), 
and tamarisk/salt cedar (Tamarix spp.) --need to be aggressively treated with appropriate herbicides. 



EXHIBIT A 

Treatment Protocol/Techniques - As described above for other similar areas, cutting/mowing the early season 
annual weeds-- cheatgrass (Bromus tectorum) and herb Sophia or tansy mustard (Descurainia sophia) --before they 
go to seed in April and May, then mowing the late season weeds, smotherweed and burningbush (Bassia spp.) before 
they go to seed in July would be the recommended maintenance. In addition, the two most problematic noxious weeds, 
perennial pepperweed (Lepidium perfoliatum), and tamarisk/salt cedar (Tamarix spp.), will be aggressively treated with 
appropriate herbicides. For perennial pepperweed, again, Soil-Tech will utilize 0.75 - 2 oz./acre Chlorosulfuron (Telar®) 
in upland areas, or Weedar 64® at 2- 4 pints/acre in wetter areas. Some infested areas may require the mowing of old 
growth prior to herbicide application. Tamarisk may be hand pulled where appropriate. When stump cut, stumps of 
tamarisk will be treated with Garlon® 4 Ultra herbicide at the recommended label rate. Tamarisk without a central leader; 
i.e., first year growth, may respond to Garlon® foliar applications. 

As stated in the introduction, all treatment protocols, chemical labels and uses identified in this management plan have 
been ongoing practices and are consistent with 404 permit applications, previous management plans and submittals. 
We are only recommending an increase in effort due to flood related conditions identified previously. 



EXHIBIT A 

Attachment 1 

Maps of Flood Affected Areas with Poor Vegetation 

Establishment 



\ 
I 
I 

I 

EXHIBIT A ---

Donn r Sptl ngs 
Elementary 

School 

/ 
• Riparian areas weed treatment only 

J\/ Seasonal Wetlands weed treatment only 

r 

, 
\ 

\ 
', 
I 

.J 

; !_ 

~ 

~ I! 
c.edarbr. ,I C 

<IJ 
00.f "Cl 

4. <:>'- "Cl 

~ 'f oe; '-<I 
Oea{ 

<f 
-'l>O'us Dr 

~ ,,_ .- -
\ 

~'ti 

\ E Hidde(\ 
C 

:! 

Segments 1.& 2: 
Lower Floodplain-Noxious Treatment: (2.7 AC) 

Upper Floodplain-Undesirable Weedy Species 
Treatment: (22 .5 AC) 

~ 

(;"-
C) 
0 ::. 

~ i.. r 
\ ~ \,, 

xp_ertGPS s(~map: mapbox, OpenStreeJMap 

Segments 1 and 2 Flood Affected Areas with Poor Vegetation Establishment 

Expert 200m 



v,, 
"O 
n 
ro 
1-. 
~ ...... ~ , ... ~ 

EXHIBIT A 

·-. ~ .. 
•, 
'· .. 

•, ,,, 
·-"9-. ..-···--

Segment 4: 

ciean watef' way 

Lower Floodplain-Noxious Treatment: (13 AC) 

!J.ru;!er Floodplain-Undesirable Weedy Species 
Treatment: (9 .5 AC) 

i;I 
3 
OJ 
~-
~ 

0 ...... 

,.•···· 

.... 
Q ..., 
(I.I 
.a 
r,:. 
.c 

) 0. 
~ ... 

0 -
~ 
s'. 

.:;£ ,_ 
'ti 

Pembroke Dr ....1, 
~ 

0 \_.{\ 

Q' 
-~e. 

~o 
~'O e: 

• Riparian areas weed treatment only 

N S,easonal Wetlands weed treatment only 

"e'Oble Beach Dr 

~ 
Lil 3 ,,, 

~~ Ci} ..0 -, c:: :::; 
vi' 0 I.I) 
~ ~- >-. 
0 " 

~ ..., .::) vi 

,._, 
0 

Hiciden V2illev ;; ..... , 0 
0 0 

fi perttPs Basemap: mapbo)(, -'.penStreet~ap 

Segments 3 and 4 Flood Affected Areas with Poor Vegetation Establishment 

ExpertG 200m 



EXHIBIT A 

GR.AnlTE'" 
SE Connector PH 2 

Daily Time Materials Work Tickets 
SOUTH. : • !:':AS T 

CONNECTOR 
BRINGING A COHHUNITY Cl.OSER TOGETHER 

LOCATION: RENO, NV JOB NO: ------------ --- ----
CUSTOMER: RTC DATE: ----- -------

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: Segments 1, 2, & 4 Lower and Upper Floodplain Noxious Weed Treatment & Abatement 

.EMPLOYEE NAME LABOR DESCRIPTION STRAIGHT TIME OVERTIME TOTAL$ 
HOURS RATE HOURS RATE 

Laborer Foreman $ 46.86 $ 70.29 $ -
Laborer Group 1 $ 44.47 $ 66.70 $ -

$ -
$ -
$ 

$ -
$ -
$ -.. 
$ -~ 

.., ,i $ 

LABOR COST SUB-TOTAL $ 
.. 

EQUIPMENT NUMBER EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION STRAIGHT TIME V TOTAL$ 
HOURS RATE ~ 

Crew Truck ,• \$ 19.03 $ 

Massi Tractor w/ Attachments .., ' $ 23.47 $ 

Brush hog ..... './ $ 13.92 $ 

"' $ 

' $ 

< ,.._ ' 
... $ 

'" .... ,\ $ -
s ...... "' -./ $ . 
~ $ . 

l\ ... $ -

\( EQUIPMENT COST SUB-TOTAL $ 

SUPPLIES/ MATERIALS I SUBCONTRACTORS ___..,_ \ \) QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL$ 
Telar J ) LBS $ 347.94 $ -
Garton 4 Ultra w/ Dye and Activator ' _,/./ GAL $ 109.20 $ -
Weedar64 

__, 
GAL $ 27.88 $ . 

Turf Trax Dye GAL $ 25.09 $ . 
Activator90 GAL $ 33.45 $ 

$ -
$ . 

SUPPLIES I MATERIALS I SUBCONTRACTORS SUB-TOTAL $ 

SUPERINTENDENT: !TOTAL UE COSTS $ 

FOREMAN: --- ----- ---- !TOTAL SUPP/MATL/SUB COSTS $ 

INSPECTOR: ---------- -- !TOTAL AMOUNT $ 

Printed. 2/28/2020 U6 PM Page 1 of 2 



Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Tina H. T. Wu, AICP 
Senior Transit Planner 

AGENDA ITEM 3.11 

Amy Cummings, AP, LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Purchase of a Ford Transit vehicle for Neighbor Network of Northern Nevada 
(N4) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the purchase of one 2019 Ford Transit vehicle utilizing the State of Nevada Fleet Vehicles 
procurement contract in the amount of$69,53 l .25 for Neighbor Network of Northern Nevada (N4). 

SUMMARY 

The Neighbor Network of Northern Nevada (N4) Accessible Rides Program received approved 
funding through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 program for the capital 
purchase of a wheelchair accessible vehicle to serve seniors and people with disabilities. At its 
August 17, 2018, the Regional Transportation Commission Board approved a contract with the 
Sierra Nevada Transportation Coalition (SNTC), a non-profit doing business in the State of Nevada 
in the amount of $279,913.00 for a project through its collaboration with the Neighbor Network of 
Northern Nevada (N4), also a non-profit doing business in the State of Nevada. RTC was notified 
and received confirmation that SNTC dissolved its status as a non-profit corporation effective June 
30, 2019. At its August 16, 2019 meeting, the Board approved a contract for the Neighbor Network 
of Northern Nevada to continue the 5310 project, and to receive and manage the remaining project 
funds in the amount of $221,403.00 within the project scope. 

RTC requires that any 5310 sub-recipient vehicle be procured through the RTC Procurement 
Department utilizing the State of Nevada contract/list of approved vendors. The base price for the 
2019 Ford Transit vehicle is $55,049. Final price includes all-wheel drive, a wheelchair lift, camera 
system and alarm to ensure the vehicle has the correct equipment and can operate in the high desert 
environment. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



FISCAL IMPACT 

Purchase of a Ford Transit vehicle for 
Neighbor Network of Northern Nevada (N4) 

R TC Staff Report March 20, 2020 
Page 2 

Funding for this agreement is included in the FY 2020 Board approved budget. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

August 16, 2019 

August 17, 2018 

June 15, 2018 

Feb. 16, 2018 

Approval of the revised Section 5310 grant agreement with Neighbor Network 
of Northern Nevada (N4) in the amount of $221,403.00. And, authorized the 
Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

Approval of Section 5 310 grant agreements with: 1) Senior Outreach Services 
in an amount not to exceed $63,779; (2) Washoe County Human Services 
Agency in an amount not to exceed $115,274; (3) Sierra Nevada 
Transportation Coalition in an amount not to exceed $226,686; (4) Seniors in 
Service in an amount not to exceed $101,737; and (5) Access to Healthcare 
Network in an amount not to exceed $181,387. And, authorized the Executive 
Director to execute the final agreements once the FT A grant number has been 
assigned. 

Approval of the FFY 2019 and FFY 2020Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & 
Individuals with Disabilities - Section 5310 Program funding and projects 

Approval of the new project solicitation Call for Projects to fund programs for 
up to two years, depending upon available annual federal appropriations. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE{S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 4.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Brian Stewart, P .E. 
Director of Engineering Amy Cummings, ~~. LEED AP 

Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Approve the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Street and Highway Program of Projects 
(POP) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the proposed New Projects for the FY 2021 Program of Projects (POP). 

SUMMARY 

The FY 2021 Program of Projects (POP) (Attachment A) identifies and prioritizes funding for 
RTC's regional streets and highways projects, including RTC fuel tax revenues. This program has 
been developed in accordance with priorities established as part of the Unified Planning Work 
Program, Regional Transportation Plan (R TP), Regional Transportation Improvement Plan (R TIP), 
and the regional road pavement preservation program. 

There are two new projects and five annual programs proposed for the 2021 POP. New projects 
are shown on page 1 of Attachment A marked with a star and listed below: 

• Sky Vista Capacity Improvements, Lemmon Drive to Silver Lake 
• Mill Street Improvements, additional capacity from Kietzke Lane to Terminal Way and 

safety/multimodal from Lake Street to Kietzke Lane 

All of the projects will be located within the area covered by the RTP. 

RTC fuel tax revenues are the most significant source of funding for projects in the POP. Pursuant 
to NRS Chapter 373.140, in evaluating and determining whether to approve the use of fuel tax on a 
project, the RTC Board must evaluate the project in terms of: 

(a) The priorities established by the RTP; 
(b) The relation of the proposed work to other projects already constructed or authorized; 
( c) The relative need for the project in comparison with others proposed; and 
( d) The money is available. 



FY 2021 Proposed Program of Projects (POP) 
R TC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page2 

After the RTC Board approves the POP, it will be brought to the Washoe County Commission for 
approval to authorize the use of fuel taxes on the projects. 

Later in the year, in accordance with NRS Chapter 373, RTC will develop and enter into Interlocal 
Cooperative Agreements (ICAs) specifying responsibilities for construction of the projects and 
authorizing RTC to exercise the power of eminent domain, if necessary. One ICA will between 
RTC, Washoe County and the City of Reno for projects located within the City of Reno. One ICA 
will be between RTC, Washoe County and the City of Sparks for projects located within the City 
of Sparks. Upon approval of the ICAs by the RTC Board, they will be presented to the City 
Councils and the Washoe County Commission for their consideration and approval. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Approval of the POP will appropriate fuel tax for new projects anticipated to be approximately 
$54,950,000 in fuel tax beginning in FY 2021. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

There has been no previous Board action or direction on this matter. 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

This POP places emphasis on using anticipated FY 2021 RTC fuel taxes on the pavement 
preservation program for slurry seals for pavements in good condition and corrective treatments to 
at risk pavements showing more advanced deterioration. 

The proposed preventive maintenance projects are prioritized consistent with the RTC's Annual 
Pavement Preservation program using the Regional Rehabilitation/Reconstruction Project 
Selection Process, formulated in cooperation with the Directors of Public Works of the local 
governments. The proposed project lists are generated by analyzing all eligible streets/highway 
segments, prioritizing them by Pavement Condition Index (PCI - rated between 0-100), roadway 
classification, and Annual Daily Traffic (ADT). Depending on the amount of pavement distress 
(PCI), the proposed repair will fall within one of the following categories - preventive 
maintenance (slurry seals), corrective maintenance, road rehabilitation, or road reconstruction. 
This process allows the correct treatment to be applied at the right time regardless of jurisdictional 
boundaries and by optimizing a standard treatment strategy matrix as approved by all jurisdictions. 

Pursuant to previous RTC Board direction, the POP will continue ongoing funding for the 
Transportation Enhancement Set Aside Projects (TE), Bicycle/Pedestrian/ ADA, and Traffic 
Management as shown in Attachment A. Projects will be identified from these programs that can 
be implemented quickly. Example projects that would be supported by these programs include 
new signals on regional roads, improving ADA access and pedestrian connectivity around transit 
stops, and connected transportation alternatives. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

PROPOSED RTC FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2021 PROGRAM OF PROJECTS (POP) 

l 
Sky Vista Capacity 
Improvements 
Lemmon Dr lo Silver lake 

Legend 

(2 to 4 lanes 
2022 

Projech by Calendar Year of Construction 
(Anticipated Start) 

-- 2020 
-- 2021 

-- 2022 
-- 2023 
-- 2024 

-- 2026 
Freeways and Ramps 

Proposed Regional Roads 

Exisling Regional Roads 

local Roads 

* New Projecls 

0 2 
Miles 

4 

California to 9th 
s;ke/Ped 
2021 

fORESl STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS 
Colifomio to Mt Rose 
Me/Ped 
2021 

1 

PYRAMID HWY 
Queen to Golden 
View {4 lo 6 lonesJ 
2023 

i 
-v- ~-

SPARKSBLVD 
WIDENING 
Greg lo 1-80 
1-80 to Springlond 
2024 

MIU STREET 
Terminal to McCorron 

B;ke/ Ped 
2021 



Sky Vista Capacity Improvements 
{Lemmon Drive to Sllv•r. Lake) 

MIii Street Capacity l!Tipr9vem,nta 
(Lake to Tenninal) 

20.21 Proyentatlve Maintenance {2020/%021) 

2_021 R!'.)adway,Rl!c.on_structlon ProJocta 
(2020/2021) 

TE SPOT 10 INTERSEC::Tl0N IMPROVEMENTS 

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENf PROGRAM/ 
ITS 

ADA AGCESS TRANSIT/PEDESTRIAN 
CONNEC::TIVITY 

New Project& 

PROGRAMS AND NEW 
PROJECTS FY2021 

Prelim Proloct Esl Total Proposed Years of Construction WorkPhaso 

Dollars Calendar ~ear ForFY2021 

$11 ,200,000 2022 Design 

$17,500,000 2023-2024 Design 

$7,500,000 2020/2021 
Design, 

Construction 

$10,500,000 2020/2021 
Design, 

Construction 

$4,500,000 2020/2021 
Design, 

Construction 

$1 ,750,000 2020/2021 
Design, 

Construction 

$2,000,000 2020/2021 
Design, 

Construction 

2 

ATTACHMENT A 

ICA ReQulrod 

Jur!sdlctlon 

COR 

COR 

ALL 

ALL 

NA 

ALL 

ALL 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 5.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Angela Reich, SPHR, SHRM-SCP 
Director of Administrative Services 

SUBJECT: Executive Director Employment Contract Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Discussion and possible action to approve, reject or modify the Executive Director Employment 
Contract Agreement for William Thomas. 

SUMMARY 

The Board unanimously appointed William Thomas as the Executive Director at a 
February 13, 2020, special meeting. Following up to the special meeting, Chairman Lucey and Zev 
Kaplan Esq. negotiated an Executive Director Employment Agreement with Mr. Thomas which is 
included as an attachment. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

Funding is included in the Fiscal Year 2020 Board approved budget for the Executive Department 
and will be included in the Fiscal Year 2021 budget. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

February 13, 2020 The Board interviewed five candidates and unanimously appointed 
William Thomas as the RTC Executive Director. 

Direction was given for Zev Kaplan Esq., attorney-of-record and the 
chairman to negotiate the terms of an employment contract agreement 
with Mr. Thomas and bring back to the Board at the earliest possible 
scheduled Board meeting. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 



January 17, 2020 

November 15, 2019 

April 17, 2009 

January 16, 2009 

December 19, 2008 

Attachment 

R TC Executive Director Interviews and Selection 
RTC Staff Report March 20, 2020 

Page2 

Direction given for the Board to interview the list of six applicants as 
found by staff. 

Direction to have staff consult with the Chair and the Vice Chair 
about process and timing for these six candidates and to schedule a 
special meeting for February 13, 2020. 

Appointed Amy Cummings as the Interim Executive Director upon 
the departure of Lee Gibson, with a 10% pay increase, until such time 
a permanent Executive Director is appointed. 

Directed the Director of Administrative Services to work with 
Chairman Lucey to compile and distribute advertising materials as 
soon as possible and bring a recruiting plan to the December 20, 2019, 
RTC Board meeting. 

Directed the Director of Administrative Services to begin a formal, 
regional recruitment, and each commissioner was to appoint one 
person to a candidate review sub-committee. Additionally, the 
Director of Administrative Services was to screen out the least 
qualified candidates and the review sub-committee would then screen 
out the remaining qualified candidates for final recommendation to 
the Board. An advertisement was to run for no more than two weeks. 

Appointed Derek Morse as the Interim Executive Director. 

Direction was given to the Director of Administrative Services to 
advertise a request for letters of interest (for Executive Director) only. 
A regional search was also preferred to a national search and an 
outside agency was not to be used. No relocation or travel costs for 
interviewing was to be offered. 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 20th day of March 2020, by and between 

the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County, State of Nevada, (hereinafter the 

"RTC") and William A. Thomas (hereinafter "Employee"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the RTC by and through its Board of Commissioners (the "Board") desires to 

employ Employee as Executive Director of RTC; and 

WHEREAS, it is Employee's desire to accept the position as ExecuUve Director of the RTC 

upon the establishment of adequate compensation and terms of that employment; ,and 
', 

WHEREAS, the parties by this Agreernef'.lt intend to set out the rights and, obligations of 

each party to the other from the employment relationsh_ip. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the m\.ltual'covenants contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration; the_re parties do agree as follows: 

1 

SECTION ONE~ DUTIES 

A. The RTC agrees to employ Employee as Executive Director of the RTC for the purpose of 

carrying out the legally permissible and proper duties of the position as established by 

statute, rules; policies and th.e job description, attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and 

incorporated herein by reference, The parties acknowledge that the identification of the 

references is to establish an overview and not as a limitation on the Executive Director's 

duties and obligations as may _be prescribed by the RTC Board. 

B. Employee will be responsible and have full authority for the management of the affairs 

of the RTC and the supervision and management of its employees subject to the rules 

and policies,ohhe RTC, as may be amended from time to time, at the direction of the 

RTC Board. 

C. Employee shall devote all Employee's services, full energies, best efforts, interests, 

abilities and productive time (excluding vacation and personal time) to the performance 

of his duties under this Agreement, to further the RTC's interests and to perform 

diligently and in good faith such duties as are or may be, from time to time, required by 

the RTC in connection with his employment hereunder. 

D. Employee shall not, without the RTC Board's prior written consent, directly or indirectly, 

render to any other person or organization services of any kind for compensation or 

engage in any other business activity that would interfere or detract from the 

performance of Employee's duties under this Agreement. 



2 

SECTION TWO -TERM 

A. Employee's employment as Executive Director of the RTC, pursuant to the terms 

hereinafter stated shall commence on April 13, 2020 and shall continue under the 

terms and conditions hereinafter provided herein for a period ofthree (3) years. The 

parties may review or renegotiate this Agreement upon giving six (6) month notice, 

prior to expiration of the term, in writing to the other party of their intent to 

renegotiate. If no such notice is made in writing within the prescribed time period, 

then the Agreement will automatically renew for one (l)'year. 

That notwithstanding paragraph A, above, RTC and 

Employee agree and acknowledg_e that it _is the intent of the 

parties that Employee's employment is an "at will." SECTION 

THREE - SALARY /BENEFITS 
A. RTC agrees to pay Employee an annual salary in the sum of Two Hundred Twenty 

Thousand Dollars ($220,000.00) for employee's fai_thful and diligent p_erformance 

of the duties and obligation of E_~etutive Director. S?lary shall _be paid in the same 

manner and intervals as other RTC~mployees. 

B. Employee's performance,sball be reviewe~ afleast once a:nnually at or near the 

end of the RTC's fiscal year. Said perforn,ance shall be evaluated against the duties 

and obligations of the position, toh)clude g9als and objectives which, to the extent 

possible, have ~~~n reduced 'to wiiting and ag~eed upon between the parties. A 

satisfactory or bette~ performance shall make Employee eligible for an annual 

salary increase. The Board_: ma,y also award 0a.performance bonus of 0-5.0 percent 

of his current base salary. Said bonus shall be determined on or about July ist of 

each year and shall be based upon :employee's past year's performance of his goals 

and objectives. The RTC Board shall have the sole right to determine performance 

but said right shall-be subject to a standard of reasonableness. Bonuses given shall 

not be considered part of Employee's base salary. The RTC shall pay any increase 

in the Employee's required PERS contributions regardless of whether Employee 

receives any salary increase or performance bonus. 

C. Except as otherwise modified by this Agreement, Employee shall be entitled to all 

the same benefits afforded to other RTC management employees. Benefits 

include, but are not limited to, health, dental and vision care insurances; life 

insurance; long term disability; sick leave; vacation, holidays; retirement benefits; 

and IRC Section 125 program pay. Employee's benefits are subject to 

increase/decrease with changes to existing RTC policy. 

SECTION FOUR - VACATION 

During the first year, Employee shall accrue twenty-four (24) days of vacation. 

Thereafter, Employee's vacation time shall be increased and accrued in accordance 

with RTC policy. 



3 

SECTION FIVE - CAR ALLOWANCE 

The RTC will pay to employee the sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per month 

as a basic transportation/car allowance. Mileage reimbursement, based upon RTC 

policy, will be provided for any trips outside of the metropolitan/urbanized area. 

Employee shall obtain and provide payment for liability insurance in an amount not 

less than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) per person and Five 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) per incident and shall be responsible for 

the purchase, operation, maintenance, repair and regulcureplacement of said 
automobile. , 

SECTION SIX-MEDICAL INSURANCE: 

The RTC will provide to Employee health, d~ntal and vision in~urance at no expense 

to Employee except for such limitations/deduc::tibles as apply,to the policy. The RTC 

shall reimburse Employee for COBRA p~yments b~tween the dat~:<;>f h,ire and when 

Employee becomes eligible for coverage under the RTC group insurance plan. 

SECTION SEVEN'.:.. LIFE INSURANCE 

The RTC agrees to pay for term Hfe insurance',on Employee's life in an amount of 

Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00). This amount shall be in lieu of the 

life insurance offered to all director leyel or higher employees of the RTC. 

SECTION EIGHT- DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The RTC agrees to contribute annuaUy on Employee's behalf, Seven percent (7%) of 

annual salary to the deferred compensation plan approved by the RTC. Said 

payments shall be made on or before December 31 of each year that Employee 

serves as Executive:Director. This amount shall be in lieu of the one percent (1%) 

match offered to other RT<; employees. 

SECTION NINE - MOBILE PHONE 

The RTC will prqvide Employee a mobile telephone to used solely for the official 

business of the RTC. The parties recognize that information in or on this phone may 

be subject to the Nevada Public Records Law. 

SECTION TEN - GENERAL EXPENSES 

The RTC will provide reimbursement for reasonable business expenses and for 

participation in professional associations in accordance with RTC policy. 



4 

SECTION ELEVEN - REDUCTION OF SALARY /BENEFITS 

A. Except as provided in Subparagraphs Band C of this Section, RTC shall not 

reduce salary or other benefits granted to Employee by terms of this 

Agreement. 

B. Employee's benefits shall be subject to policy changes which increase or 

decrease benefits of management employees. 

C. In the event of substantial loss/decrease of funding which necessitates or 

results in the reduction of the salary and benefits of other managers, salary and 
, / ·, 

benefits of Employee may be reduced by like percentage. Further, in the event 

of the complete loss of funding and/or the repei:11 pf any ordinance or statutory 

provisions relating to the creation, duties and obligations of the RTC, this 

Agreement would be deemed to be revoked and no compensation payable 

under this Agreement would be due oth'er ~han earned safary and benefits 

accrued but not yet paid. 

SECTION TWELVE- INDEMNIFICATION 

A. Except as otherwis~, provided in Su bp~~agraph B of thi~ Sect ion, RTC shall 

defend, hold harmless and indemnify employee against any claim, lawsuit or 

other legal action, wh'e~her groundle'.ss or otherwise, arising out of the 

alleged negligent acts br omission of Employee where said acts or omission 

were made ~,n good faith by employee and ih furtherance of employee's 

duties as Executive director of the RTC:. RTC's obligation includes, but is not 

!imited to, the paymeni of anyjudgement, settlement and any cost and/or 

attorney's fees incurred. 

B. RTC shall not be obligated pursuant to the provisions of this Section for any 

liability arisi'ng from Employee's willful and/or intentional wrongful acts or 

for any acts of any kind which occur in a private capacity or which are 

unrelated, to the perform,mc:e of his rluties and oblieations as Executive 

Director. 

SECTION THIRTEEN- CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

A. The RTC, in consultation with Employee, may fix any other terms and 

conditions of employment as it may determine from time to time relating to 

the performance of Employee, provided said terms and conditions are 

reasonably consistent and not in conflict with the provisions and intent of 

this Agreement. In addition, Employee agrees to conform with such 

personnel rules, management policies and other procedures as may be 

adopted and/or amended by the RTC from time to time. 



5 

B. Employee shall maintain the highest ethical standard. The parties agree that 

Employee shall perform the Services for RTC and shall conduct himself at all 

times in strict accordance with eh ethical and professional standards of the 

Nevada State ethics Commission and the provisions of the Nevada ethics in 

Government Law. 

C. The parties agree that employee shall perform the Services for RTC and shall 

conduct himself at all times in strict accordance with all applicable laws of 

the United States and State of Nevada. 

SECTION FOURTEEN-TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 

A. Termination Without Cause. 

1. By RTC. RTC may terminate this Agreement withqutcause, at any time, 

upon ten {10) days written notice to Employee and'.paying employee an 

amount equal to Employee's pro-rated Salary for a six (6) month period 

("Severance Period"). Emplo,yee shall also, be entitled to the Benefits 

outline in Section Three .above during the ~eyerance P~riod. Payments 

pursuant to this Section Fourteen (A)(l) shall be paid at the discretion of 

the RTC, either ,in:a lump sum or in equal or near l:!,qual amounts on 

regular pay dates until the equivalent of six (6) months Salary is paid. RTC 

shall determine, in i,ts sole discretion, whether Employee shall be 

required to perform the services of Executive Director during that six (6) 

month period,. RTC and Employee shall mutually agree upon any 

communications to be made public or internally with RTC's staff 

regarding any terminatioQ pursuant to this Section. 

2; By Employee. Employee may terminate this Agreement without cause, at 

any time, upon six (6) months written notice. RTC's Board may, in its sole 

discretion, determine that employee's notice period will be shorter than 

six (6) months, and Employee shall only be paid for the actual notice 

period determined by RTC. RTC and employee shall mutually agree upon 

any communications to be made public or internally to RTC's staff 

regarding any termination, pursuant to this Section. 

3. Regardless of whether the termination is initiated by the RTC or 

Employee the Severance Period shall not be more than six (6) months nor 

less than three (3) months. 

B. Termination for Cause. 

1. Generally. In addition to any basis set forth hereinabove, RTC may 

immediately terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the 

following events: 

a. By majority vote of the Board for any act of dishonesty, fraud, or 

gross negligence in the performance of services herein, after giving 



6 

Employee written notice of such act(s) and providing Employee an 

opportunity to respond in writing or in person to RTC's Board. 

b. Employee commits any unethical conduct in violation of Section One; 

or 

c. Expiration of the Employment Term set forth in Section Two or any 

renewal thereof; or 

d. RTC finds that employee has committed any violation of any policy or 

procedure of RTC or commits any breach of statutory or common law 

duty. 

e. Failure of Employee, after receiving thirt'y {30} days advance written 

notice from RTC, to cure any breach ofthis Agreement by Employee. 

2. In the event Employee is terminated pursua'rrt to this Subparagraph. 

Employee shall receive no further compensation beyond the termination 

date other than benefits accrued or ~equired by laW; 

C. Termination upon Death. This Agre~ment shall automatically terminate 

upon the death of Employ~e/ and RTC shall not be obligated to pay the 

estate, family, heirs or any oth_er perso~ claimiil'g under Employee any 

compensation or disabj,lity income forh'is services to RTC which would have 

been due to EmployE:i'e after death/other than the compensation or disability 

income which accrued up to t~e date o,f death, if any. 

D. Termination upon Disability. : . 
', -, - . 

1. Definition.-. !'Oisability''shall have the same meaning as the definition of 

"Disability" pursuant to c1ny polity of disability insurance carried by RTC 

for the benefit of Ernploye~ in force at the time of such Disability, or, if no 

SlJch disability ·p:oHcy of insurance is then in force, "Disability" shall mean 

the inability of Employee to provide ninety percent (90%) of the average 

level of time and charges for services previously provided during a 

continuous three (3) month period ("Determination Period") by reason of 

illness, accident or other mental or physical infirmity reasonable 

expected to be of indefinite duration, at the end of which Determination 

Period Efoployee shall be deemed to be disabled. RTC and Employee shall 

agree on the date when the period of Disability begins. If RTC and 

employee cannot agree, the RTC and Employee shall each designate a 

physician of choice and two designated physicians shall designate a third 

physician. The three physicians shall then determine whether Disability 

exists within the meaning of this Agreement and when that Disability 

commenced. All costs and expense connected with the determination of 

Disability under this Agreement shall be borne equally by RTC and 

Employee. 

2. Termination on Disability. In the event of employee's disability, RTC shall 

continue to pay Employee his/her Salary computed at the rate in effect 



7 

prior to the commencement of the Determination Period (as defined 

herein) during the Determination Period. If RTC finds Employee to be 

Disabled with in the meaning of this Agreement, then subject to the 

provisions of Subparagraph D(l) above, employee's employment and the 

right to compensation may at the secretion of the Board, terminate the 

employment ofthe Employee upon the expiration of the Determination 

Period; however, any commercially funded disability insurance benefit 

shall continue to the extent provided under such insurance contract 

notwithstanding such termination. If RTC fil)ds ,employee not to be 

Disabled within the meaning of this Agre~l11ent, then the employment of 

Employee shall continue without regard to the Disability. 

SECTION FIFTEEN - SUSPENSION • 

The RTC may suspend Employee with full pJy and benefits at 'any tin,e during the 

term of this Agreement. At the time of the su;pension, Emploi e/shall be given 

written notice setting forth any charges and a heari6~ conc:erhing the matter 

shall be conducted with seven (7) working days. 

SECTION SIXTEEN - PERSONNEL RULES AND MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

The RTC had drafted and instituted,Personn'elRules and Management Policies. 

The RTC and employee hereby agree that should there be a contradiction or 

ambiguity between this ;Agreement and the Personnel Rules and Management 

Pol!des, the terms ofJhis Agreement shall prevail. Employee acknowledges 

receipt of the Personnel Rules and Management Policies and agrees to comply 

with their terms. 

SECTION SEVENTEEN - MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Assignment. Except as otherwise provided herein, Employee may not and 

, shall not assign any rights or delegate any duties under this Agreement. 

B. Notices: All Notices, demands, requests, and other communications required 

or permitted to be served on or given to either party by the other shall be in 

writing and shall be delivered personally or by United States mail, first class 

postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. 

Notices shall be addressed as follows: 

To RTC: Chairperson, Regional Transportation Commission 

of Washoe County 

P.O. Box 30002 

Reno, Nevada 89502 
(775) 348-0400 



8 

To Employee: William A. Thomas 

1875 Carlentini Court 

Reno, Nevada 89519 

(775) 722-4928 

The person to be served and the address shown above may be changed at 

any time by notice to the other party. Service shall be completed upon 

personal delivery or three (3) days following the time the notice is deposited 

by registered or certified mail. 

C. Governing Law; Jurisdiction. The provisions 'ofthis Agreement shall be 

governed and construed in accordance with the laws of ~tate of Nevada and 

the parties hereto submit to the exclusive jurisdiction qf the Justice and/or 
. . · / ,,_ 

District Courts of the State of Nevada. '. 
. ; ", / 

D. Severability. To the extent that ~.nv terrri or provision of this;Agreement or 

the application thereof tq a1Jy-;ircumstance shall be deem.ed t~ be invalid or 

unenforceable, such term or.provision; ~hall be iheffe~~iv_e to the extent of 

such invalidity or un~nforce~bilJty wiJhout invalidat{rig or rendering 

unenforceable the rei):l'aining term~ and provision of this Agreement. The 

parties agree that a suita!Jftfand equitable term or provision shall be 

substituted.thereof to carry out,,,insofai'-as may be valid and enforceable, the 
/ .-.·, . , . . , 

intent and purpos~ of theJnvalid or .unenforceable term or provision. 

E. Entire Agreement. Ther~ a'r:tno verb.al agreements, representations, or 

understandings'.affecting thi~:Agreement, and all negotiations, 

representations, and understandings are set forth herein with the 

undersfanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by 

and betwee_n the parties. ·· 

F. Amendrneilts. No alteration, amendment, or modification of this Agreement 

is effective unless it is in writing and signed by both parties. 

G: Waiver. The failure of the RTC or Employee to insist upon the performance of 

any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, or the waiver of any breach 

of anY.of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, shall not be construed as 

the~~after waiving any such terms and conditions. The same shall continue 

and remain in full force and effect as if no such forbearance or waive had 

occurred. 

H. Captions. The captions contained in this Agreement are for convenience only 

and are not intended to limit or define the scope or effect of any provision of 

this Agreement. 

I. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts and each such counterpart shall be deemed an original, but all 

of which, when taken together, shall constitute an Agreement. 



9 

J. Presumption. This Agreement or any section thereof shall not be construed 

against any party because said Agreement, or any section thereof was 

drafted by said party. 

K. Separate Counsel. Each party has received or has had the opportunity to 

receive the independent advice of its attorney prior to the execution of this 

Agreement. It is understood and agreed that the undersigned have not been 

influenced to any extent whatsoever in making this Agreement by any 

representative, agent or employee of an adverse party, or by any attorney, 

person or persons representing or employed by the undersigned, and that 

this Agreement is entered into freely, voluntarily and knowingly. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement effective as March 

20, 2020. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM: 

By: ________ ___ _ 

Dale E. Ferguson, Esq. RTC General Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By: ____________ _ 

Bob Lucey, Chairman EMPLOYEE 

By: ___________ _ William A. Thomas 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: fo __A ~ 
Amy Cummings, CP, LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Legal Counsel Report 

AGENDA ITEM 5.2 

The monthly Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) agenda includes a standing item for 
staff and legal counsel to provide information on any legal issues facing the RTC. This allows the 
Board to discuss such issues and provide direction to staff or take action as necessary. 

The RTC may, consistent with Chapter 241 of NRS, decide to interrupt the public meeting at any 
time to conduct a closed session to confer with legal counsel and possibly deliberate on legal 
issues. Any action on pending legal matters will be made when the public meeting is reconvened. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe .com 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

March 20, 2020 AGENDA ITEM 6 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: A fa ~ 
Arii°yCumtiiings, , LEED AP 
Interim Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Public Input 

This agenda item allows the public the opportunity to provide information on topics within 
the jurisdiction of the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC). Any person wishing to 
wait to provide public comment on a specific agenda item should indicate that item number 
on the "comment" card. The RTC Chair reserves the right to take all public comment during 
Public Input. Individuals addressing the Board during the Public Input portion of the 
meeting will be limited to three minutes total. However, an individual acting as a 
spokesperson for a group of individuals may request additional time. Individuals are 
expected to provide public input in a professional and constructive manner. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 


	03-20-20 Board Agenda.pdf
	REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION




